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CHAIRPERSON’S MESSAGE

Dear Valued Members,

It is my honour to share with our esteemed shareholders the 16th Annual Report of your Company lor
FY 2023-24 and present to you the financials and key highlights of your Company. In the FY 2023-24,
we achieved significant performance and your Company has operationally performed well in all terms.
Owing to unpredictable market conditions and supply chain management, we steer through the
challenges efliciently and effectively. This 1s due to our strong determination and our team’s focus with
our clients resulting in our determined performance.

We al Texmo Pipes and Products Limited always believe that strong ethical standards, principles and
sense of accountability are the only path to success and we have aligned ourselves to this vision
without any deviation. We always focused to transform our performance and reinforce our capabilibes
with core competency to achieve quality production. Your Company 1s one of the most strongly trusted
Company offening hagher level of customer satisfaction and faster absorption of latest and enhanced
technology and resources.

During the year, Your Company has also started 1ts Operations in the Pithampur Industrnial Area, Dist.
Dhar, MP in Indore Region and commenced manufacturing works through our Subsidiary Company
“Shree Venkatesh Industries Private Limited”. Your Company and all our associates are working
hard with their tireless efforts to boost our performance and reaching market with a wider scenario.

I would like to extend my sincere thanks and gratitude to our management team, stafl, bankers and
business associates for therr commitment and contnbution towards your Company Texmo Pipes and
Products Limited. Further, as a token of appreciation and applaud, 1 would also like to thanks my
fellow Directors and colleagues for providing guidance amidst the tough operating environment. Last
but not least, 1 would like to extend my sincerest gratitude to our employees, customers, pariners and
all our esteemed stakeholders for their utmost faith and support. We continue to evolve value creation
for our stakeholders in building a sustainable business. We always hope for a prosperous future 1n
coming years together in the roadmap going forward.

With Best Wishes,

Rashmi Agrawal

Chairperson & Whole Time Director
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MESSAGE FROM *"MANAGING DIRECTOR’

Dear esteemed Members & Stakeholders,

At the end of another year, it is always a matter of pride to communicate with you, We Texmo Pipes and Products
Limited is proud to present you the 16™ Annual Report of your Company. This comprehensive report not only
covers our yearly performance and happenings throughout the year but also showcase our vision for the future
and the roadmap ahead to be a globally developed Company in Plastic and Polymer Pipes manufacturing
Industry.

As a Managing Director and Founder - Promoter of the Company, we started this journey 37 years back with a
vision in eyes of providing growing employment to the people of my place. We comprehensively deal in all
Products covering Sanitary and Water Tanks, Agriculture Segment, Column Pipes and MIS segment etc.

In order to robust our performance and to outreach in more regions, Your Company during the yvear has started
Operations in the Pithampur Industrial Area, Dist. Dhar, ML.P. in Indore Region and started manufacturing and
waorks by adding other products, by our Subsidiary Company “Shree Venkatesh Indusiries Private Limited™.
Texmo Pipes and Products Limited is working hard to its ambition of becoming one stop piping solution for all
your piping requirements which includes CPVC Pipes, UPVC Pipes, SWR Pipes and Fittings, Water Storage
Tanks, Garden Pipe and Solvent, Rigid PVC Pipes, CM, CS, RS and Blue Casing Pipe, Agriculture and Suction
Hose Pipes and Fittings, IHDPE Pipes and coils, Colum Pipe, DRIP rolls, Sprinkler Pipes and Accessories, Mini
Sprinkler Rolls and Spray Pipe etc. We cover all product range in all segments and all together have 2,200
products under one roof.

Your Company has achieved revenue of Rs. 538 33 Crores in FY 2023-24 from operations. The strength behind
your Company's success is the ethical ideology of the Management, Production and Administrative teams and
Trust and Confidence of around 46,000 shareholders. Our three core principles we always stand with a strong
foundation formed are Strong Production Quality, Efficient Distribution System and Maximum Customer
Satisfaction. As a very strong brand having confidence of its consumers in India, We continue to build our
learning and strengths on quality products.

Your Company’s products are used and supplied in Water Management Systems projects and construction sites
and distribution channels, and we are praiseful been a part of this and contributing for this developing era. In
discharging our Social and Philanthropic responsibilities, and to accelerate its Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR), vour Company and its CSE Arm “Texme Pipes Foundation™ 1s contributing for various social and
charitable objects towards society by organizing various Health Care programmes, environmental
sustainability and promoting education.

I wanted to thank all our esteemed shareholders to keep believing in the vision of our management in tough
times. I must acknowledge the understanding and support of our employees, numerous customers, partners,
business associates, dealers, distributors, vendors and all our esteemed stakeholders for their utmost faith and
support, on whose trust we continue to evolve and grow. We are proud of our employees and management team
for showing their determination and character in all times in true letter and spirit.

With Best Regards,

Sanjay Kumar Agrawal

Managing Director
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Texmo Pipes and Products Limited is committed to sustainable
development, where business goes hand in hand with societal
wellbeing and environmental consciousness.

Hon'ble Collector Smf. Bhavya Mittal greeted and
applaud Texmo's ‘Annual Blood Donation Programme'
contributing more than 300 units in the year 2023 and
greeted Managing Director Shri Sanjay Kumar Agrawal
for this noble cause.

The Blood Donation drive in this year 2024 reached
significant 421 units for the help of needy people,

Promoting health care including preventive Healthcare
The company provides various routine heath check up to the
employees and their dependents as well as in the rural
sectors because good health is a cardinal to human well
being and enables one to achieve life goals. The company
employees also donate blood to the desired and as on annual
blood donation camp is fixed on 12th Apnil.

Environmental sustainability

The company initiates strong efforts and work on
environment. The company is continuously making

| concentrated efforts to increase the green cover by sapling
plantations and enhancing environmental awarenass
programs in the community.

Pramotion of education

Education ai g the development of an individual ‘s
cognitive , psychological and intellectual  facilities that
- ultimately shapes his or her personality, The company has
ive schools of rural areas where complete

" provides training programs and skill de
college youth in the plastic extrusion proc
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 16" Annual General Mecting of the Members of TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS
LIMITED (CIN: L25200MP2008PLC0O20852) will be held through Video Conference (*VC™) / Other Audio Visual Mcans
(*OAVM™) on Friday, 27" Scptember, 2024, at 12.30 PM. to transact with or without modification(s), as may be permissible, the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:-

I. Toreecive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended 317 March, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Dircetors and the Auditors thereon.

2.  To appoint a Dircctor in place of Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal (DIN: 003 16248) who rctircs by rotation and being cligible, offers
hersclf for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:-
3. REMUNERATION OF COSTAUDITOR FORTHE YEAR 2024-25.

To consider and, il thought fit, lo pass, the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLYED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Scetion 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with  the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-cnactment
thercof, for the time being enforee), the remuneration of Rs. 80,000/~ (Rupees Eighty thousand only) plus applicable taxes to
be paid to M/s. Saurabh Parikh & Associates (Firm Registration No. 101495), Cost Auditors of the Company to conduet the
Audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2025, as approved by the Board of
Dircetors of the Company, be and is herchy ratified.
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Dircctors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedicnt to give cffect to this resolution.™

4. TOAPPROYEREVISIONIN REMUNERATION OF SHRI VIJAY PRASAD PAPPL (DIN: 00316248 )AS WHOLE
TIME DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following Resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Scetion 196, 197, 198 and 203 read with Schedule V and any other
applicable provisions, (if any) of the Companics Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutlory

maodification(s) or re-cnactment thercof for the time being in foree), and applicable provisions of SEBI {Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Reguolations, 2015, and the Articles of Association of the Company and on recommendation of
Nomination and Remuncration Committee to the Board of Dircetors { Board) and approval thercof by the Board, approvals of
the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for revision in the remumeration payable to Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu
(DIN: 02066748) as Whole Time Dircctor of the Company with cffect from 1% April, 2024 to 3 1" March, 2027 on the
remuncration and perquisites sct oul hereunder with liberty io the Board ( which term shall include any committee constituted
by the Board) from time to time to alter the said terms and conditions and to revise upwards the salary and perquisites as
hercin mentioned in such manner as may be decided by the Board in the best interest of the Company and as may be
permissible at law vie:

(1) Salary-Monthly basic salary of Rs. 14,787/~ ({Rupees Fourteen Thousand Seven Hundred and Eighty Scven only)
(2) Allowances ! Benefits /Perquisites
A The Whole Time Dircctor shall be paid House Rent Allowance equivalent to 40% of basic salaryic. Rs.5.915/- pm.
B. Other Perguisites / Allowances:
i.  Medical Allowance 10% ofbasic Salary 1.c. Rs. 1 479/-p.m.
ii. Toursand Travel: Rs. 28716/ p.m.
il Entertainment Allowance: Rs. 287 16/- p.m.
iv. CantcenAllowance: Rs. 28,71 6/-p.m.
v. Performance Allowance Rs. 9,572/ p.m.
vi. Medical and Personal Accident Insurance.

vii Conveyance: The Company shall provide suitable conveyance facilitics as per requirements.
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viii. Telecom / Computer facilitics: The Company shall provide telecom / computer facilitics as per requirements
C. (i) Contribution to Provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund as per the Rules of the Company to the
extent these either singly or put together do not excecd the limit laid down under the Income Tax Act, 1961 or
under any statutory modification or re-cnactment thercof;

(1) Gratuity payable al a ratc not cxceeding half a2 month’s salary for cach completed year of service, For the
purposcs of Gratuity, Provident Fund, Superannuation and other like benefits, the service of the Managing
Director will be considered continuous scrvice with the Company and change of designation or rencwal of
appointment will not be considered as any break in service.

(1i1) Leave on full pay and allowanees but not excecding onc month's leave for 11 month's service, cncashment of
unavailed camed leave as per Rules of the Company and / or at the end of the tenurce being permitted.

{(iv) Expenses or Reimbursement of entertainment and other business promotion cxpenscs actually incurred by the
Whaole Time Dircetor in the course of business of the Company.

In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits of the Company in any year, the Whole Time Dircetor shall be entitled to payment
by way of salary and perquisites as specified above subject to the restrictions specified in Schedule Vito the Acl.

The Company shall pay to the Whole Time Dircetor compensation for loss of office, or as consideration for loss of office or
retirement from office or in connection with such loss or retirement, in accordance with the provisions of Scction 191 and 202
ofthe Act

Either party shall be entitled to terminate the appointment by giving 90 days notice in writing to the other. The Whole Time
Dircetor shall not be entitled to Sitting Fees for attending mectings of the Board of Directors of the Company or any
Committee or Committees thereof.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT thc Board of Dircctors be and is hercby authorise to vary or change the structure of
remuncration componcnt on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committce of the Board, as and when
revicwed by the Company or under any law for the time being in foree, which shall be within the limit of total remuncration
approved for their appointment;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu,
the Company has no profits or its profits are imadequate, the Company will pay remuncration by way of salary and perguisites
as specificd above subject to the restrictions sct out in Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, thc Board of Dircetors be and arc hercby authorized to increasc and / or vary the terms and
conditions aforesaid within the limitations specified in that behalfin Schedule Vo the Act or any statutory modification or re
cnactment thereof for the time being in force or otherwise as may be permissible atlaw;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Whole Time Dircetor shall be liable to retire by rotation as long as he continues to be
Whaole Time Dircetor of the Company;

AND RESOLVED LASTLY THAT the Board of Dircetors be and are hereby authonzed to take all such steps as may be
nceessary, desirable orexpedient to give effect to this Resolution.™

5. TO APPROVE RE-APPOINTMENT OF DR. SMITA HAJARI (DIN: 08763920) AS A NON EXECUTIVE
INDEPENDENTDIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

To consider and, ifthought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Scetions 149, 150, 152, Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, i
any, ofthe Companics Act, 2013 (Act), read with the Rules made thercunder, Regulation 16 (1)(b) and 25(8) including such
other applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosurc Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any
statutory modification(s) or rc-cnactment thercof for the time being in force) and based on the recommendation of
MNomination and Remuncration Committce and Board of Dircctors, Dr. Smita Hajan (DIN: 08763920), an Indcpendent
Dircetor of the Company whose period of office is liable to expire on July 23, 2025, and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing {rom a member under Section 160 of the Act and Rules thercofincluding amendments thereunder,
proposing his candidaturc for the office of Dircetor of the Company, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent
Dircetor, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office fora scoond term of five consceutive years with cffect from July 24, 2025
to July 23, 2030.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all
such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedicnt to give effect to this resolution.™

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Ajay Shrivastava

Place: Burhanpur Company Secretary
Date: August 13, 2024 Membership No.: ACS 41817
NOTES:-

1. Theexplanatory statement pursuant to Scetion 102( 1) of the Companics Act, 2013, in respect of the special business as sct out
above 1s annexed hereto.

2. Pursuant to the General Circular numbers 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, 022022 and 10/2022 issucd by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) dated April 8, 2020, Apnl 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, May 5,2022, Dececmber 28, 2022, Scptember 25,
2023 and Clanfication Circular dated January 13, 2021 and Circular number SEBVHO/CFDYCMD U/ CIR/P2020/79 dated
May 12, 2020 and SEBI/HO/CFDVCMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated Januwary 15, 2021, Circular number
SEBI/HO/CFDYCMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023
and SEBLHO/CFDYCFD-PoD-2/PACIR/2023/167 dated October 07, 2023 issucd by the Securitics and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) (hercinafler collectively referred o as “the Circulars™), companics arc allowed to hold AGM through
VC/OAVM, without the physical presenee of memboers at a common venue. Henee, in compliance with the Circulars, the
AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM for the calendar year 2024 and the registered office of the Company
i.c. 98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur, MP will be the deemed venue of the AGM. In accordance with the said Circulars, hard
copics of the AGM Notice and Annuzl Report are not eirculated to the members.

3. Since the AGM is being held in accordance with the Circulars through VO, the Facility for appointment of proxics to attend
and cast vote on behalf of the members is not available.

4. Participation of members through VC/OAVM will be reckoned for the purpose ol quorum for the AGM as per Scction 103 of
the Companics Act, 200 3 (“the Act™).

Members of the Company under the category of Institutional Investors are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM through
VC/OAVM. Corporate members intending to authorize their representatives to participate and vote at the AGM are requested
to send a certified copy of the Board resolution / authonzation letter to the Company or upload on the VC portal / c-voling
portal.

6. In compliance with applicable provisions of the Companics Act, 2013 rcad with aforcsaid MCA circulars the 16” Annual
Gieneral Mecting of the Company being conducicd through Video Conferencing (VC) herein after called ase- AGM™.

!-J'l

7. e-AGM: The Company has appointed M/s. KFin Technologies Limited, Registrars and Transfer Agents, to provide Video
Conferencing facility for the Annual General Mecting and the atiendant enablers for conducting of the e- AGM.

8. The Members can join the e-AGM 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by
following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.

9.  The Register of Dircetors and Key Managernial Personnel and their sharcholding maintained under Scetion 170 of the Act, and
the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the dircctors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will
be available clectronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be
available for clectronic inspection without any fec by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of
AGM, ic. Scptember 27, 2024 and Members sccking to inspect such documents and ask any information pertaining to the
above can send an email to complaints{@itexmopipe.com. The same will be replicd by the Company suitably.

10. Members whose sharcholding is in clectronic mode are requested to direct notifications about change of address, mobile
number and email IDs to their respective depository participants(s) ( DP)and also to guote Folio Number/Client ID/DP 1D, in
all their comespondence with the Company/DP.
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1. Members secking any information with regard to the accounts are requested to wrile to the Company at an early date, so as to
cnablc the management to keep the information ready at the mecting.

12. The Share Transfer Book and Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from 217 September, 2024 to
27" Scptember, 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Mceting of the Company.

13. Incompliance with Section 108 of the Act, the corresponding Rules made thercunder and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (*the Listing Regulations™) and in terms of SEBI Circular no.
SEBIHOYCFD/CMDY CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020, the Company has provided a facility to its members to
exercise their votes clectronically through the clectronic voting (“remote e-voling™) facility provided by the KFin
Technologics Limited (KFin), the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents (“RTA™) of the Company.

14. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior Lo the AGM may participate in the AGM but shall not be entitled
to cast their voles again. The instructions for remotc e-voling by members holding shares in dematerialized mode and for
members who have not registered their email address is provided in the c-voting scetion which forms part of this Notice.

15. The Board of Dircetors have appointed C8 Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Company Scerctary in Practice (FCS - 5396 and CP No.
4715), as the Scrutinizer to scrutinizc the remote c-voting as well as the c-voting at the AGM, ina fair and transparcnt manner.

16. Members holding shares as on cut-off date, i.c., Fnday, September 20, 2024, may cast their voles clectronically. A member
will not be allowed to vole agam on any resolution on which his vote has already been cast. The voting rights of members shall
be proportionate to their share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i_c. as on Scptember 20,
2024. A person who is not a member as on the cut-off date is requested to treat this Motice for information purposes only.

17. The remote c-voling period commences on Tuesday, September 24, 2024 at 9:00 am {IST) and cnds on Thursday,
September 26, 2024 at 5:00 pm (IST). During this period, members holding shares cither in physical or dematenalized form,
as on cul-off date, i.e. as on Friday, Scptember 20, 2024, may cast their voles clectronically. The remolte e-voting module will
be disabled by the RTA for voting thereaficr. A member will not be allowed to vote again on any resolution on which vote has
dlready been cast through remote e-voting.

18. Onece the vote on a Resolution is cast by the sharcholder cither through remote c-voting or at the AGM, he/she shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently.

19 In pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of Companics (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, Shn Ajay Shrovastava, Company Scerctary is authonized and responsible to address the gricvances connected
with the clectronic voting and contact details of him 15 as under: E-mail: esigtcxmopipe.com. Tel: 07325-255122, Address:
Texmo Pipes and Products Limited, 98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur - 450331, MP.

20. The facility for c-voling at the c-AGM will also be made available. Members present in the e- AGM through VC/OAVM and
who have not cast their vote on the resolutions through remole e-voting and arc otherwisce not barred from doing so, shall be
cligible to vote through the c-voting system during the c-AGM.

21. The results of the remote c-voting and poll in the e- AGM shall be declared within 2 (Two) working days of conclusion of the
c-AGM and will be published on the website ofthe Company and also intimated to the Stock Exchanges.

22, In compliance with the Circulars, the Annual Report for 2023-24, the Notice of the 16th AGM and the instructions for remote
c-voting along with other relevant information arc being sent only through clectronic mode to those members whose email
address is registered with the Company / depository participant(s).

23, We urge members to support our commitment lo environmental protection by choosing to reccive the Company's
communication through cmail. Members holding shares in demat mode, who have not registered their email addresses are
requested to register their email addresses as per the instructions provided by your respective depository participanis or RTA.

24. Members may also note that the Notice of the 16™ AGM and the Annual Report for 2023-24 will also be made available on the
Company’s website, hitps:/iexmopipe.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges, e, BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited, at www.bscindia com and www.nscindia.com respectively, and on the website of RTA,
hitps://evoting kfintech.com.

25. Members who have acquired shares afier the dispatch of notice and before the cut-off date may approach the Company/RTA
for issuance of User [D and Password for exercising their votes by clectronic means.

26. SEBI has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account Number (PAN) by cvery participant in the sccuritics market.
Members holding shares in clectronic form are therefore requested to submit their PAN to their depository participant(s).
Members holding sharcs in physical form are required to submit their PAN details to the RTA.
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27. SEBlvide its Circular No. SEBVHO/MIRSD/MIRSD RTAMB/P/ CIR/2021/655 dated 3™ November 2021 and clarification
on the same dated 14" December 2021, on Common and Simplificd Norms for processing Investor’s Service Request by
RTAs, has mandated the furnishing of PAN, Address with PIN code, Email address , Mobile No., Bank Account details |
Specimen Signature & Nomination by holders of physical sccuritics and that “From 1" January 2022, RTAs shall not process
any scrvice requests or complainis received from the holder(s)elaimant(s), Gll PAN, KYC and Nomination documents/
details are received

PROCEDURE AFOR LOGIN FOR E-VOTING AND ATTENDING AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM FOR
INDIVIDUALSHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE:

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 09, 2020, on c-Voting facility provided by Listed Companics, Individual
sharcholders holding sccurities in Demat mode are allowed to vote through their Demat account maintained with Depositonies
and Depository Participants. Sharcholders arc advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their Demat accounts to
access c- Voling facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Individual A. User already registered for IDeAS facility:
sharcholders I. Open hitps://eservices.nsdl.com
holding sccuritics Click on the “Bencficial Owner” icon under ‘IDeAS” scction.

2.
in Demat mode |3 o he new page, enter User ID and Password. Post successful authentication, click on “Access to ¢
with National Voling”

Securitics Click on Bank Name or e-Voting service provider and you will be re-dirceted to e-voting service

=

D-IL-“FH:'!HilU]’}’ . provider website for casting your vote duning the remote e-Voting period.
Linitod { THS0L7) User not registered for IDeAS e-Services:

To register, open hitps:/eservices.nsdl.com cither on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Sclect “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click on
https:/eservices nsdl. com/Sccure Webd/ldeasDircetReg jsp.

Proceed with completing the required ficlds

By visiting the ¢ Voting website of NSDL:

e - -

Open https:/www.cvoting nsdl.com/ cither on 2 Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Click on the icon “Login” which is available under “SharcholderMember” section

R o I

A new sereen will open. You will have to enter your User 1D (ie. your sixteen digit Demat account

number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Venfication Code as shown on the screen.

4. Post successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can sce
c-Voling page.

5. Click on Bank name or e-Voting scrvice provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voling service

provider website for casting your vole duning the remote ¢ Voting period.

Individual
Sharcholders
holding sceuritics
m Demat mode
with Central
Depository
Services (India)
Limited (“CDSL™)

>

Existing user who has opted for Easi'Easiest
Click at hitps:/f'wcb.cdshindia.com/mycasihomelogin or www.edslindia.com

Click on New System Mycasi.

Login with user 1D and Password

After suceessful login of Easi / Easiest, Option will be made available to reach e-voting page
Click on e-voling service provider name to cast your voie

User not registered for Easi/Easiest

Option to register is available at hitps:/fweb.cdslindia. com/mycasi./Registration/ EasiRegistration.

Proceed with completing the required fields.
By visiting the e-Vobing website of CDSL:
Visit at www.cdslindia.com

Providc Dematl Account Number and PAN No.

=M =E Wb A NN =

=l

e

System will authenticaie user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the

4.  Afler successful authenbication, uscer will be provided links for the respechve c-voling service

provider where the c-voling 15 1n progross.
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Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your Demat account through your Depository Participant
Sharcholders registered with NSDL/CDSL for ¢-Voting facility.

(holding sccuritics | Once login, you will be able to sce - Voting option. Once you click on c-Voting option, you will be

in Demat mode) | redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site afler successful authentication, wherein you can sce - Voting
login through their | feature. Click on Bank Name or ¢-Voting scervice provider name and you will be redirected to ¢-Voting
depository scrvice provider website for casting your vole during the remole e-Voling period.

participants
Important note: Mcmbers who arc unable to retricve User IDY Password arc adviscd to use Forget User ID and Forget Password
option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Sharcholders holding sceuritics in demat mode for any technical issucs related to login through
Depository i.c. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Sharcholders holding Members facing any technical issuc in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a

sccuritics in Demat mode with NSDL | requestat evotingfagnsdl.co.in or call at toll frecno_: 1800 1020990 and 180022 44 30

Individual Sharcholders holding Mcmbers facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a

sccuritics in Demat mode with CDSL | request at helpdesk.cvoting(iledslindia. com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 22
23058542-43.

I} Login method for remote e-voting for shareholders other than individual shareholders holding securities in demat
muode and sharehoelders holding securities in physical mode.

i.  Imitial password is provided in the body of the c-mail.
ii. Launch internet browser and type the URL: hitps://evoting. kfintech.com in the address bar.

iii. Enter the login credentials i.e. User ID and password mentioned in your e-mail. Your Folio No/DP ID Clicnt 1D will be
your User ID. However, if you are already registered with KFin for e-voting, you can use your cxisting User 1D and
password for casting your votcs.

iv.  Afterentering the correct details, click on LOGIN.

v.  You will reach the password change menu wherein you arc reguired to mandatorily change your password. The new
password shall comprisc minimum 8 characters with at least one upper casc (A-Z), onc lower casc (a-2), onc numeric
value (0-9) and a special character (@, #, $, cte.). Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other
person and take utmost care to kecp your password confidential.

vi. Younced tologin again with the new credentials.

vii. On specessful login, the system will prompt you to sclect the EVENT e, TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS
LIMITED - AGM.

viii. On the voting page, the number of shares (which represents the number of voles) held by you as on the cut-off date will
appear. If you desire to cast all the wvoles assenting/dissenting to the resolution, cnter all shares and click
FOR"AGAINST” as the case may be or partially in *“FOR’ and partially in *AGAINST’, but the total number in *FOR’
and/or *AGAINST taken together should not exceed your total sharcholding as on the cut-off date. You may also choose
the option “ABSTAIN", in which case, the shares held will not be counted under either head.

ix. Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choosc the voting process scparately for cach folio/demat
account.

x. Castyour voles by sclecting an appropriate option and click on *SUBMIT’. A confirmation box will be displaycd. Chick
“0OK" to confirm, clse *CANCEL’ to modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote
subscquently. During the voting period, you can login multiple times till you have confirmed that you have voted on the
resolution.

xl.  Corporate/institutional members (i.c. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, ctc.) arc required to send scanned image
(PDF/IPG format) of certificd truc copy of relevant board resolution/authority letter cle. together with attested specimen
signaturc of the duly authorised signatory(ics) who 1sfare authorised to vote, to the Scrutinizer through cmail at
cadincshgupta@gmail .com and may also uplead the same in the e-voting module in their login. The scanned image of
the above documents should be in the naming format *“BFL. EVENT No.”
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xil. Incasc ol any querics/grievances, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for members and e-voting User

Manual available at the *download’ section of hitps:Vevoting kfintech_com or call KFin on 1R800 309 4001 (toll frec).
A. Voting at e-AGM

i.  Only those members/sharcholders, who will be present in the ¢- AGM and who have not cast their vote through remote o
voting and arc otherwisc not barred from doing so are cligible to vote.

ii. Members who have voted through remote e-voting will still be cligible to attend the e- AGM.

iti. Members attending the ¢-AGM shall be counted for the purposc of reckoning the quorum under section 103 ofthe Act.

iv. Voting at - AGM will be available at the end of the - AGM and shall be kept open for 15 minutes. Members viewing the o
AGM, shall elick on the “e-voting” sign placed on the left-hand bottom comer of the video screen. Members will be required
to use the credentials, o login on the ¢ Mecting webpage, and elick on the *Thumbs-up®icon against the unit to vole.

B. [Instructions for members for attending the e-AGM

i. Members will be able to atiend the e AGM through VC/OAVM or view the live webeast of ¢ AGM provided by KFin at

hitps://emectings. kfintech.com by using their remote c-voting login credentials and by clicking on the tab “video
conference”. The link for - AGM will be available in members login, where the EVENT and the name of the Company

can be sclected.

ii. Members are encouraged to join the meeting through devices (Laptops, Desktops, Mobile devices) with Google Chrome
for scamless experience.

iii. Further, members registered as speakers will be required to allow camera during ¢ AGM and henee are requested to usc
intcmet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the mecting.

iv. Members may join the mecting using headphones for better sound clarity.

v.  While all efforts would be made to make the meeting smooth, participants connecting through mobile devices, tablets,
laptops, cle. may at imes expenence audio/video loss due to fluctuation in their respective networks. Use of a stable Wi
Fi or LAN conncction can mitigate some of the technieal glitches.

vi. Members, who would like to cxpress their vicws or ask questions duning the c-AGM will have to register themsclves asa
speaker by visiting the URL hitps:/Yemectings kfintech.com/ and clicking on the tab *Speaker Registration” during the
peried starting from Scptember 21, 2024 (09.00 a.m. ) up to Seplember 23, 2024 (05.00 p.m.). Only thosc members who
have registered themsclves as a speaker will be allowed to express their views/ask guestions duning the ¢-AGM. The
Company rcserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the ¢- AGM. Only
questions of the members holding sharcs as on the cut-off date will be considered.

vii. A video puide assisting the members attending - AGM cither as a speaker or participant is available for quick referenee
at URL hitps-//emectimgs. kfintech.com/, under the “How It Works™ tab placed on top of the page.

viil. Members who need technical assistance before or duning the ¢-AGM can contact KFin at emectings{itkfintech.com or
Hclplinc: 18003094001.

Procedure for Registration of email and Mobile: securities in physical mode

Physical sharcholders are hercby nolified that based ion SEBI Circular number: SEBVHO/MIRSDYMIRSD-PoD
1/P/CIR/2023/37, dated March 167, 2023, All holders of physical sccuritics in listed companics shall register the postal address
with PIN for their cormesponding folio numbers. It shall be mandatory for the sccurity holders to provide mobile number.
Morcover, to avail online services, the sceurity holders can register ¢-mail 1D Holder can register/update the contact details
through submitting the requisite ISR 1 form along with the supporting documents.

ISR | Form can be obtained by following the link: hitps://ris. kfintech.com/clientservices/isc/default aspx
ISR Form(s)and the supporting documents can be provided by any onc of the following modes.

a) Through “In Person Verification” (IPV): the authorized person of the RTA shall venify the oniginal documents fumished by the
investor and retain copy(ics) with IPV stamping with date and initials; or

b)  Through hard copics which are sclf-attcsted, which can be shared on the address below; or
Name KFIN Technologies Limited

Address Sclenium Building, Tower-B,

PlotNo 31 & 32, Financial District,
Manakramguda, Scrilingampally,

Hyderabad, Rangareddy, Telangana India - 500 032,
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¢} Through clectronic mode with e-sign by following the link: htips://mis kfinlech com/clicniserviees/isc/default aspxd
Dectailed FAQ can be found on the link: https://ris kfintech.com/fag. hitm]
For more information on updating the email and Mobile details for seeunities held in clectronic mode, please reach out to the
respective DP(s), where the DEMAT a/c is being held.
The Results shall be declared forthwith by the Chairman or a person authorized by Board in writing and the Resolutions will
be deemed to be passed on the AGM date subject to the requisite number of votes cast in favor of the Resolution(s).

The Results declarcd alongwith the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s websile hitps:/ficxmopipe.com
and on the website of RTA http://cvoting kfintcch.com within 2 (Two) working days from the conclusion of the c-AGM and
shall also be communicated to the Stock Exchanges where the Company s shares arc listed.

Additional notes for Shareholders:
Payment of Dividend through electronic mode only for Physical Foilios:

SEBI, vide its circular dated November 03, 2021 (subscquently amended by circulars dated December 14, 2021, March 16,
2023 and November 17, 2023 ) mandated that the seeurity holders (holding sceuritics in physical form), whose folio(s) arc not
updated with the KYC details (any of the details viz., PAN; Choice of Nomination; Contact Details; Mobile Number and
Bank Account Details and signature, if any) shall be eligible for any payment including dividend, interest or redemption in
respect of such folios, only through electronic mode with effect from April 01, 2024,
You may also refer to SEBI FAQs by accessing the link :
hitps:/fwww.schigov.in/schi_data/faghilesjan-2024/1 704433843359 pdf (FAQ No 38 & 39)
For the purposc of updation of KY'C details against your folio, you arc requested to send the details to our RTA, Mis. KFin
Technologics Limited (Unit: Texmo Pipes and Products Limited), Sclenium Tower-B", Plot No 31 & 32, Gachibowli,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad - 500032, Telangana
a.  Through hard copics which should be sclf-attested and dated QR
b. Through electronic mode, provided that they are sent through E-mail id of the holder registered with RTA and all
documents should be clectronically/digitally signed by the Sharcholder and in case of joint holders, by first joint
holder. OR

¢.  Throughweb- portal of our RTAKFin Technologics Limited - hitps:/ris kfintech.com

Investors can download the following forms & SEBI Circulars, which are also uploaded on the website of the company and
on thewebsite of Kfin Technologies Limited ; https://ris kfintech.com/clientscrvices/isc/isrforms. aspx
a.  FormISR-1 duly filled in along with sclf attested supporting documents for updation of KYC details

b. Form ISR-2 duly filled in for banker attestation of signature along with Original cancelled cheque with your
namc(s) printcd thereon or sclf-attested copy of bank passbook/staternent

¢. Form SH-13 for updation of Nomination for the aforesaid folio OR ISR-3 for “Opt-out of the Nomination
Application(s) by our RTAKFINTECH

Members are requested to note that as an ongoing endeavor to enhance sharcholders experienee and leverage new technology,
Kfintech has developed following applications for sharcholders:

Investor Support Centre:

Members are herchy notificd that our RTA , KFin Technologices Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologics Private Limited),
based on the SEBI Circular (SEBIVHO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/72 ) dated Jun 08, 2023, have created an online
application which can be accessed at hitpsz//ris.kfintech.com/defaultaspx#! > Investor Scrvices = Investor Support.

Members are required to register / signup, using the Name, PAN, Mobile and email 1D, Post registration, user can login via OTP
and exceute activities like, raising Service Request , Query | Complaints | check for status, KYC details, Dividend | Interest |,
Redemptions, eMecting and ¢ Voling Details.

Quick link to access the signup page: hitps-/kprism_kfintech.com/signup

Summary of the features and benefits are as follows:

I. The provision for the sharcholders to register online.

2. OTPbascdlogin(PAN and Registercd mobile number combination )
3. Raise serviee requests, general query, and complaints.
4

Track the status of the reguest.
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5. View KYC status for the folios mapped with the specific PAN.
6. Quick links for SCORES, ODR, c-Mcctings and cVoting.
7. Branch Locator
8 FAQ's
Senior Citizens investor cell:
As part of our RTAs initiative to enhanee the investor experience for Senior Citizens, a dedicated ecll has been newly formed to
assist exclusively the Senior Citizens inredressing their gnevances, complaints, and quenies. The Senior Citizens wishing Lo avail
this service can send the communication with the below details to the email id, senior.citizenf@kfintcch.com
Scnior Citizens (above 60 years of age) have to provide the following details:
I. [Dproofshowing Date of Birth
2. Folio Mumber
3. Company Namc
4. MNaturc of Gricvance

The cell closely monitors the complaints coming from Senior Citizens through this channel and assists them at cvery stage of
processing till closure of the grievance.
Online PV:
In today's ever-changing dynamic digital landseape, security, foolproof systems and efficiency in identity verification are
paramount. We understand the need to protect the interests of you (sharcholders) and also comply with KYC standards. Ensuring
security and K'Y C complianee is paramount of imporianee in today's remode world. Digital identity venfication, using biometrics
and digital ID document checks, helps combat fraud, even when individuals aren't physically present. To counteract common
spoofing attempis, we engage in capturing liveness detection and facial comparison technology.
We arc cxcited to announce that our RTA has introduced an Online Personal Venfication (OPV) process, based on livencss
detection and document verification.
Key Benefits:
« A fully digital process, only requiring interncl access and a device.
= Effcctively reduces fraud for emote and unknown applicants.
+  Supports KYC reguirements.
Here"s how it works:
I.  Usersreccive alink via cmail and SMS.
II. Usersrecord a video, take a sclfic, and caplurc an image with their PAN card.
II. Facial companson ensures the user’s identity matches their venified 1D (PAN).
WhatsApp:

Sharcholders can usc WhatsApp Number: (91) 9 10 009 4099 to avail bouquet of scrvices.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE
MEETING

{Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015}

ANNUAL GENERAL

Name Date of Birth | Date of Qualification | Mature of his | Relationship | Directorship Membership | Number of
appointment fher expertise | between in other listed ol shares held
in specific dircctors entities, and Committees | in the
functional inter-se listed entities  |of other Comparny
arcas from which listed entitics|
the person has
resigned in the
past three years,
Mrs. Rashmi 27051967 |13.08.2013 | BA. Business Wifc of Mr. | Nil Nil 47,010,092
Aprawal Management | Sanjay Kumar
(DIN: D03 16248) Agrawal
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Dr. Smita Iajari (30.06.1979 |24.07.2020 | Doctorate & | Admindstration | Nil Nil Mil Mil
(DN 08) Masters in and

Personne] Management

Management

and Industrial

Relations

Brief profile of Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal (Chairperson and Whole-Time Director)

Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal (DIN: 003 16248) aged about 57 years is the Chairperson of the Company. She is one of the Promoters of the
Company. She is an Arts Graduate from Magpur University, and having more than 26 years of rich cxpericnee in the ficld of
forming the policics relating to Marketing and Human Resource Development. Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal has been associated with
the Company since 2013 and looking after the affairs of the Company as Chairperson of the Company, and from 015t Scptember,
2011 8, she continues as a Whole Time Dircetor of the Company and currently appointed for a term of five years we.f. Scptember 1,
2023 till August 31, 2028,

She is also Designated Pariner in our promoter group entity namcly M/s. Shree Padmavati Imigations LLP and a group entity M/s.
Texmo Petrochemicals LLP. She is also partner in our promoter group entitics and also a Director in Texmo Pipes Foundation and
Director in Subsidiary Group Companies Shree Venkatesh Indusinies Private Limited and Shree Venkatesh Polymers Private
Limited.

Brief profile of Dr. Smita Hajari (Non-Executive Independent Director)

Dr. Smita Hajar (DIN: 08763920) aged 45 years holds the Degree of Masters in Personnel Management and Industrial Relations
from the Jiwaji University, Gwalior and holds Ph.D. Degree from same Universily and is in the ficld of edueation since the year
2002. She is presently associated with Thakur Shivkumar Singh Memorial Management College, Burhanpur as a Principal and
Head of MBA Department. Prior to this, she has worked with MAIPS College, Burhanpur as Academic Incharge. She also heads
various Organization Working Committces of the existing institution. She has over 22 years of experience in the related ficld. She
also holds expertise in industrial policy, mdustrial administration and planning and corporate management.
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
The following Statement scts out all material facts relating to the Business mentioned in the accompanying Notice:
ITEMNO.3

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuncration of the Cost Auditor
M5 Saurabh Parikh & Associates, Cost Accountants to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year
ending March 31, 2025, the remuncration will be Rs. 80,000/~ (Rupces Eighty Thousand only).

In accordance with the provisions of Scction 148 of the Act read with the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the
remuncration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the Sharcholders of the Company.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution as sct out in llem No. 3 of this Notice for your approval.

Nonc of the Dircctors/ Key Managenial Personnel of the Company! their relatives i, in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or othcrwisc, in the resolution sct out at Item No. 3 of the Notice.

ITEMNO. 4

Shri Vijay Prasad Pappu has been associated with the Company since incorporation and looking after the factory operations of the
Company as Whole Time Dircetor of the Company, and currently appointed for a period of five years w.c.f. 1" Scptember 2023 till
31" August 2028 upon the terms and conditions as approved by the members on the basis of recommendation of Nomination and

Remuneration Committce and Board of Dircetors by passing special resolution in Extraordinary General Mecting held on 287
December, 2022,

Considering his competenee, expericnce and the operations of the Company during his tenure and compared to the remuncration
payable, the terms of his service and remuneration is sought to be revised as per annual revision, as sct out in the resolution, and
which may also bc deemed to be a part of this explanatory statement, are considered to be guite just, fair and reasonable. The
Resolutions is accordingly recommended for your approwval.

Other information as required under Scction 11 of Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013 is as follows:

I. General Information

Sr. N Particulars Details
L. Naturc of Industry The Company is operated in Plastic Industry and engaged in production of Watcr
Tank, PVC, HDPE, SWR, Sprinkler, DRIP, CPVC Pipcs and Fittings cte.
7. Datc or expeeted date of The Company was incorporated in the year 2008 and is into commercial
commencement of commercial production since then.
production
3. In case of new companics, expected | Not Applicable.

date of commencement of activitics as
per project approved by financial
institutions appearing in the

prospecius
4. Financial performance based on given | Particulars Bs. in lakhs
indicators (as per Audited Stalements | Gross turnover including other income 53.959.08
for the year ended on 31.03.2024) | proiy hefore interest, depreciation and tax 293851
Intcrest 38570
Depreciation 1.043.35
Profit before tax 1,506 46
Currcnt tax 530.00
Dicferred tax 9.63
Shorl / (Excess) provisions for carlicr years 23 84
Profit / {(Loss) for the period 06225

5 Forcign investments or collaborations The Company is having ils overseas subsidiary in UAE viz Tapti Pipes and
if any Products Ltd FZE; except this the Company has not entered into material
foreign collaborations.
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I1. Information about the Directors concerned:

Sr. N Particulars ShriVijay Prasad Pappu

1. Background details Shri Vijay Prasad Papppu is onc of the Promoter, Dircetor and is associated with
the Company since its incorporation. He is Whole Time Dircctor cum Chicl
Financial Officer of the Company and managing the factory opcrations in and
cifective and cfficient manner over the years.

b3 Past remuncration Rs. 1,10,200/- per month including Company’s coninibution for him to Provident
Fund, Supcrannuation Fund or Annuity Fund or lcave cneashment (if any) in
accordance with the Rules & Regulations of the Company and Gratuity at a rate
not cxceeding 15 day’s salary for cach completed year of scrvice.

3. Recognition or awards

4. Job profile and suitability He has worked as Whole Time Director of the Company for 16 years, in which
capacity he has been devoting whole ime attention to the affairs of the Company
and is suilable for this position.

5 Remuncration proposcd Rs. 1,17.900/- per month including Company s contribution for him to Provident
Fund, Supcrannuation Fund or Annuity Fund or lcave cncashment (if any) in
accordance with the Rules & Regulations of the Company and Gratuity at a rate
not cxcecding 15 day s salary for cach completed year of service

6. Comparative remuncration profile with | Considering the size of the Company, the profile of Shri Vijay Prasad Pappu, the

respect to industry, size of the Responsibilitics entrusied upon him in his capacity as Whole Time Director cum
company, profile of the posiion and ~ |CF(, and also considering the Indusinial benchmarks, the Remumeration
peTson proposcd is based on annual revision.

7. Pccuniary relationship dircetly or Besides the emuneration proposed, Shn Vijay Prasad Pappu doces not have any
indircetly with the company, or pecuniary relationship with the Company. No other managerial personnel is
relationship with the managerial concerned or interested in the above resolution

personnel, if any

Other information

Sr "'il] Particulars Details
L. Reasons of previous losscs or During the previous financial years some development has taken place and
inadequate profits Company’s [ocus is on operations and cost and expansion of business. These

affected the profitability of the Company up to large extent and however, resulis
are coming for growth and profitability in a broader perspective. Apart from that
Company is facing throat cutling competibion from big market players of the
Indusiry. Although Company is siriving hard to form ils own uniquencss and is
actively working and focussed towards the quality and reputed brand name for
rcaching to the cnd users of our products.

3 Steps taken or proposed to be taken for The Company is focusing in reducing its cost, in this scrics the Company has
improvement already sct up Solar Power Plant in ils premises which will result in substantial
savings in power cxpenscs, on the same line Company is keen towards
minimizing ils finance cost and obtain a positive impact on Net Worth and
financials ofthe Company. Apart from reducing the cost efforts are being made to
expand the reach of the Company to market and thercby inereasing the turnover
and profits of the Company and to have greater outlook and profitability and
growth in near future considering the present and future viability

1 Expectod increase in productivity and The Company is very conscious about improvement in productivity and is
profits in measurablc terms undertaking constant measurcs to improve it In view of vanous steps taken by
the Company, the Company is performing gradually better and it 15 also cxpected
to perform better in terms of profitability in the years to come. However, it might
be difficult in the present scenario to predict profits in measurable terms.
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111 Disclosures
l.  Allelements of remuncration package such as salary, bencfits, bonuses, stock options, pension cte. of all the directors.

2. Details of fixed component and performance linked incentives along with performance eriteria- Remuncration of
Dircetors is of fixed nature only.

Service contracts, nolice period, severance focs- Nil
4.  Stock options details, if any and whether the same has been issued at a discount as well as the peniod over which acerued
and over which exercisable- Nil

The Board recommends the special resolution as set out in ltem No. 4 of this Notice for your approval.

Shri Vijay Prasad Pappu himselfis interested in the Resolution. Except that none of the Directors or Key Managernial Personnel of
the Company or their relatives is directly or indircetly concemed or interested in the passing of the above resolutions.

ITEMNO.5

The Board of the Company in its mecting held on July 24 2020, appointed Dr. Smita Hajani (DIN: 08763920) as an Independent
Director for a term of 5 years. Her term is valid upto July 23, 2025.

Dr. Smita Hajari {DIN: 08763920) as a Board Member, made significant contnibution towards guiding the Company on various
stratcgic, Operational and business issucs and that the Company benefited immensely because of her vast expenienee.

Dr. Smita Hajan, aged about 45 years has rich expericnee of over 22 years in the arca of industrial policy, indusinal administration
and planning and corporate management.

The Board of Dircctors in its mecting held on August 13, 2024 based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuncration
Committee, and subject to the approval of members of the Company, considered re-appointment of Dr. Smita Hajan (DIN:
08763920) as an Independent Dircetor of the Company for a sceond term of 5 (five) consceutive years with cffect from July 24,
2025, pursuant to Scction 149 (including other applicable provisions if any) of the Companics Act, 2013 and Rules thereof
including amendments thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including
amcndments thercunder.

She docs not hold any shares in the Company.

She is the Chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee & Corporate Social Responsibility Commitice and
Member of Audit Committee, Stakcholders Relationship Committee and Treasury Committce of the Company.

She docs not hold any dircctorship in any other Company.
She has attended all 4 meetings of the Board of Dircetors of the Company during the Finaneial Year 2023-24.

She is not disqualificd from being appointed as dircctor in terms of Scction 164 of the Companics Act, 2013 and Rules thercof
including amendments thercunder and has given her consent to act as dircetor.

The Company has also reccived declaration from Dr. Smita Hajan (DIN: 08763920) that she meet with the enitenia of
Independence as presceribed under sub-scction (6) of Scction 149 of the Companics Act, 2013 and Rules thereof including
amecndments thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) and 25(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, including amendments thercunder. The Company has received a notice in writing from a member under
Scction 160 of the Companics Act, 2013 and Rules thercof including amendments thercunder, proposing the candidature of Dr.
Smita Hajari (DIN: 08763920) for the office of Dircctor of the Company.

Dr. Smita Hajari (DIN: 08763920) meet the eriteria of necessary skills and Capabilitics required for the role to act as Independent
Direetor in terms of indusirial policy, indusirial administration and planning and corporate management.

The Board, based on the performance evaluation of Independent Directors and as per the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuncration Committee, considers that, given the background and experience and contnbutions made by Dr. Smita Hajani
during her tenure, the continued association of Dr. Smita Hajan would be beneficial to the Company, and it is desirable to continue
to avail her scrvices as an Independent Director.

The Board is of the opinion that Dr. Smiia Hajan (DIN: 08763920) fulfils the conditions specificd in the said Act and the Rules
made thereunder and also possess requisite expertise and expenience (including the proficicney) and she is a person of high
imtcgrity and reputc so as (o cnable the Board to discharge its functions and dutics cffectively and she is independent of the
managcmenk.

The Board considers that her experienee and expertise would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to avail

services of Dr. Smita Hajan (DIN: 08763920) as an Independent Director for a2 sccond term of 5 (five) consceutive years with
cffeet from July 24, 2025.
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The draft letter for the re-appointment of Dr. Smita Hajan (DIN: 08763920) as an Independent Dircetor setting out the terms and
conditions is available for inspection by the members.

Except Dr. Smita Hajari (DIN: 08763920) and her relatives, nonc of the other Dircctors or Key Managenal Personnel of the
Company or their relatives arc concerned or interested financially or otherwise in this resolution. She is not related to any Dircetor
of the Company.

In terms of Scction 149 of the Companics Act, 2013 and Rules thereof including amendments thereunder and SEBI Listing
Regulation, 2015, including amendments thereunder, the resolution sct out at Item no. 5 of the Notice requires approval of the
members of the Company by passing special resolution.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Place: Burhanpur
Date: August 13, 2024 Ajay Shrivastava
Company Secretary

Membership No.: ACS 41817
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BOARD’S REPORT
To,
The Mcembers,
Your Dircctors have pleasure in presenting their 16™ Annual Report on the business and operations of your Company together with
the Audited Financial Statements and the Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 March, 2024
1. Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company (Standalone and Consolidated)
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2023-24 2022-213 2023-24 2022-23
Tumover 53,833.18 63,844.17 5342196 6384417
Profit before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 2,938.51 2.659.72 247554 (4.628.93)
Less Interest 3RR.T0 982.52 399.01 082.52
Less Depreciation 1,043 35 108297 1,062.64 1082.97
Profit before tax 1.506.46 594232 1,013.89 (6,694.43)
Liss Provision for tax
Currcnt tax 530.00 500.00 542.00 500.00
Deferred tax 2384 (34.73) 2384 (34.73)
Excess provision for carlier year (9.63) 1634 {1039 1634
Profit after tax 062.25 112.61 458.43 (7,176.04)
Prior year adjustment
Profit after tax & prior year adjustments 06225 112.61 46354 (7.176.04)
Profit after adjustment of discontinucd operations 962.25 112.61 463.54 (7,176.04)
Balance of profit brought forward from carlier years 227982 2.132.49 (1,899.35) 524197
Transferred from Revaluation Reserve 1.79 .79
Other comprehensive income (21.53) 34.72 (21.53) 34.72
Exchange difference on translation of financial statements 4,734.69 417917
of foreign operations
Profit available for 3,228.33 227982 (1.449.54) (1,899.35)
Appropriations:
Appropriations
Transfer to General Reserves
Proposed dividend:
Equity
Preference
Profit camicd to Balance Sheet 3,228.33 227982 (1,449.54) (1,899.34)

During the year under review, the Company recorded total revenuc of Rs 53,833.18 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 63,844.17
Lakhs in the previous year which is decrease by 15.68%. The Company has camed a nct profit of Rs. 96225 Lakhs as
compared to the profit of Rs. 112.61 Lakhs in the previous year. Your Directors are hopeful that the Company may continue
showing betier performance in coming year.

2. Change in nature of Business
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

3. Dividend

Your Dircctors do not recommended any dividend for the year ended 3 1™ March, 2024 and the available surplus be retained to
strength the net worth of the company.
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4. Transferto Reserves

Your Dircetors do not proposed any amount to be transferred to the Reserves for the year ended 317 March, 2024,
5. Details of Subsidiary / Associate Companies

The Company had one subsidiary namecly Tapti Pipes & Products Limited FZE (Overscas Subsidiary).

The Company has also incorporated a Wholly Owned Subsidiary namely Shree Venkatesh Polymers Private Limited on
30.04.2023 and has acquircd majority stake of 51% in Shree Venkatesh Industrics Private Limited, and thercfore it becomes
Subsidiary Company.

The consolidated financial statements of your Company for the financial ycar 2023-24, arc preparcd in compliance with
applicable provisions of the Companics Act, 2013, Accounting Standards and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The
consolidated financial statements have been preparcd on the basis of audited financial statements of the Company, its
subsidiarics, as approved by their respective Board of Dircotors.

A separate statement in Form AQC- | containing the salient features of financial statements of subsidiaries of your Company
forms part of consolidated financial statements in compliance with Seetion 129 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013.

6. Commission received by Directors from Subsidiary.

During the year under review none of the directors of the Company arc in receipt of the commission or remuneration from
subsidiary of the Company, as provided under section 197 (14) of the Companies Act, 2013,

7. Details relating to remuneration of Director, KMPs and employees
Disclosure pertaining Lo remuncration and other details as required Scction 197(12) of the Companics Act 2013 rcad with rule

5 (1) and 5(2) of the Companics (Appointment and Remuncration of Managenial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in
Annexure-A.

8. Particularsof Employees
The statement of cmployees who receives remuneration exceeding the limits specificd under Rule 5(2) of Companics
{Appointment & Remuncration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is also provided in Annexure — A to this report.

9. Particulars of loans, guarantees, investments outstanding during the financial year
Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and sccuritics provided along with the purposc for which the
loan or guarantce or sccurity 1% proposcd to be utilized by the recipient are provided in the standalone financial statement
(Please refer to Note 7 and B o the standalone financial statements).

10. Annual Return
As required under Section 92(3) read with scetion 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 12 of the Companics
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 including amendments thercunder, the Annual Return filed with the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA) for the Financial Year 2023-24 is available on the weh-link of the Company at
hitps:/ftcxmopipc.com and the Annual Return for Financial Year 2023-24 will be made available on the website of the
Company once itis filed with the MCA_

11. Depaosits
Your Company has nol invited/accepted any deposit within the meaning of Scetion 73 of the Companics Act, 2013 and Rules
made there under, during the year under review.

12. Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo
A statement giving details of conscrvation of energy, technology absorption, forcign exchange camings and out-go, in
accordance with the requircment of the Scction 134(3)m) of thc Companics Act, 2013 rcad with rule 8 of the Companics
{Account) Rules, 201 4 forms part of this Board’s Report and 15 annexed as Annexure - B.

13. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties
All contracts / arrangements [/ iransactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. Duning the year, the Company had entered into any contract /
arrangement / transaction with related partics which could be considercd material in accordance with the policy of the
Company on materiality of related party transactions. The particulars of contracts or armangements with related partics

referred to in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year 2023-24 in the prescribed format, AOQC 2 has
been enclosed with the report as Annexure - C.

The Policy on matcriality of related party transactions and manncr of dealing with related party transactions as approved by
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the Board may be accesscd on the Company s websitc at the link: hitps://tcxmopipe.com
14. Auditors:
A, Statutory Auditors:

The Statutory Auditors M/s Anil Kamal Garg & Company, Chartered Accountants, Indore (Firm Registration No.
004 186C) was re-appointed in 1 5" Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 26, 2023 for sceond term of five
consccutive years starting from the conclusion of 1 5% AGM Lo hold office till the conclusion of the 207 AGM.

The Statutory Auditors have given a confirmation to the cffeet that they are cligible to continue with their appointment
and that they have not been disqualificd in any manner from continuing as Statutory Auditors.

B. Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuant o provisions of Scction 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies ( Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed CS Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Company Secretary in
Practice, Indore (M.P.), to undertake the Sceretanial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25

C. CostAuditors:

In terms of the provisions of Scction 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as
amended from time to time, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Commitiee, has appointed
M/s. Saurabh Parikh and Associates, Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 101495) as Cost Auditor of the Company,
for the financial year ending 3 1st March 2025, on a remuncration as mentioned in the Notice convening the 16" Annual
Cicneral Mecting for conducting the audit of the cost records maintained by the Company.

A Certificate from M/s. Saurabh Parikh and Associates, Cost Accountants has been received o the effeet that their
appointment as Cost Auditor of the Company, if made, would be in accordance with

the limits specified under Section 141 of the Act and Rules framed thercunder.

A resolution secking Members® approval for remuneration payable to Cost Auditor forms part of the Notice of the 16th
Annual General Meeting of the Company and same is recommended for your consideration.

The Company is required o maintan Cost Records as specificd by the Central Government under sub-scction (1) of
scction 148 ofthe Companics Act, 201 3.

Accordingly, the Company has made and maintained such accounts and records.
15. AUDITOR'S REPORTS
A. Statutory Auditor’s Report:

The Notes on financial statement referred Lo in the Auwditors® Report are sellexplanatory and do not call for any further
commenis. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation oradverse remark.

B. Secretarial Auditor’s Report :

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 (1) of the Companics Act, 2013 read with the Companics { Appointment and
Remuncration of Managerial Personal) Rules, 2014, the Company has obtained a Scerctarial Audit Report in the
preseribed Form MR-3, from C8 Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Company Sceretary in practice, Indore {M.P.). The Company has
also taken Sccrctarial Compliance Report during the year from Scerctanal Auditor as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosurc Requirement) Regulations, 2015 requirement. The Scerctanial Auditor” Report dated 12.08.2024 is annexed
hercwith as Annexure - D. The Scerctarial Auditor has observed qualifications as above in the report as under:

a) The Company is required to take Special Contingency Insurance Policy for insuring the nisk ansing out of requirements
rclating to issuc of duplicale securitics, pursuant to Para 5 of SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSDYMIRSD RTAMBP/CIR/2022/70 dated 25" May, 2022. However, the Company has not taken the
required policy.

b) The SEBI has filed a civil appeal dated 02.12.2022 with Supreme court of India against impugned final order dated
30.09.2022 of thc Hon'ble Sccurities Appcllate Tribunal, Mumbai. Appeal is regarding sct aside of penalty of Rs. 25,00 Lacs
under Scction 23E of SCRA imposcd on the company. On 15.03.2024, Hon ble Supreme Court issucd notice and tagged the
matter with CANo. 474 1/202 1. The notice was received by the company on 13.04.2024. The matter continues to be sub judice
before the Hon"ble Supremc Court.

¢) The company has filed appeal dated 12.10.2023 before Sceuritics Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai on 14.10.2023 against the
Order No. QIA/AANVINIDA/24247/2022-23 dated 28.02 2023 (rcecived on 15.03.2023) passcd by The WTM of SEBL
Afier various hearings and orders, the matter is still pending before the said authority.
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The comments of the Board on the above arc as under:

a) The Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent M/s. KFin Technologices Litd. has duly obtained the said insurance
policy on behalf of the Company and is having this policy cover for all its clicnts and the same is duly complicd with.
However, the Company has presently 2.91,94 887 Equity Shares representing 99.99%, of the total cquity share capital of
the Company is held in dematenialized form with Mational Sccuritics Depository Limited and Central Depository
Scrvices (India) Limited and only 3 sharcholders holding 113 shares are held in physical form.

b) TheAppeal filed is regarding sct aside of penalty of Rs. 25.00 Lacs under Scction 23E of SCRA imposcd on the Company
against the Appeal Order dated 30.09.2022 of the Hon'ble Sceuritics Appellate Tnbunal, Mumbai and is tagged under the
matter with Civil Appeal No. 474172021 which is alrcady pending before issuance of this Order of Tribunal dated
30.09.2022 with the Hon"ble Supremc Court. The matter continues to be sub judice before the Hon"ble Supreme Court.

¢} The Company after perusal and analysis of the said order and in consultation with the Counsel with their duc advice and
legal opinion has filed an appeal dated 12.10.2023 before the Hon'ble Sceuritics Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai on
14.10.2023 against the said Order dated 28.02.2023 passcd by the Whole Time Member of SEBL. After various hearings
and orders, the matter is still pending before the said Tribunal. However, the amount of USD 3.49 million as mentioned by
SEBI, was alrcady reecived by Tapti Pipes & Products Limited FZE, the Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Texmo in
Scptember, 2012 and had additionally fumished a Certificate from a Charlered Accountant stating the same before the
Tribunal.

16. Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors other than those which are reportable to the Central Government

The Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors or Scerctarial Auditors of the Company have not reported any frauds to the Audit
Committce or to the Board of Dircctors under Scction 143(12) of the Companics Act, 2013, including rulcs made there under.

17. Share Capital

During the Financial Year 2023-24, there has been no change in the Authorized Share Capital of the Company & there has
been no change and inerease in issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company.

Ason 31.03.2024, the Company has authorized share capital of Rs. 36,00,00,000¢- divided into 3,60,00,000 Equity Sharcs of
Rs. 10/- cach & issucd, subscribed and paid-up share capital stands at Rs. 29,19,50,000/- divided into 2,91,95,000 Equity
Sharcs of Rs. 10¢- cach.

18. Disclosure regarding issue of employee stock options

The Company has not issucd any shares under employee's stock options scheme pursuant to provisions of Rule 12(9) of the
Companics (Sharc Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014,

19. Disclosure regarding issue of sweat equity shares

The Company has not issucd sweat equity shares pursuant to provisions of Scetion 54 read with Rule 8 of the Companics
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 during the Financial Year.

20. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Scction 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal (DIN: 003 16248), retires by
rotation al the ensuing Anmual General Mecting and being cligible offers herself for re-appointment. Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal
has given declaration in terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the effect that she 15 not disqualified from
being reappointed as a Dircetor of the Company.

During the year under review, Mr. Abdul Quader Motorwala was appointed and regulanized as Non-Exccutive Independent
Dircetor by way of Special Resolution through postal Ballot dated 1 0th May, 2023.

Afier the closure of financial year, Dr. Smita Hajar (DIN: 08763920), an Independent Director of the Company whose period
of office is lable to expirc on July 23, 2025, the Board of Dircctors in its mecting held on August 13, 2024 bascd on
rccommendation of Momination and Remuncration Committee, and subject to the approval of members of the Company at
the ensuing Annual General Mecting, considered re-appointment of Dr. Smita Hajan (DIN: 08763920) as an Indcpendent
Dircctor of the Company for a sccond term of 5 consceutive years with cffect from July 24, 2025 pursuant to Scction 149
{including other applicable provisions if any) of the Companics Act, 2013 and Rules thereof including amendments
thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including amendments
thereunder. She is not disqualificd from being appointed as director in terms of Scction 164 of the Companics Act, 20103 and
Rules thercof including amendments thercunder and has given her consent to act as dircctor. The Company has also received
declaration from Dr. Smita Hajan (DIN: 08763920) that shc mect with the criteria of Independence as prescribed under sub
section (6) of Scction 149 of the Companics Act, 2013 and Rules thercof including amendments thercunder and Regulation
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16(1}b) and 25(%) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regquirements) Regulations, 2015, including
amendments thercunder. The Company has received a notice in writing from 2 member under Scetion 160 of the Companics
Act, 2013 and Rules thercol including amendments thercunder, proposing the candidature of Dr. Smita Hajan for the office of
Director of the Company. The bricf profile of Dr. Smita Hajarn is also mentioned in the Notice of the ensuing Annual General
Mecting forming part of this Annual Report.

21. Declaration given by Independent Director(s) and reappointment.
In compliance with Scction 149 7) of the Act, all Independent Directors have given declaration that they mect the criteria of
indcpendence as laid down under Scction 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1Kb) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosurc Requircments) Regulations, 2015.
Mr. Abdul Quader Motorwala was appointed w.e.f 14" February, 2023 as Additional Non-Exceutive Independent Dircetor
and later Mr. Abdual Quader Motorwala were regularized through Members approval through postal Ballot
The Board of Dircctors also stated that the re-appointment of Independent Dircetor done was in consideration and regard to
his Integrity, Expertise and Experience (including the proficicney).
Other than the above, there arc no other appointment / re-appointment of Independent Dircetors of the Company in the
Financial Year 2023-24.

22. Internal Financial Controls
The Company belicves that intermal control 1s nccessary principle of prudent busincss governance that freedom of
management should be cxercised within a framework of appropriate checks and balances. The Company remains commiticd
to ensuring an cffective intemal control environment that inter alia provides assurance on orderly and cfficient conduct of
operations, sceurity of asscts, prevention and deteetion of frauds/errors, aceuraey and completeness of accounting records and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

The Company’s indcpendent and Internal Audit processes, both at the Business and Corporate levels, provide assurance on the
adequacy and cffectivencss of internal controls, compliance with opcrating systems, intermal policics and regulatory
requircments.

The Financial Staicments of the Company arc preparcd on the basis of the Significant Accounting Policics that are carefully
sclected by management and approved by the Board. These, in tum are supported by a set of divisional Delegation Manual &
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) thathave been established for individual units/ areas of operations.

The Company uscs SAP Systems as a business cnabler and also to maintain its Books of Account. The SOPs in tandem with
transactional controls built into the SAP Systems cnsurc appropriate scgregation of dutics, ticred approval mechanisms and
maintcnance of supporting records. The systems, SOPs and controls are reviewed by Senior management and audited by
Intemnal Auditor whose findings and recommendations are reviewed by the Audit Committee of Board of Dircetors and
tracked through to implementation.

The Company has in place adequate internzl financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements. Such controls have
been tested during the year and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed. Nonetheless the
Company recognizes that any internal financial control framework, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations and
accordingly, regular audit and review processcs cnsure that such systems are reinforced on an ongoing basis.

23. Number of meetings of Board of Directors and committees

The details of Board and Committce mectings are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between
the Mcetings was within the period as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

24, Committees of the Board
The details with respect to the compositions, powers, roles and terms of reference ete. of relevant Committees of the Board of
Directors are also given in the Corporate Governance Report which forms a part of this Annual Report. All recommendations
made by the Audit Committee duning the year were aceepted by the Board.

25. Familiarization Programme

The Company has conducted the programme through its Managing Dircetor, Whole-time Dircetor, Company Secrelary and
other Senior Managerial Personnel Lo famihianze the Independent Directors with Company in following arcas:

Familiarization with the Company;
Independent dircetors” roles, rights and responsibilitics;
Board dynamics & functions;
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Mature of the Industry in which the Company operates;
Business Model of the Company;
Compliance management.
The Policy on Familianization Programme may be aceessed on the Company s website al the link: hitps-/lexmopipe.com
26. Corporate Social Responsibility
The provisions of Scetion 135 of the Companics Act, 2013 is applicable to the Company, accordingly the Company has
developed and implemented Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives. The Board in its meeting held on October 28, 2020

adopted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company and the composition of the CSR Commitice is as
under:

1) Dr. Smita Hajari, Chairperson
2) Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Member
3) Dr. Parvez Anjum, Member:

In addition to the above the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company has recommended for incorporation
ofa Scetion & Company for underiaking CSR activitics. The samc was considered and approved by the Board of Dircctors of
the Company and incorporated as Scetion 8 Company namely “Texmo Pipes Foundation®, as a CSR arm of the Company for
undertaking CSR activitics.
The Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as Annexure- E.

27. BOARD EVALUATION:

Pursuant to provisions of the scction 134(3)(p), 1498) and Schedule I'V of the Companics Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of
SEBI Listing Regulations, annual performance evaluation of Dircetors as well as of the Audit Committee, Nomination &
Remuncration Committee and Stakcholders' Relationship Committee of the Board has been cammied out.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carmied out by the entire Board and the Performanee Evaluation
of Chairman and Mon-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors.

The manner in which the evaluation has been carried out has been provided in the Corporate Governanee Report

28. Corporate Governance
The Company continue to imbibe and emulate the best corporale governance practices aimed at building trust among all
stakcholders - sharcholders, employees, customers, supplicrs and others. The Company belicves that faimess, transparency,
responsibility and accountability arc the four key clemenis of corporale govemance. The Corporate Governance Report
presented in a scparale section forms an integral part of this Annual Report as Annexure - F.

29, Details of establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees
The Vigil Mechanism of the Company, which also incorporaies a whistle blower policy m lerms of the Listing Regulations,
includes an Ethics & Compliance Task Foree comprising scnior exccutives of the Company. Protected disclosures can be
made by a whistle blower through an ¢-mail, or dedicated telephone line or a letter to the Task Foree or to the Chairman of the

Audit Committce. The Policy on vigil mechanism and whistle blower policy may be aceessed on the Company’s websitc at
https://texmopipe.com. During the year under review no complaint was received in vigil mechanism.

30. Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Company framed a policy for Nomination and Remuncration of all Dircctors & KMPs cic in accordance with provisions
of scction 178 of Companics Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013,
provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosurc Requirements ) Regulations, 2015, to harmonize the aspirations of
human resources consistent with the goals of the Company. Board of Dircctors of the Company approved and updated the said
policy as and when required. The same may be accessed on the Company s website at: hitps://lexmopipe.com

The Momination and Remuneration Commitice works with the entire Board to determine the appropriate characienstics,
skills and expenence required for the Board as a whole and for individual members. Members arc expected to posscss the
required qualifications, integrity, cxpertisc and expericnce for the position. They should also possess the decp expertisc and
insights in scctors / arcas relevant to the Company and ability to contribute to the Company s growth.

31. Risk Management Policy

The Company, like any other enterprise, is exposcd to business risk which canbean  internal risks as well as external risks.
One ofthe key risks faced by the Company in today s scenario is the wide and frequent fluctuations in the prices of its raw
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material. Any further increasc in prices of raw materials could create a strain on the operating margins of the Company.
Inflationary tendencics in the cconomy and deterioration of macrocconomic indicators can impact the spending power of the
consumet because of which down trading from branded products to non-branded can occur which can affect the operating
performance of the Company.
Any unexpected changes in regulatory framework pertaining to fiscal benefits and other related issuc can affect our operations
and profitability.
However the Company is well aware of the above risks and as part of business siratcgy has put in mechanism to ensurc that
they are mitigated with timely action. The Company has a robust Business Risk Management (BRM) framework to identify,
cvaluale business risks and opportunitics. This framework sceks to creale transparency, minimize adverse impact on the
busincss objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage.
In the opinion of the Board of Dircetors, none of the aforementioned risks affect and/or threaten the cxistence of the Company.

31. Transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund
During the year under review the Company has no liability to transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

33. Management Discussion and Analysis Report
Management Discussion and Analysis, as required under Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with
Schedule V of said Regulations, forms part ofthis Board's report as Annexure - G

34. Directors® Responsibility Statement
In terms of provisions of Section 134(5) ofthe Companics Act, 2013, the Board of Dircctors Confirm that:

(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 2023-24, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

i1}  The dircetors had selecled such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a truc and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

{111)  The dircctors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safcguarding the asscts of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
othcrirrcgulantics;

(iv) Thedircetors had preparcd the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v}  The dircetors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(vi) Thedircctors had deviscd proper systems to cnsurc compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating cffectively.

35. Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016

Durning the year under revicw, there are no procecdings initiated against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

36. Details of difference between Amount of the valuation done at the time of One Time Settlement and the valuation done
while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof

During the year under review, there were no instances where the Company required the valuation for one time sctilement or
while taking the loan from the Banks or Financial institutions.

37. Secretarial Standards

The Company is in compliance with the Sceretarial Standards 1.c. 85-1 and 58-2, relating to *Mectings of the Board of
Dircctors’ and *General Mectings’, respectively as specified by the Instituie of Company Scerciaries of India.

38. Revision of Annual Financial Statements
There was no casc of tevision in financial statement during the year.
39. Voting Rights of Employees

There were no voting rights cxercised by any employee of the Company pursuant to the section 67(3) read with the Rule 16 of
the Companics (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.

40. Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company.
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There have been no material changes and commitments affecting financial position of the Company that have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of this report.

41. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunal

There were no significant and matenal orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunal impacting the going concern status
and Company s operations in future.

However, in previous years, the Company was in receipt of show cause notice from SEBI dated 16.07_ 2019 from the Office of
Adjudicating Officer pertaining to GDR 1ssuc of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has filed a reply agaimnst the said
notice on (8.03.2021. Also, a heaning before the Ld. Adjudicating Officer has been held on 18052022 However, the
Adjudicating Officer of SEBI passed an order on 28062022 imposcd a penalty of Rs. 10 Cr. under Section [5HA of the SEBI
Act, 1992 and Rs. 25 lakhs under Scetion 23E of the Secuniics Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) on the Company.
The Company afier perusal and analysis of the said order and in consultation with the Counscl with their duc advice and legal
opinion significd that the order has been passed on inaccurate asscssment of facts and on disproportionate grounds and
accordingly filcd an appeal before the Hon 'ble Sceurnitics Appellate Tribunal (SAT) against the said order on 05.08.2022_ The
Hon'ble Tribunal in its order passed on 30.09.2022 which was published by the Honble Tribunal on its website on October
06, 2022 considering the facts that the Order of Adjudicating Officer is being too harsh, cxeessive, disproportionate,
discriminatory and arbitrary against the running and growing industry and substantially reduced penalty on the Company to
Rs. 25 Lacs only. The said penalty has been duly paid.

However, the SEBI has filed a civil appeal dated 02_12.2022 regarding sct aside of penalty of Rs. 2500 Lacs under Scction
23E of SCRA with the Hon"blc Supreme court of India against impugned final order dated 30.09.2022 of the Hon'ble
Sceuritics Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai. Appeal is regarding sct aside of penalty of Bs. 2500 Lacs under Section 23Eof SCRA
imposcd on the company. On 15.03.2024, Hon ble Supreme Court issucd notice and tagged the matier with CA No.
4741/2021. The notice was received by the Company on 13.04.2024. The matter continues to be sub judice before the
Hon'ble Supreme Court

The Company in respect of the said matter also received a Show Cause NMotice dated 11.04.2019 from the Office of Whole

Time Member (WTM), SEBL. The Company and other notices filed their respective replics on 08.03.2021 and 20.08 2022,

Accordingly, a heaning before SEBI has been held on 23.08.2022. The WTM of SEBI passcd an Order on 28.02.2023

(reccived on 15.03.2023) in exercisc of powers conferred upon it under sections 11{1), 11 {(4) and JIB (J) the Sccuritics and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 that:

i. The company is restrained {tom accessing the sceuritics market and further prohibited from buying, sclling or othcrwisc
dealing in securitics including units of mutual funds, dircetly or indirectly, or being associated with the sccurnitics market
in any manncr, whatsocver, for a period of 3 years from the date of this order.

ii. Thec company is dirceted to continue (o pursuc measures to bring back the ouistanding amount of USD 3.49 million, the
GDR procceds into its bank account n India within a period of one year. To fumish a Certificate from a Chartered
Accountant of [CAl along with necessary documentary evidences, certifying the compliance of this direction.

ili. Shn Sanjay Agrawal, Managing Dircetor, Shn Vijay Prasad Pappu, Whole-time Dircetor, Shn Shanti Lal Badera,
Independent Dircetor (at the time of event) and Shn Rishabh Kumar Jain, Company Sccretary (at the ime of event) shall
be restrained from accessing the Indian secunitics market, and further prohibited from buying, selling or otherwisc dealing
in sccuritics including units of mutual funds, dircetly or indircetly, or being associated with the securitics market in any
manner, whatsoever for a period of 03, 03, 01 and 01 yvear respectively.

The Company after perusal and analysis of the said order and in consultation with the Counsel with their duc advice and legal

opinion has filed an appeal dated 12.10.2023 before the Hon'ble Sccuritics Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai on 14.10.2023

against the said Order No. QJA/AATVDVIDE/24247/2022-23 dated 28.02.2023 (received on 15.03.2023) passcd by The

WTM of SEBL. Aftcr various hearings and orders, the matter is still pending before the said authority. However, the amount of

LJSD 3.49 million as mentioncd by SEBI, was already received by Tapti Pipes & Products Limited FZE, the Wholly Owned

Subsidiary of Texmo in Scptember, 201 2 and had additionally furnished a Certificate from a Chartered Accountant stating the

same before the Tribunal.

42, Code of Conduct

The Board has adopted the Code of Conduct for members of the Board and Senior Management personnel of the Company.
The Code lays down, in details, the standards of business conduet, cthies and governance. The compliance of the same has
been affirmed and a declaration signed by the Managing Direetor to this effect is given below. Code of Conduct has also been
posted on the Company s Website. hitps://lexmopipe.com

Declaration
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Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regquircments) Regulations, 2015, the Company hercby confirms that it
has obtained from all the Members of the Board and senior management personnel, affirmations that they have complied with
the code of conduct in respect of financial year ended on March 31, 2024,

43. Anti-sexual harassment policy

The Company has in place an Anti-Scxual Harassment Policy in linc with the requirements of Scxual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013, An Intemal Committec has been sct up to redress the
complaints reeeived regarding sexual harassment at workplace. All cmployees including trainces are covercd under this
policy.
The following is the summary of scxual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the current financial year.
Number of Complaints pending at the beginning of the financial year: Nil
Mumber of Complaints received during the financial year: Nil

Mumber of Complaints disposed off during the financial year: Nil
Number of Complaints pending at the end of financial year: Wil
44. Acknowledgement

Your Dircetors would like to gratefully acknowledge and place on record their sincere appreciation for the cooperation and
assistance received from its stakcholders, advisors, valued customers, supplicrs, banks, consultants, financial institutions,
governmenl authorities and stock exchanges. The Directors also wish to place on record their sincere appreciation of the
devoted and dedicated services rendered by all Executives, Staff Members and Workmen of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Place:- Burhanpur Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Date: August 13, 2024 Managing Director Whole Time Director cum CFO
(DIN 00316249) (DIN 02066748)
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‘ANNEXURE - A”

1) DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION
197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIALPERSONNEL), RULES, 2014.

i.  The pereentage increase in remuncration of cach Dircctor, Chicf Financial Officer and Company Scerctary during financial
year 2023-24, ratio of the remuncration of cach dircctor to the median remuncration of the employees of the Company for
financial year 2023-24.

5. No.Name of Director/KMP IRemuneration of Directors “olnerease In Ratio of Remuneration
and Designation /KMPs For Financial Year | Remuneration In The| of Each Director/To
2023-2024 {in Rs.) Financial Year Median of
2023-2024 Remuneration of
Employees
I Mrs. Rashmi Aprawal, [.30,00000 B7.5% 101.35
Chairperson and Whole-time Dircetor
2 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 3,00,00, 000 16900
Managing Dircctor
3 Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu 12,75344 11.54 718
Wholc-time Dircetor cum CFO
4 Mr. Mohit Agrawal 72,00,000 40.54
Chicl Exceutive Officer
5 Mr. Ajay Shrivastava 881,400 BO01% 496
Company Scerctary

Note:-

i.  The Non-Execcutive Dircetors of the Company are entitled for sittmg fee which is as per the statulory provisions and within
the limits approved by the sharcholders. The details of remuncration of Non-Exccutive Directors arc provided in the
Corporate Governanee Report and governed by the Differential Remuncration Policy, as detailed in the said report. The ratio
of remuncration and percentage increasc for Non-Exceutive Dircetors Remuneration is therefore not considered for the
purposc above.

ii.  The median remuneration of employees of the company during the finaneial 2023-2024 was Rs. 1,77,600/

ili.  Inthefinancial year, there was increase of 13,85 % in the median remuncration of cmployees;

1v. Therewere 356 pormancent employees on the rolls of company as on 3 1st March, 2024;

v.  Average pereentage increase made in the salarics of employees other than the managenal personnel in financial year 2023
2024 was6.12 %

vi. The key parameters for the vaniable components of remuncration availed by the board of dircctors based on the

recommendations of the Nomination and Remuncration Committee as per remuncration policy for dircctors and scnior
management personnel.

vil. There was one employee in the form of Managing Director who received remuneration higher than the limit as provided in
Rule 5(2) of Companics ( Appointiment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details of the same has
been mentioned in this Report as followed.

viii. It is hercby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year ended 3 1st March 2024 is as per remuncration policy of the
Company.

2) THE STATEMENT OF NAMES OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO RULE 5(2) OF COMPANIES
{APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 ISAS UNDER:

Sr.No. Name of the Designation |Remuneration|] Nature of | Qualification Date of Details of
Employee and {Age) received Employment (s) Commenceme| Previous
(Rs.) {Experience) nt of employment
employment

A Employcd throughout the finaneial year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating not less than Rs. 1,02,00,000/- for the
year.
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L Mr. Sanjay Kumar IM.’maging 3.00,00,000/- |General B.Com, LL.B. |03.07.2008 Business
Agrawal Dircetor Control of the fand MBA affairs
(59 years) Busi‘nc_s.‘; and |35 years)
Operations and
Management
of the
Company
Permancnt

B Employed for a part of the year and in receipt of remuncration aggregating not less than Rs. 8 50,000/~ permonth - NIL

If thc employed throughout the financial year or parl thercof was in receipt of remuncration in that year which |, in the
aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rale which, in the aggregate is in cxcess of the drawn by the Managing Dircetor or
Wholc Time Dircetor or Manager and holds by himself or along with his spousc and dependent children, not less than 2 %
of the cquity shares of the Company - NIL

Motes:
a) Total remuncration includes Salary, House Rent Allowance, Medical Allowance, Conveyance Allowance, Uniform
Allowance and Other Allowance and Children Education Allowance clc.

b) Mr Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Managing Dircetor is related to Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal, Chairperson and Whole-Time Director,

being spousc.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-
Place:- Burhanpur Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Date: August 13, 2024 Managing Director Whaole Time Director cum CFO
(DIN00316249) (DIN 02066748)
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‘ANNEXURE - B*

THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO.INTHE MANNER AS PRESCRIBED IN RULE 8(3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

A. CONSERVATION OFENERGY
i) a) Steps taken for conservation of energy

Installation of online PVC Pipe Socketing Machines in place of manual socketing with advance technology of
heating sections with auto on-off systems.

Installation of PVC Coupler Threading Machines in place of conventional lathe machine completely PLC base that
increase the productivity.
Installed latest technology drip machines for low wall thickness pipe with the line speed of 200 meter per minule.

Installation of Laser Marking machine in place of inkjet printer for our Coloumn Pipe that reduce the cost of
consumable like ink, make up and cleaning solutions.

Construction of Shades for Proper Material Storage.

Increasing ground water level by doing rain water harvesting.

Improved guality of Sparc parts uscd in Production which enhance the lifc of sparc part and reduce production cost.
Transparcnt sheets have been put on which amounts to power saving during day shifi.

Replace few machines Vaccum tank with the new S8 tanks & fix 2 vacuum pump of 3 & 2 HPin place of one THP
Reduced the Heating Zones of Machine which result in saving clectnical cnergy.

Removed unnecessary parts which were installed on Machine.

Changed the connection of Motor to Gear Box from Belt Drive to Direet Coupled which result in increased output
and reduce load of Machine.

Use of Collapsible mould in place of Simple mould results in saving Man Power and reduction of Elcctrical
Consumplion.

Use of more cavity mould result in fast production of product, saves electrical power, man power reducing total per
kgcost

Installed Automatic Fusion Machinc in Place of Manual Machincs which result in increasc output and provide
accuracy of product.

Utilzzation of Higher output machines result in Increased Productivity & Reduction of perkg cost.

Installation of new Shade for storage of Finished Goods which were stored in open space result in Improved Quality
of product.

b} Impact af Conscrvation of Energy
Increase of productivity by installation of CNC threading machines in place of conventional lathe machine.
Reduction of cost of consumable like ink, make up and eleaning solutions by installation of Lascr Marking machine.

Less chance of heater shot, Life of the panel increases, now the sudden ampere shoot become less so less power
COMSUMIC.

Unnccessary wastage of power is saved by implanting removing unnccessary items.
By using lascr marking power consumption is reduce by almost 7 times with better printing quality.
i) Steps taken by the Company fertilization of alternate source of energy:-

The Company has launch renewable encrgy by way of installing solar plant in its factory premises and also planning to
install solar plant upto 3 MG watl to gencrate solar power. By installation of solar power plant the Company has reduced
its dependency on traditional source of cnergy because solar powcer provides energy independence, energy sceurity and
cnergy reliability. This will also helps in diminution of expulsion of C02 and other green house gas ecmissions and has
been proved to be an eco fricndly.

i) Capital invesiment on energy conservation equipment: - Rs. 300 lakhs approx.
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B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
(i) The cfforts made towards technology absorption:

Installation of Lascr Marking machine in place of inkjet printer for our Coloumn Pipe that reduce the cost of consumable
like ink, make up and cleaning solutions.
Construction of Shades for Proper Material Storage.
Increasing ground water level by doing rain water harvesting.
Improved quality of Spare parts used in Production which enhanee the life of spare part and reduce production cost.
Transparcnt shects have been put on which amounts to power saving during day shift.
Reduced the Heating Zones of Machine which result in saving clectrical cnergy.
Removed unnecessary parts which were installed on Machine.
Changed the connection of Motor to Gear Box from Belt Drive to Direct Coupled which result in increased output and
reduce load of Machine.
(it) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or impaorts substitutions:
By introducing the above mechanism the process has become simplificd which resulting in improvement in the quality of
products and cost cfficicnt also.

(iii) f'n case af imparted technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)
All technologics uscd are indigenous.

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Approx. Rs. 15 lakhs.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS ANDOUT GO:-

(i} Foreign Exchange Outgo:- (Amt. in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Raw Matcnal 1.435.63
Sparc parts 1.09
Total 1.436.72

(ii) Foreign Exchange Earning:- (Amt. in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Mil Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Place:- Burhanpur Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Date: 13.08.2024 Managing Director Whaole Time Director cum CFO
(DIN DO316249) (DIN 02066748)
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FORM NO. AQC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-scction (3) of scction 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the Companics { Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions uader third provisoe
thereto.

1.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction not at arm’s length basis:
(a) Mamc{s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Not Applicable

{b) Nature of contracis/arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

() Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: Mot Applicable

(d) Salicnt terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Not Applicable
(c) Justification for cntering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: Not Applicable

(D) Date(s) of approval by the Board: Not Applicable
() Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

{(h) Date on which the special resolution was passcd in gencral meeting as required under first proviso to section 188: Not

Applicable
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
Sr. |Name of Related |Nature of Nature of transaction Duration of |Salient terms of the contracts or
No |Party Relationship transaction |arrangements or transactions including
the value, if any
1. |Mrs. Rashmi Whole Time | Leasing of property On- gomg  |In normal coursc of busincss and at
Agrawal Dircctor prevailing market prices. Rent paid Rs.
107.31 Lakhs.
2. |Mr. Sanjay Kumar |Managing Leasing of property On- going  |In normal coursc of business and al
Agrawal Dircetor prevailing markel prices. Rent paid Rs.
168.21 Lakhs.
Sales or supply of any goods | On-going  |[In normal course of business and at
and matcrials business prevailing market prices. Rs. 1.05 Lakh.
3 |Mr Mohit Agrawal | Chief Remuneration On-gomg  |Rs. 72.00 Lakhs
Exceutive
Officer
4. |Mrs. Apama Chicl Design | Salary On-going  |Rs. 60,00 Lakhs
Agrawal Officer
5. |Shree Vasudeo Relatives of | Purchase or supply of any|On- going  |In normal course of business and at
Industrics Dircctors arc | goods and materials prevailing market prices. Rs. 457437
Pariners in Lakhs.
Concern Logistic Income On- gong  |In normal course of business and al
prevailing market prices. Rs. 1 .53 Lakhs.
Sales or supply of any goods | On- going | Inbusiness and at prevailing market prices.
and materials Rs.38.35 Lakhs.
Turnover discount reccived | On-going  |In normal course of business Rs. 76.19
lakhs.
fr. |Shrec Padmavati Wholc-Time | Leasing of property On- going  |In normal course of business and at
Imigations LLP Dircctor i.c. prevailing market prices. Leasing of
Chairperson property Rs.0.24 Lakh.
and Purchase or supply ol any|On- gomg  |In normal course ol business and at
Managing goods and materials prevailing market prices. Rs. 16091
Director arc Lakhs.
Dresignated Logistic Income On-going  |In normal course of busincss and at
Partners prevailing market prices. Rs. 068 Lakhs
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7. |Shree Venkatesh Subsidiary Leasing ol property On- going  |In normal coursc of business and at
Industrics Pvt. Lid. prevailing market prices. Rent reccived for
leasing of property Rs 360 Lakh.

Sale of goods On-going  |In normal course of business and at
prevailing market prices. Rent received for
lecasing of property Rs. 2.30 Lakh.

Logistic Income On-going  |In normal course of busincss and at
prevailing market prices. Rent reccived for
lecasing of property Rs. 118 Lakh.

8 |Mangal Murti Relatives of | Leasing of property On- going  |In normal coursc of business and al
Mincrals Dircetors arc prevailing market prices. Rent received for
Partners in leasing of property Rs. 5.60 Lakh.
Concemn Logistic Income On- poing  |In normal course of business and al
prevailing market prices. Rs. 0,07 Lakhs.
Purchase or supply of any|On- going |In normal course of business and al
goods and matcrials prevailing market prices. Rs. 280,67 Lakhs
9. |Texmo Pipes Managing Expenditure Towards CSR. | On- going  [In normal course of business and in
Foundation Dhrector and aceordance with SEBL{LODR) regulation.
Whole-Time Rs.25.00 Lakhs
Dircctor i.c.
Chairperson
arc Directors
0. |Shree Venkatesh Wholly Purchase of Goods On-going |In normal course of business and al
Polymers Privaic | owned prevailing market prices. Rs. 1,298.09
Limited subsidiary Lakhs

Sale of Goods On-going  |In normal course of busincss and at
prevailing market prices. Rs. 213,16 Lakhs

Logistic Income On-going  |In normal course of business and al

prevailing market prices. Rs. 1.58 Lakhs

Note: Appropriate approval have been taken for related party transactions in Audit Committee and Board Mcecting. No advances
have been paid or received agaimst the transactions mentioned above.

Place:- Burhanpur
Date: 13.08.2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Sanjay Kumar Agrawal

Managing Director
(DIN M0316249)
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Sd/-
Vijay Prasad Pappu
Whole Time Director cum CFO
(DIN D2066748)




TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED 16™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

ANNEXURE - ‘D*

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
JPursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Texmo Pipes and Products Limited
98, Bahadarpur Road,

Burhanpur (M_P.)-45033

I have conducted the seeretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Texmo Pipes and Products Limited (CIN: L25200MP2008PLC020852) (hercinafter called the company).
Scerctanial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opimion thercon.

Based on my verification of the company s books, papers, minute books, forms and returmns filed and other records mamtained by
the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of seerctarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year cnded on 31° March, 2024 complicd with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extend, in the manner and subjeet to the reporting made hereinafier:

| have cxamined the books, papers, minutc books, forms and returns filed and other records maimtained by the Company for the
financial year ended on 317 March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companics Act, 2001 3(the Act) and the rules made there under;
ii. The Sccuritics Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 (°SCRA )and the rules madc there under;
iii. The Depositorics Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv. Forcign Exchange Management Act,199%and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Dircet
Investment, Overseas Dircet Investment and External Commercial Bormrowings;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Scewritics and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI
Act™):
The Sceuritics and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Sharcs and Takcovers) Regulations 2011
b. The Sccuritics and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

¢. The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2009 /
The Sccurifics and Exchange Board of India (Issuc of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations 20018
(Mot applicable to the Company during the audit period);

d. The Sceuntics and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not applicable to
the Company during the audit period);

¢. The Sceuritics and Exchange Board of India (Issuc and Listing of Debt Sceuntics) Regulations, 2008 (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period);

f. The Sccuritics and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issuc and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companics Act and dealing with clicnt;

g. The Sccuntics and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Mot applicable to the
Company during the audit period): and

h. The Sceurnitics and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Sceunitics) Regulations, 1998 (Mot applicable to the Company
during the audit period).
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1. Seccuntics and Exchange Board of India { Depositonies and Participants) Regulations, 201 8;

vi. Asperinformation provided by the management, there is no law applicable specitically to the Company vis-a-vis the industry
Lo which the Company belongs.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauscs/Regulations of the following:

a) Sccrctarial Standards with regard to Mecting of Board of Dircctor (S5-1) and General Mectings (55-2) issued by The
Institute of Company Scerctarics of India.

b) The Sceuritics and Exchange Board of India ( Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

vii. During the penod under review, the Company has complicd with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,

Standards, cte. mentioned above subject to the following observation:

a) The Company is required to take Special Contingency Insurance Policy for insuring the risk arising out of requirements
reclating to issuc of duplicate sceuritics, pursuant to Para 5 of SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD RTAMBP/CIR/2022/70 dated 25° May, 2022. However, the Company has not taken the
reguired policy.

b) The SEBI has filed a civil appeal dated 02.12.2022 with Supreme court of India against impugned final order dated
30.09.2022 of the Hon'ble Sccuritics Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai. Appeal is regarding sct aside of penalty of Rs. 25.00
Lacs under Scetion 23E of SCRA imposcd on the company. On 15.03.2024, Hon ble Supreme Court issucd notice and
tagped the matter with CANo. 4741/202 1. The notice was received by the company on 13.04 2024, The matter continues
to be sub judice before the Hon ble Supreme Court.

¢) Thecompany has filed appeal dated 12.10.2023 before Securitics Appcllate Trbunal, Mumbai on 14.10.2023 against the

Order No. QJA/AATVIYIDA/24247/2022-23 dated 28.02.2023 (reccived on 15.03.2023) passed by The WTM of SEBL
Aftcr various hcarings and orders, the matter is still pending before the said authority.

I further report that:

The Board of Dircctors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Exceutive Directors, Non- Executive Dircetors

and Independent Dircetors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Dircetors that took place during the period under

revicw were carmied out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice 1s given to all direetors to schedule the Board Mectings and the commitice mectings, agenda and detailed notes on

agenda were scnt at least scven days in advanee and the consent was taken where required for meetings held on shorter notice, if

required and a sysiem cxists for secking and obtaining further information and clanfications on the agenda items before the

mecting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority deeision is cammied through while the dissenting members” views arc captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there arc adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the

company tomonitor and cnsurc compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

1 further report that during the awdit penod, the Company had following cvents/actions which had major bearing on the

Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards cte:-

I. Approval of appointment of Mr. Abdul Quader Motorwala (DIN: 03481624 as a Non Exceutive Independent Dircetor of the
company w.c.[. 14.02.2023 by members through special resolution passed by Postal Ballot on 10.05.2023.

2. Approval of acquisiion of Siake in Shree Venkatesh Industrics Private Limited in Board meeting held on 11082023
&13.02.2024 respectively.

3. Approval of revision in Remuneration of Smt. Rashmi A grawal (DIN 003 16248), Whole Time Direetor of the company we.
1" September, 2023 to 3 17 August, 2026 in Annual General Mecting held on 26.09.2023.

4. Approval of revision in Remuncration of Shn Vijay Prasad Pappu, (DIN 02066748), Whole Time Dircctor cum Chicf
Financial Officer of the company w.e.f. 17 Scptember, 2023 to 317 August, 2026 in in Annual General Mecting held on
26.092023.

5. Approval of revision in threshold of related party transaction with Shree Vasudeo Industrics upto Rs. 200000 crore in Annual
General Mecting held on 26.09.2023.

. Approval of revision in threshold of related party transaction with Shree Venkatesh Industrics Private Limited upto Rs.
300.00 crore in Annual General Mecting held on 26,09 2023,

39 A——



TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED 16™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

Appendix - 1
(T the Secrctarial Audit Report to the Members of Texmo Pipes and Products Limited for the financial year ended 317
March, 2024)

To,
The Mcmbers,
Texmo Pipes and Products Limited

My Scerctanal Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 of even date 15 to be read along with this letter.

I. Maintcnance of scerctarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to cxpress an
opinion on these scerctanal records based on my audit.

=]

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of
the contents of the scerctarial records. The venfication was done on test basis to cnsure that correct facts reflected on
scerctarnial records. [ belicve that the processes and practices | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. Thavenot verified the correctness and appropriatencss of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, [ have obtamed the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events cte.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is the responsibility
of the management. My cxamination was limited to the verification of procedurcs on test basis.

6. The Scerctarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
cffectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs ofthe Company.

Date: 12.08.2024 Dinesh Kumar Gupta
Place: Indore Practicing Company Secretary
{(FCS No. 5396 CP No. 4715)

UDIN: FOD5396FD00954861

Peer Review Certificate No.: 805/2020

Unigue Identification No.: 12002MP298100
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‘ANNEXURE - E”
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for Finaneial Year 2023-24

[Pursuant to clausc (o) of sub-scction (3) of scction 134 of the Companics Act 2013 including amendments thercof and Rule 8 of
the Companics (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 rcad with Companics (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Amendment Rules, 2021]

1| Bricfoutline on CSR policy of the Company The Company has adopted the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
policy which is in lincs with the Companics (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021, Eligible funds for
CSR activitics will be expended in the arcas of Education, Health and
Hygicne, Environment, Rural and Community Development cte.
through one or more trusts or direetly. These CSR activities will be
carmicd oul through various programs, contributions or projects
specificd inthe CSR policy.

2.} Composition of CSR Committec |. Dr. Smita Hajan - Chairperson

{Non-Exccutive Independent Dircetor)

2. Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal - Member

{Managing Dircetor)
3. Dr Parvez Anjum - Member

(Non-Exccutive Independent Direetor)
Mumber of meetings of CSR Commitice held and | There were 4 mectings held dunng the year and all mectings aticnded
attended duning the year duly by all the members of the Committee.
3.| Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR | The same has been available at hitps://lexmopipe.com
committce, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board arc disclosed on the website of the
Company

4| Provide the exccutive summary along with the web- | Not Applicable
link of Impact assessment of CSR projects carmicd
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of mulc § of the
Companics (Corporate Social responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable:
5] (a) Avcrage nct profit of the Company as per sub- | Rs.13.30,59 845/
scetion (5) of Scction 135
(b) Two pcreent of average net profit of the |Rs. 26,61,197/
Company as perscction 135(5).

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or |Rs 3 42 869/
programmes or activitics of the previous
financial years.

(d) Amount required to be sct off for the financial | Ry 3,42 860/
yearif any.

(c) Total CSR obligation for the financial year |Rs 26,610,197/
[(b}Hc)(d)]

6.0 (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongomg | p 23.92.700/
Projoct and other than Ongoing Project). '

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads. Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Asscssment, if |Notapplicable
applicable:

(d) Total amount spent for the Finaneial Year: Rs. 23,92 700/

Details of CSR. amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil.
Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year is detailed below:
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5. |Name of the project or Item from the list of activities in | Amount Muode of Muode of implementation -

no. | activity Schedule VI to the Act. spent for | implementa | Through implementing

the project | tion - Direct | agency (With Name and
(Rs.) (YesMNo) CSR registration number)

i. |Promoting Education- 1.c. Clausc (1) of Schedule V11 e} B0 MNo Texmo Pipes Foundation
Donations and financial Promoting Education (CSR Registration No.
assistance CSRO0034710)

i. |Promotion of Health Carc i.c. Clausc (1) of Schedule VII 19823/ Mo Texmo Pipes Foundation
Donation of watcr cooler and Promoting health carc {CSR Registration No.
medical help CSR00034710)

iii. | Ensuring Environmental Clause (1v) of Schedule VI 1 8,000/ Mo Texmo Pipes Foundation
sustamability and Conservation | Ensuring Environmental (CSR Registration No.
of natural resources 1.c. Tree Sustainability CRRO0034710)
Plantation Drive Clause (i) of Schedule VII

iv. |Eradicating Hunger and Poverty |cradicating hunger, poverty and | 12,05.378/- [ No Texmo Pipes Foundation
i.c. Food Disimbution Drive o | malnuintion (CSR Registration No.
fight hunger Clausc (x) of Schedule V11 CSRO0034710)

v. |Rural/Community Development | Promoting Rural/Community 999044/ [No Texmo Pipes Foundation
i.c. Donation of LED Development (CSR Registration No.
Surveillanee Systems, CSRO00347 1)
Distribution of Chairs cle.

vi. | Promotion of Health Carc Clausc (1) of Schedule VI 13,655/ Yes MN.A
including preventive health care | Promoting health carc
i.c. Blood Donation drive.

vii. | Promoting gender cquality, Clause (111) of Schedule VII 51,000/ Mo Texmo Pipes Foundation
sciting up homes and hostels e, |Promoting gender equality and (CSR Registration No.
Dionation for sciiing up hostcl sciting up hostels and homes CRR000347 1)

viii Training to promotc rural sports | Clause (vii) of Schedule VII 21,000/ No Texmo Pipes Foundation
i.e. Donation to Khelkud Vikas | Training to promote rural sporls {CSR Registration No.
Samiti Promoting Rural Sporis CSR00034710)

23,92, 700/-

(c) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total amount spent
for the financial year

Amount Unspent (In Rs)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent

Amount transferred to any fund specified under

(in Rs) CSR Account as per sec 135(6) Schedule VI as per second proviso to section 135(5)
Amount Date of Transfer Name of the Fund | Amount Date of transfer
23,92, 700/ MN.A. MN.A.
() Excess amount for sct off, if any: Rs. 3,42 869/
Sr. | Particulars Amount
no. {in Hs.)
(1) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of scetion 135 26,61,197/
(i1) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 23,92, 7000
(i1} Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(1)]
(iv)| Surplus ansing out of the CSR projects or programmes or activitics of the previous financial years, if any 3,42 869/
(v) | Amount sct-off in current financial year 2023-24 *2 68,497/
(vi)| Amount available for sct off in succeeding financial years [{iv)-{v)] =*T7437Y

* Amount Sct-off for this FY 15 Bs. 2,68 497/~ out of iotz] surplus amount available for sci-off of total Rs. 3 42 869/

** Amount cligible and sct-off as balance for succceding financial years.
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7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial years: Not applicable
1 |2 3 ! 5 [ 7 8
Sl |Preceding Amount transfemred | Balance Amount |Amount Amount transfermed to a Fund as| Amount Diefici
MNo.|Financial to Unspent CSR in Unspent CSR (Spent in the | specificd under Schedule VI as [remaining to bejency,
Year(s) Account under Account under  (Financial per sceond proviso to subscction|spent in if any
subscction (6) of  |subscction (6) of [Year (in Rs.)|(5) of scction 135, if any succceding
[scction 135 seetion 135 Amount Datc of Financial Years
(in Rs.) {in Rs.) (in Rx.) Transfer (in Rs)
1 |FY 2020-2021 Mot Applicable
2 |FY 2021-2022 Mot Applicable
3 [FY 2022-2023 Mot Applicable
8. Whether any capital asscts have been created or acquined through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the
Financial Year: No
IT Yes, enter the number of Capital asscts created/ acquired: Not applicablc
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent
in the Financial Year:
Sl |Short particulars of the property  |Pincode of the |Dale of | Amount of CSR|Details of entity/ Authority/ bencficiary of
MNo.jor assct(s) [including complete  |property or creation |amount spent {the registered owner
address and location of the assct(s)
property]
(1) (2) (3) (4 (3) (&)
CSE Registration Name |Registered
MNumbcer, if applicable Address
Mot Applicable
(All the ficlds should be capturcd as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/Municipal
Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specificd and also the arca of the immowvable property as well as boundarics)
Q.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per sub-scetion 5 of section
135: Not applicable.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Burhanpur Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Smita Hajari
Date: 13" August, 2024 Managing Director Chairperson CSR Committee
{DIN 00316249) (DIN D8763920)
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‘ANNEXURE - F°
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance in simple words means the way a corporation is governcd. Corporate govemnanee refers to
mechanisms, processes and relations by which corporations are conirolled and dirccted. Corporate Governance is a
systematic process driven by the ethical conduet of the business and affairs of an organization aimed at promoting sustainable

busincss and enhancing sharcholders value in long term. The essence of Corporale Governance lics in promoting and
maintaining integrity, transparcncy and accountability across all busimess practices. Corporate governance csscntially
involves balancing the interests of a Company’s stakcholders, such as sharcholders, management, customers, supplicrs,
financicrs, government and the community. We believe that Corporate Governance is a continuous journcy for sustainable
value creation for all the stakcholders driven by our values of Integnty, Commitment, Passion, Scamlcssness and Speed.

Your Company has complicd with the requirements of Corporate Governance as laid down under Regulation 27 and other
applicable Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 201 5.

2. COMPOSITION OF BOARD

Al Texmo Pipes and Products Limited (TPPL), it is our belief that an enlightened Board deliberately ereates a culture of
leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of governance. As on March 31, 2024, the
Board consists of 3 Exccutive Dircetors and 3 Non-Exccutive Independent Dircctors. The Company has an Executive
Chairperson. In compliance of provisions of Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013 rcad with Companies ( Appoiniment and
Qualification of Dircctors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 17 of SEBI {(LODR) Regulation, 2015, the Company is also having
One Woman Dircetor in form of Exceutive Chairperson as on March 31, 2024 and also One Woman Director as a Independent
Dircctor.

Mo Dircctor of the Company is related to any other Dircetor of the Company, except that Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal and Mrs.
Rashmi Agrawal arc spousc.
The Company is having an appropriate size of the Board for real strategic discussion and avails the benefits of diverse
cxpericnee and viewpoints.

3. BOARDINDEPENDENCE

We at Texmo Pipes and Products Limited adhere Lo the definition of independence of Dircetors is derived from scetion 149 (6)
of Companics Act, 2013, All Dircctors arc individuals of integrity and courage, with relevant skills and expenicnee to bring
independent judgement on the business of the Company.

4. MECHANISM FOR EVALUATING BOARDMEMBERS

One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the Board evaluation framework. The Board works with
Momination and Remuneration Commitlee to lay down the cvaluation eriteria for the performance of executive/non
cxccutive! independent Dircctors through a peer-cvaluation excluding the Dircetor being cvaluated through a Board
cffectivencss survey. The Questionnaire of the survey is a key part of the process of reviewing the functioning and
cffectivencss of the Board and for identifying possible paths or improvement. Each Board Member is requested to evaluate
the cffectiveness of the Board dynamics and relationship, information flow, decision-making of the Dircetors, relationship to
stakcholders, Company performance, Company strategry, and the effectiveness of the whole Board and its various commitices
on a scale of one to five. Feedback on cach dircetor is encouraged to be provided as a part of the survey.

Independent directors have three key roles- governance, control and guidance. Some of the performance indicators based on
which the independent directors arc evaluated include:

= Ability to contribuie to and monitor our corporaie govermance praciices
= Ability to contribute by introducing intermational best practices to address top-management issucs
= Active participation in long-term strategic planning
= Commitment to the fulfillment of a Dircetor’s obligations and fiduciary responsibilitics; these include participation in
board and committee mectings.
5. DIRECTORINDUCTION, FAMILIARIZATION AND TRAINING

As per Regulation 25 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 the Company has entered o a Listing agreement with Stock
Exchange. The Company provides suitable traiming to mdependent director to familiarize them with the Company, their role,
nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company cte. the details of such training arc also
required to be disclosed in the Annual Report.
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The Company acknowledged the imporiance of continuous education and traming of the Dircetors to enable the effective
discharge of their responsibility. The Company has been organizing visit of the Dircetor to its PVC Plant with a view to
cnablc them familiarize with the nature of industry, operations, process and interact with management personnel and
staff.
Dircetors arc regularly bricfed about the mdustry specific to enable them to understand the business environment in which the
Company operates. To enhanee their skills and knowledge the direetors are regularly updated on the change in the policy, laws
and regulation, development in the business environment cte.
Efforts arc also made to familianze the Dircctors about their roles, responsibility in the Company, its business model and the
environment in which the Company operates. Same is available on the Company's website at hitps://tcxmopipe.com

6. REMUNERATIONTOEXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Managing Dircctor & the Whole Time Dircctor is rccommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to the Board of Dircctors bascd on critcnia such as industry Benchmarks, the Company's

performance vis-a-vis the industry, performance track record of the Managing Director & Whole-Time Dircctor.

Mr. Sanjay Kumar A grawal is the Managing Dircctor of the Company. The Salary and allowance paid to Mr. Sanjay Kumar
Agrawal during the year 2023-24 were Rs. 300,00 Lakhs, Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal is the Whole Time Dircetor cum Chairperson
of the Company and the Salary and allowance paid to Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal duning the year 2023-24 were Rs. 1800200 Lakhs
and Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu is the Whole Time Dircctor cum Chicf Financial Officer of the Company and the Salary and
allowance paid to Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu during the year 2023-24 were Rs. 12.75 Lakhs.

7. NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS'COMPENSATION AND DISCLOSURES

The Non-Exccutive Directors arc entitled to sitting foe for attending the Board/Commitice Mcctings. A sitting fee of Rs.
15,000}~ for attending cach meeting of the Board and Auwdit Committce and of Rs. 2,50/ for attending cach of the
Stakcholders Relationship Committee and Rs. 2,500/~ for attending cach of the Nomination & Remuncration Committce
Mectings was paid to the Non- Executive Dircetors duning the year under review.

The Sitting fees paid to the Non-Exccutive Directors are within the limits prescribed under the Companics Act, 2013, No
stock options were granted to Non- Executive Directors during the yearunder review.

The Board considered the performance of the Non-Exceutive Directors based on their atiendance and contribution at the
Board and Commitiee Mectings. The Company also reimburses the out-of -pocket expenses incurred by the Dircetors for
attending the Meetings.

The MNon-Exccutive Independent Dircctors did not have any material pocuniary relationship or transactions with the
Company during the ycar 2023-24.

The details of Sitting Fees paid to the Non- Exceutive Directors during the year 2023-24:

5r. No.| Name of Non-Executive Directors Sitting fees
(Rs.)

1. Dr. Parvez Anjum 1,40 (D0
i Dr. Smita Hajari 1,40 000
3. Mr. Abdul Quader Motorwala 1.30,000

& BOARDMEETINGS
i) Scheduling and Selection of agenda items for Board Meetings.

The Board mects at regular intervals (o discuss and decides on Company / business policy and strategy apart from other Board
business. The Board / Commilttee Mectings arc pre-scheduled and a tentative annual calendar of the Board and Committee
Mectings is circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure meaning ful
participation in the mectings. However, in case of a special and urgent business necd, the Board™s approval is taken by passing
resolutions by circulation, as permitted by law, which is noted and confirmed in the subsequent Board mecting.

The notice of Board mecting is given well in advance to all the Dircctors. Usually, mectings of the Board arc held at registered
officc in Burhanpur, MP. The Agenda of the Board / Committce mectings is sct by the Company Sceretary in consultation with
the Chairperson of the Company. The Agenda is circulated a weck prior o the date of the mecting. The Agenda for the Board
and Committee mectings includes detailed notes on the items to be discussed at the mecting to enable the Directors Lo take an
informed decision.

During the year 2023-24, four mectings of the Board of Dircctors were held on 29" May 2023, " August 2023,
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09" November 2023 and 13" February, 2024. The maximum time gap between any two consceutive meetings did not
exceed one hundred and twenty days. The necessary quorum was present for all meetimgs. The draft minutes of each
Board / Commitice mectings are circulated to all Direetors for their comments within fiftcen days of the meeting. The
Company Sccrctary, afier incorporating comments, received if any, from the Dircetors, records the minutes of cach Board
{ Commitlece meeting within thirty days from conclusion of the mecting. The important decisions taken at the Board /
Commitice mectings are communicated to the concerned depariments promptly.

MNone of the Directors on the Board are Members in more than ten Committees or Chairman in more than five Commitices
across all the companies in which they are Dircetors. Neeessary disclosures regarding Commitice positions in other public
companics ason 3 1™ March, 2024 have been made by the Dircetors.

The details of attendance of Dircetors for the year 2023-24 at the Board Mectings and in AGM are given below:

Name of Director Category Board Meetings| Board Meetings | Board Meelingslhttendau:e in
held entitle to attend | Attended previous AGM

Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal Excecutive 4 4 4 Yes

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Exccutive 4 4 4 Yes

Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu Excecutive 4 4 4 Yes

Dr. Parvez Anjum Non Exccutive | 4 4 4 Yes
Independent

Dr. Smita Hajari Non Exccutive | 4 4 4 Yes
Independent

Mr. Abdul Quadcer Motorwala MNon Exccutive | 4 4 4 Yoz
Independent

ii} Information placed before the Board of Directors
The information placed before the Board of Directors is as follows:

a) Anmnual operating plans and budgets, revisions and updates.

b} Capital budgets with revisions and updates.

¢) Quarterly (including periodic) results of the Company and its operating divisions' business scgments.

d) Minutes of the mectings of Board of Directors, Audit and other committecs of the Board and mectings of Subsidiary
Company.

¢) The information on recruitment and remuncration of scnior officers below the board level, including appointment or
cessation of office by CFO and Company Scerctary.

) Show causc, demand and prosecution notices which are matenially imporiant.

g} Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous oceurrences, any material effluent or pollution problems.

h) Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.

i) Transactions thal mvolve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual property.

1) Quarterly details of forcign exchange exposures and the step taken by management to limit the nisks of adverse
cxchange rate movement, ifmaterial.

k) Industrial relationship issucs of material nature and proposed remedial actions. All significant development in
Human Resources! indostrial relations.

1) Transactions of material nature ofbuying and selling of investments, or undertaking/ assets, which are not in normal
coursc of business.

m) Statuson compliance with all regulatory, statutory and matenial contract requircments.
n) Details of delegation of authontics to exceutives and power of attorney.
Criteria for performance evaluation:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee lays down the eriteria for performance evaluation of Dircetors. The annual
evaluation of Dircetors is made on the following criteria:

i. Attendance for the mectings, participation and independence during the meetings;
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ii. Interaction with Management;

iti. Role and accountability of the Board and

iv. Knowledge and proficicney
Mecting of Independent Dircetors

Pursuant to provisions of Schedule IV of the Companics Act 2013 and the rules made there under, the Independent Directors of the
Company shall hold at least one mecting in a year, withoui attendance of non- independent directors and members of the
management. The mecting of Independent Directors was held on 13® February, 2024 to discuss, inter-alia:

i. the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

ii. the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking inte account the views of Exccutive Dircetor and Non
Exceutive Dircotors;

iii. the quality, quantity and timelmess of flow of mformation between the management and the Board that is necessary for the
Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

The table below summarizes core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required and
available with the Board in the context of business of the Company for its effective functioning is as follows:

Sr. | Core Skills / Expertise Mr. Sanjay Mr. Vijay | Mrs. Rashmi |Dr. Parvez| Dr. Smita| Mr. Abdul
No. | Competencies Kumar Prasad Aprawal Anjum Hajari Quader
Agrawal Pappu Motorwala

A Technical

| Finanee v W v v v

2 Management v ¥ ¥ ¥ v ¥

3 Sales and Markcting v v ¥

4. Manufacturing and Operations v v

5. Rescarch and Development v ¥

6. Humazn Resource v v v W v v

= Information Technology

B. Industry

1 Knowledge about Economy v v ¥ v v

2. Industry Expericnec v v v v v

3 Knowledpe of Business Scctor v v v v v v

. (rovernance

L. Compliance Management v v ¥ v g

2 Knowledge about Statutory / v v v v v v
Repulatory Law

3. Expericnee in developing and v ¥ v ¥ v
implementing Risk Managemeny

4. Strategic Planning
Others

I Communication and v ¥ v ¥ v ¥
intcrpersonal skill

2 Public Relations v ¥ v ¥ v

i Corporate Restructuring v ¥ v v

9. BOARDCOMMITTEES

Currently, the Board has five committces Audit Committee, Stakcholders’ Relationship Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committce, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and Treasury Committee.
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i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee constituted in pursuance of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Repulations, 2015 and Scetion 177 of
the Companics Act, 2013 is instrumental in oversecing the financial reporting besides reviewing the quarterly, half yearly,
annual finanecial results of the Company, it reviews Company's financial and nsk management policics and the internal control
systems, internal audit systems, ete. through discussions with internal and external auditors and the following matters:

= Owersceing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosurce of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is correet, sufficient and credible.

*  Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appoiniment and il required, the replacement or removal of the
statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees.

=  Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

*  Appointment, removal and terms of remuncration of internal auditors.

= Reviewing, with the management, the annual finaneial statements before submission to the Board for approval, with
particular refercnee to:

1. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report in

terms of Section 134 of the Companics Act 2013;

Changes, if any, in accountmg policics and practices and reasons for the samc;

Major accounting entrics imvolving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;

Significant adjustments made in the financial statements anising out of audit findings;

Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to the finaneial statements;

Disclosure of any related party transactions;

Qualifications in the draft avdil repori.

*  Reviewing, with the Management, the quaricrly financial statements before submission to the Board for approwval.

b S =T U R L

= Monitoring the usc of the proceeds of the proposcd initial public offering of the Company.

= Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the intemal control
syslcms.

= BReviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, ifany, including the structurc of the internal audit department, staffing
and scniority ofthe official heading the department, reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit.

= Discussions with micrnal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thercon.

= Reviewing internal audit reports and adequacy of the internal control systems.

= Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

= Reviewing management letters/letters of intermal control weaknesses issucd by the statutory auditors

*  BReviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud
orirrcgularity or a failure of intemal control systems of 2 material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

= Discussion with statulory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascerlain any area of concern.

*  Tolook into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, sharcholders (in case
ofnonpayment of declared dividends) and creditors.

= Toreview the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism, when the same is adopted by the Company and is existing.
= Carrying out any other function as may be statutorily required to be carried out by the Audit Commitice.
Com position of Audit Committee, its Meetings and Attendance

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee is Mr. Abdul Quader Motorwala. Duning the year 2023-24, four Audit Committee
Mectings were held on 29® May 2023, 11" August 2023, 09* November 2023 and 13* February, 2024, the necessary quorum
was present for all meetings.

The composition of the Audit Committee and number of mectings atiended by the Members are given below:
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Name of Director Category No. of Meetings entitle No. of
Meeting held to attend Meetings attended

Mr. Abdul Quader Motorwala | Non Exceutive Independent 4 4 4

Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu Exccutive 4 4 4

Dr. Parvez Anjum Non Excecutive Independent 4 4 4

Dr. Smita Hajan Non Exccutive Independent 4 4 4

Company Scerctary acts as the Seerctary to the Audit Commiltce.

The Committce Mectings arc also attended on invitation by Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditor of the Company.

The Internal and Statutory Auditors of the Company discuss their andit findings and update the Audit Commitiee and submit
their views directly to the Committee to conduct detailed reviews of the processes and imternal controls in the Company.

ii}) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The Commitice is sci up in accordance with Regulation 20 of the SEBI {LODR) Regulation, 2015 read with section 178 of
Companics Act, 2013. The Commitice has been set up o oversee the performanee of the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents
with respect to redressal of Sharcholders grievances cte.

The process of share transfer as well as review of redressal of investors [ sharcholders grievances is undertaken expeditiously
and vsually reply is sent within a period of seven days of receipt, except in the cases that are constrained by disputes or legal
impediments.

Composition of the Committee, its Meetings and Attendance

The Chairperson of the Stakcholders” Relationship Committee is Dr. Parvez Anjum. During the year 2023-24, four mechings
of the commitice were held on 29" May 2023, 11" August 2023, 09® November 2023 and 13® February, 2024, the necessary
quorum was present forall meetings.

The composition of the Stakcholders” Relationship Committee and number of mectings attended by the Members are given
below:

Name of Director Category No of Meetings entitle No. OF
Meeting held to attend Meetings attended

Dr. Parvez Anjum Non Exceutive Independent 4 4 4

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Executive 4 4 4

Dr. Smita Hajari Non Excecutive Independent 4 4 4

During the financial yoar 2023-24 the Company / RTA has not received any complaints through SEBI SCORES platform,

however, Sharcholders have maised 3 complaints and requests which was duly resolved during the year under review.
Company Sccrelary and Compliance officer acts as the Sceretary to the commiltee.
iii) Nomination And Remuneration Committee

The Commitiee is set up in accordance with Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 The Commitice is sct up to
oversee the performance of the Exceutive Dircetors and recommends remuncration, promotions, increments cie. for the
Managing Dircetor and Exccutive Direetor to the Board for approval.

Composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, its Meetings and Attendance

Presently, Dr. Smita Hajari is the Chairperson of the Committee. All dircetors of the Nomination and remuncration committce
shall be non-cxceutive dircctors. During the year 2023-24, Four Mectings of the committee were held on 29" May 2023,
11* August 2023, 09" November 2023 and 13* February, 2024.

The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and number of meetings attended by the Members are given

below:
Name of Director Category Nuo. of Board Meetings MNo. of
Meeting held entitle to attend meetings attended
Dr. Smita Hajan Non Exccutive Independent 4 4 4
Dr. Parvez Anjum Non Exceutive Independent 4 4 4
Mr. Abdul Quader Motorwala | Non Exceutive Independent 4 4 4
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iv) Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Our CSR Committee (*the Committee”) comprised two Independent Directors and Managing Director. The Composition
of the Committee is as under:
+  Dr. Smita Hajari, Chairperson
= Dr Parvez Anjum, Mcember
+  Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Mcmber
The purposc of the Committce is to formulate and to monitor the CSR policy of the Company. The CSR Committce has
adopted a policy that intends to:
= Strive for cconomic development that positively impact socicty at large with minimal resouree footprint.
+  Be responsible for the Corporate Actions and encourage a positive impact through its activitics on the cnvironment,
communitics and stakcholders.
The Committce will be overseeing the activitics/functioning of the Company’s foundation and identify the arcas of CSR
activitics, programmes and exccution of initiatives as per predefined guidelines. The Committee will also be assisted by the
Company’s [oundation in reporting the progress of deployed initiatives, and making appropriate disclosures
(intcrmal/extemnal) on peniodic basis.
In view of eriteria provided under Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thercunder, the Company has duly
adopted CSR Policy of the Company. During the year 2023-24, four meetings of the committee were held on 29" May 2023,

11* August 2023, 09" November 2023 and 13" February, 2024, The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Commitlee and number of mectings attended by the Members are given below:

Name of Director Category Nuo. of Board Meetings No. of
Meeting held entitle to attend meetings attended

Dr. Smita Hajan Non Exccutive Independent 4 4
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Excculive 4 4
Dr. Parvez Anjum Non Exccutive Independent 4 4 4

v) Treasury Committes

The Board of Dircetors has constituted a Non- mandatory Sub Commilttee of Board styled as Treasury Committee with
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Managing Dircetor as Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu (Whole Time
Director), Dr. Parvez Anjum and Dr. Smita Hajan as Non-Exccutive Independent Dircctors as the Member of the
Treasury Committce. The Board of Directors has delegated certain powers to Treasury Committee to deal with the day to
day busincss affairs of the Company and to take the bencficial decisions for the Company and pass vanious resolutions on
behalfofthe Board cxcept thosc which arc to be passed neccssanily by the Board.

Composition of Treasury Committee, its Meetings and Attendance

During the year 2023-24, Eight Treasury Committec Mectings were held on 22 May, 2023, 06" Junc, 2023, 22™ July, 2023,

01" November, 2023, (il December, 2023, 19" February, 2024, 26* February, 2024 and 23" March, 2024. The NCCessary

gquorum was present for all meetings.

MNumber of mectings attended by the Members is given below:

Name of Director Category No of No. of Meetings No of
Meeting held | entitled to attend | Meetings attended

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Exccutive 8 8 8

Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu Exccutive 8 8 8

Dr. Smita Hajan Non Excculive Independent & 8 8

Dr. Parvez Anjum Non Exccutive Independent 8 8 8

Company Scerctary and Compliance Officer act as the Sccretary to the Treasury Committee.
10. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As per the Scetion 14%8) Companics Act, 2013, the Company and independent directors shall abide by the provisions
specificd m schedule IV, Further Schedule IV lays down a code for independent directors of the Company. Pursuant to said
provision of the Companics Act 2013, the Company has adopiced a code for the independent directors of the Company.
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11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All detzils on the financial and commereial transaction, where Dircetors may have a potential interest are provided o the
Audit Committee as well as the Board of Dircetors. The Interested Direetors neither participate in discussion, nor vole on
such matters. In terms of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 the Company has adopted a policy on the
subjeet and the same is available on the Company’s website at hitps://lexmopipe_com.

Details of significant related parly transaction i.c. the transaction of the Company of material nature with its Promoters, the
Directors or the Management or their relatives are presented under note no. 44 onnotes forming part of the accounts.

12. DETAILS OF SHARES HELD IN SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
The disclosure under Schedule V (Clause F) of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 is as under:

Sr.No. | Particulars No. of shareholder No. of shares

| Aggregate number of sharcholders and the outstanding shares in the 2 150
suspense account lying at the beginning of the year 01.04 2023,

2 Number of sharcholders who approached the Company for transfer of Mil Nil
share from suspensc account during the year.

3 Number of sharcholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense Wil Nil
account during the year.

4 Aggregate number of sharcholders and the outstanding shares in the 2 150
suspense account lying at the end of the year 31.03.2024.

5 The voting rights on these sharcs shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims the sharcs.

13. NAME AND DESIGNATION OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Ajay Shrivastava
Company Sccrctary & Compliance Officer Phone: - 07325-255122

Texmo Pipes and Products Limited Fax  : -07325-253273
98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur (M.P.) - 45033 1, Email- csigltcxmopipc.com
In addition to the above c-mail 1D of the Compliance Officer, the Investors/Sharcholders can also lodge their complaints, 1f
any, af complamis{@tcxmopipe_com.
The Company Sccrctary has been designated as Compliance Officer of the Company in line with the requircment of SEBI
(LODR) Regulation, 2015.

14. RECORDING OFMINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF BOARDAND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Company Scerctary records the Minutes of the proceedings of cach Board and Committce Mecting. Drafl Minutes are
circulated to all the members of the Board/Commitiee for their commenis. The imputs / corrections in the drafi Minutes as
sugpested by Dircetors arc incorporated in the final minutes thereafter signed copy of Minutes are also circulated to all
Dircetors. This is also in compliance with Secretanal Standard S5- 1 1ssued by The Institute of Company Seerctaries of India.

15. DETAILS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP AND COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Details with particulars of their Dircetorships and Chairpersonship/Membership of Board Committees in other Public
Companics, in which they arc Dircetors showing the position as on 31" March, 2024 arc given below

Sr. No. Name of Directors Directorship in Committee positions held
ather Public Companies Chairpersonship Membership
I  Mr Sanjay Kumar Aprawal 0 0 0
2 Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal 0 ] 0
3 Mr Vijay Prasad Pappu ] 0 0
4. Dr. Parvez Anjum 0 0 0
5. Dr. Smita Hajan 0 0 0
6. Mr. Abdula Quader Motorwala 0 0 0

In accordance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, Memberships!
Chairpersonships of only the Audit Committee and Stakcholders” Relationship Committee of all Public Limited Companics
whether listed ornot (cxcluding thosc of the company) have been considercd.
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The Company has received Declarations of mdependence as prescribed in scction 149 (7) of Companics Act, 2013 from
Independent Directors.

16. CODEOF CONDUCT
In compliance with Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and the Companics Act, 2013, the Company has

framed and adopted a code of conduct and cthics. The Code is applicable to the members of the Board, Scnior Management of
the Company. The Code is available on our website https://icxmopipe.com

The Members of the Board and Senior Management personnel have affirmed the compliance with the Code applicable o
them during the year ended 31" March, 2024. The Annual Report of the Company contains a Certificate by the Managing
Director & CFO in terms of Schedule V of the SEBI{LODR) Regulations, 2015

17. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Board of Dircetors has adopted the Code for prevention of Insider Trading in accordance with the requircments of SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015. The Code for prevention of Insider Trading lays down guideline and
procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing with shares of the Company as well as conscquences of
violation. The Code has been formulated to regulate, monitor and ensure reporting of deals by ecmployecs and to maintain the
highest cthical standards of dealing in Company Sceuritics. The objective of the Code is to prevent purchasc and / or sale of
sharcs of the Company by an insider on the basis of unpublished price sensitive information. Under this Code, Designated
persons ( Directors, (Mficers and other concermed employces / persons) arc prevented from dealing in the Company 's sharcs
during the closure of Trading Window. The Compliance (Mficer is responsible for sctting forth policics, procedurcs,
monitoring adhcrence to the rules for pre-clearance of Trade cte. Dircctors and designated employecs who buy and scll sharcs
of the Company are prohibited from entering into an opposite transaction i.c. scll or buy any shares of the Company during the
next six months following the prior transactions. The aforesaid Code is available at the website of the Company
hitps:/flcxmopipe.com.
18. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

There is no material Subsidiary Company as on 31.03 2024, The requirements of Regulation 24 of SEBL{LODR) Regulation,
2015 with regard to subsidiary companies have been complied with. The Company has adopted a policy for determining
“Material Subsidiaries™ and the same is available on the Company s website at hitps://lexmopipe.com.

19. SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Sr. mo. | Name of the Senior Designation Changes therein since the close of
Management Personnel the previous financial year.

1 Vijay Prasad Pappu Chief Financial Officer & Whole Time Director

2 Mohit Agrawal Chicf Exceutive Officer

3 Ajay Shrivastava Company Sccretary & Compliance Officer

4 Dilip Modi Gieneral Manager - Production

5 Ankur Mishra icneral Manager - Marketing

] Nicha Shroff Internal Auditor

7 Zaki Ahmad Shaikh HE. - Manager (Head) Yes*

8 Swat Patel HR - Manager (Head) Yes*

*After the closure of financial year under review, Mr. Zaki Ahmad Shaikh has been re-designated as Assistant H.R. and ceased
to be Senior Management Personnel wee . August 13, 2024 and Mrs. Swati Patel appointed as H. R. Manager (Head) of the
Company w.c.f. August 13,2024,

20. TOTALFEES PAID TOSTATUTORY AUDITORS

The total fees payable for all scrvices paid by the Company and its subsidianics, on a consolidated basis to the Statutory
Auditors M/s. Anil Kamal Garg & Company, Chartered Accountants, Indore and all the entitics in the network firm/network
cntity of which the statutory auditor is a part, for the financial year 2023-24 is Rs_ 15 lakhs.

21. DISCLOSUSRE
I. Material Significant Related Party Transaction

There are no materially significant related party transactions of the Company which have potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large.
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However, the Company has duly oblained requisile sharcholders approval for prospective material related party
transactions that may be entered into by the Company in the ordinary course of business.

i) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penaltics, and structures imposed on the Company by the Stock
Exchange or SEBI orany statutory authonty, on any matier related to capital markets, during the last three years:
There were no instances of non-compliances by the Company during the year under revicw.

However, in previous years, the Company was in reccipt of show cause notice from SEBI dated 16.07.2019 from the
Office of Adjudicating Officer pertaiming to GDR issuc of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has filed a reply
agamst the said notice on 08.032021. Also, a hearing before the Ld. Adjudicating Officer has been held on
18.05.2022 However, the Adjudicating Officer of SEBI passed an order on 28.06.2022 imposed a penalty of Rs. 10
Cr. under Scction 15HA of the SEBI Act, 1992 and Rs. 25 lakhs under Scction 23E of the Sccuntics Contracts
(Rcgulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) on the Company. The Company after perusal and analysis of the said order and in
consultation with the Counscl with their duc advice and legal opinion significd that the order has been passed on
maccurate asscssment of (acts and on disproportionate grounds and accordingly filed an appeal before the Hon'ble
Sccuritics Appellate Tribunal (SAT) against the said order on 05.08.2022. The Hon ble Tribunal in its order passed
on 30.09.2022 which was published by the Honble Tribunal on its website on October 06, 2022 considering the
facts that the Order of Adjudicating Officer is being too harsh, cxecssive, disproportionate, discriminatory and
arbitrary against the nimning and growing industry and substantially reduced penalty on the Company to Rs. 25 Lacs
only. The said penalty has been duly paid.

However, the SEBI has filed a civil appeal dated 02122022 regarding sct aside of penalty of Rs. 2500 Lacs under
Scction 23E of SCRA with the Hon"ble Supreme court of India agamst impugned final order dated 3009 2022 of the
Hon'ble Sceuntics Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai. Appeal is regarding sct aside of penalty of Rs. 2500 Lacs under
Scction 23E of SCRA imposed on the company. On 15.03 2024, Hon’ble Supreme Court issued notice and tagged
the matter with CA No. 4741/202 1. The notice was received by the Company on 13.04. 2024 The matter continues to
be sub judice before the Hon ble Supreme Court

The Company in respeet of the said matter also reeeived a Show Cause Motice dated 11.04.2019 from the Office of
Whole Time Mcmber (WTM), SEBI. The Company and other notices filed their respective replies on 08.03.2021
and 2008 2022_ Accordingly, a hearing before SEBI has been held on 23.08.2022. The WTM of SEBI passed an
Order on 28.02 2023 (received on 15.03.2023) in exercise of powers conferred upon it under seetions 11(1), 11 (4)
and JIB (J) the Securitics and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 that:

i.  The company 15 restrained from accessing the sceuritics market and further prohibited from buying, sclling or
otherwise dealing in sccuritics including units of mutual funds, direetly or indirectly, or being associated with
the sccuritics market in any manner, whatsocver, fora period of 3 years from the date of this order.

il. The company is directed to continue to pursue measures to bring back the outstanding amount of USD 3.49
million, the GDR proceeds mto its bank account in India within a period of one year. To furnish a Certificate
from a Chariered Accountant of ICAI along with necessary documentary evidences, certifying the compliance
of this dircction.

iii. Shn Sanjay Agrawal, Managing Dircctor, Shn Vijay Prasad Pappu, Whole-time Director, Shri Shanti Lal
Badera, Independent Direetor (at the ime of event) and Shn Rishabh Kumar Jain, Company Sceretary (at the
time of event) shall be restrained from aceessing the Indian sceurnitics marketl, and further prohibited from
buying, sclling or otherwise dealing in securitics including units of mutual funds, direetly or indireetly, or being
associated with the sccurilies market in any manner, whatsocver for a period of 03, 03, 01 and 01 year
respectively.

The Company after perusal and analysis of the said order and in consultation with the Counsel with their duc advice

and legal opinion has filed an appeal dated 12.10.2023 before the Hon'"ble Sccuritics Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai on

14.10.2023 against the said Order No. QJA/AAIVDIDA/24247/2022-23 dated 28.02.2023 (rcccived on

15.03.2023) passcd by The WTM of SEBL After various hearings and orders, the matter is still pending before the

said authority. However, the amount of USD 349 million as mentioned by SEBI, was already reecived by Tapti

Pipes & Products Limited FZE, the Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Texmo in September, 2012 and had additionally

furnished a Certificate from a Chartered Acecountant stating the same before the Tribunal.

Also, the Company is requircd to take Special Contingency Insurance Policy forinsuning the nsk ansing out of requirements

rclating to issuc of duplicate sccuritics, pursuant to Para 5 of SEBI Circular No.

SEBI/HOMIRSD/MIRSD RTAMBP/CIR/2022/70 dated 25 May, 2022. However, the Company has not taken the
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reguired policy.
The Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent M/s. KFin Technologies Litd. has duly obtamed the said
msurance policy on behalf of the Company and is having this policy cover for all ifs clients and the same is duly
complicd with. However, the Company has presently 2,91,94 887 Equity Shares representing 99.99% of the total
ciuity share capital of the Company is held in dematenialized form with Mational Seeuritics Depository Limited and
Central Depository Scrvices (India) Limited and only 3 sharcholders holding 113 shares are held in physical form.
it} The Company has complicd with the reguirements of regulatory authoritics on capital markets and no penaltics /
stricturcs have been imposcd against it in the last threc years.
There were no instances of non-compliances by the Company during the year under review.
Il. Vigil mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

In Compliance with Scction 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
Company has framed a vigil mechanism fwhistle blower policy and the same has been placed on the Company s Website.

Nonc of the employees of the Company has been denied aceess to the Audit Committee.
I1l. Management Discussion and Analysis Report
The Management discussion and analysis report is prepared in accordance with the requirement of Regulation 34 of the
SEBI{LODR) Regulation, 2015 and shall form part of the Annual Report to the sharcholders.
22. COMMUNICATIONS TOSHAREHOLDERS

Effective Communication of information is an cssenbal component of Corporate Governance. The Company regularly
mteracts with the Sharcholder through the multiple channels of communication such as publication of Results, Annual
Reports, Press Release and the Company s Website, The Quarterly, Half yearly and the Annual Financial results submitted to
the Stock Exchange at Mumbai in the prescribed format within 30 minutes of the conclusion of the Board Mecting at which
the result are taken on record. The quarterly financial Results and the Annual Results of the Company arc also published in
promincnt daily ncws papers such as Free Press (English) and Choutha Sansar (Hindi). The Company has also sent Annual
Report through email to those Sharcholders who have registered their email ids with Depositary Participant.

Annual Report, Corporate Governance Report, Audited Resulis and the quarterly Finaneial Results are also available on the
website of the Company hitps:/iexmopipe.com under mmvestor s information section.

23. PLEDGE OFEQUITY SHARES

Mo Pledge has been created over the Equity Sharcs held by the Promoters and/or Promoter Group Sharcholders as on
31" March 2024.

24. PROMOTERS'SHAREHOLDING

The aggregate Sharcholding of the Promoters and Persons belonging to the Promoters Group as on 31st March 2024
compriscd of 12914955 Equity Sharcs of Rs. 10/~ cach representing 44.24% of the total paid up Sharc Capital of the
Company.

25. DISCLOSURE OF NON-COMPLIANCE BY THE COMPANY DURING THE PREVIOUSYEAR.

There were no instances of non compliance or penalty, structures imposed on the company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or
any other Statutory Authority on any matter related to capital markets during the previous year.

The Company has compliced with the mandatory requirements of corporate governance Regulation 27 of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulation, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges.

26. GENERALSHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
i) General Body Meeting

The Company convenes the Annual General Meeting (AGM) within Six Months from the closure of the financial year.
The details of the AGM held in previous three Years are given as below:

Financi | Date and time Venue Special Resolution passed
al year -
2020-21(29" Scptember, 2021|98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur |1) Re-Appointment of Shri Amber Chaurasia (DIN:
at 12:30 PM. (M.P.)-450331 - Through VC/OAVM | 07729278) as a Non-Exccutive Independent Director.
2) To Approve Revision in Remuneration of Shn Sanjay
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Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 003 16249) as a Managing
Dircetor of the Company.
3) To Approve Revision in Remuncration of Smi. Rashmi
Devi Agrawal (DIN: 003 16248) as Wholc Time Director
of the Company.

2021-22

29" September, 2022
al 12:30 PM.

9%, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur
{M.P.)-450331 - Through VC/OAVM

Nil

2022-23

26" Scpiember, 2023
at 12:30 PM.

98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur
(M.P.}-45033 1 - Through VC/OAVM

1) To Grant Authority to the Board of Dircctors to
advance/give any loan, give any guarantee or o provide
any sceurity to such specificd person under Scetion 185
of the Companics Act, 2013.

2) To Approve Revision in Remuneration of Smi. Rashmi
Agrawal (DIN: 00316248) as Whole Time Dircctor of]
the Company.

3) To Approve Revision in Remuneration of Shn Vijay
Prasad Pappu (DIN: 0206674 8) as Whole Time Dircetor
of the Company.

4} To Approve Re-Appointment of Dr. Parvez Anjum
(DIN: 08529781) as a Non-Exccutive Independent
Dircetor of the Company.

ii)

Details of Special Resolution passed at Extra-ordinary General Meeting in last Three years.

Financi
al year

Date and time

Venue

Special Resolution passed

2022-23

28" December, 2022
at 12:30 p.m.

98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur
(MLF.)-450331 - Through
VC/OAVM

To Consider and Approve Re-Appointment and
Remuneration of Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal (DIN:
003 16248) as Whole Time Dircetor Aand Chairperson of]|
the Company.

To Consider and Approve Re-Appointment and
Remuncration of Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal (DIN:
003 16249) as a Managing Dircctor of the Company.

To Consider and Approve Re-Appointment and
Remuncration of Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu (DIN:

02066748) as a Whole Time Dircctor of the Company.

iii) Passing of Resolution by Postal Ballot

During the year, a resolution was passcd through the Postal Ballot by the Sharcholders for appointment of Mr. Abdul
Quader Motorwala (DIN: 0348 1624) as Non-Exceutive Independent Dircetor was passed through Postal Ballot dated
10" May, 2023, At present there is no proposal for passing resolution through postal ballot.

General Meeting for the financial year 2023-24

Datc & Day 27", September, 2024, Friday

Muodc Through *Video Conferenee™ or “Other Audio Visual Mcans™
Time 1230PM.

Book closure datc From 21 to 27 Scptember, 2024, (Both days inclusive)

iv)

Tentative Calendar for financial year ending 31" March, 2025.

Quarterly Financial Results Date of Board Meeting

1" Quarterly results First half ol August 2024

2™ Quarterly resulis Firsthalf of November 2024
3" Quarterly results First half of February 2025
4" Quarterly results Sccond hall of May 2025
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v} Listing Details
At present, the Equity Shares of the Company arc listed on the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE).
The Annual Listing fees for the financial year 2023-24 have been paid to the Stock Exchanges.

The Company has paid Annual Custodial Fecs for the year 2023-24 the National Sccuntics Depository Limited and
Ceniral Depository Services Limited on the basis of beneficial accounts maintamed by them as on 3 1 March 2024.

Equity Shares

BSE Limited
16" Floor, P.1. Tower, Dalal Street,
Mumbai 400001

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Bandra- Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East),Mumbai 400051

vi) Stock Codes

MName of the stock Exchange Stock Code
BSE Limitcd 533164
Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) TEXMOPIPES
ISIN of Equity Sharcs INEI41KO01013

vii) Share Price Data

The details of High, Low Prices of shares of the company at BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE) for the year ended 317 March, 2024 are as under:

Period - from 01" April, 2023 to 31" March, 2024,

Months BSE MSE
High(Rs.) Low{Rs.) High(Rs.) Low(Rs.)

April 2023 6851 44.31 6850 44.70
May 2023 6735 5695 67.80 57.00
Junc 2023 65.60 55.02 62.35 55.00
July 2023 61.00 54.00 61.05 54.10
August 2023 8925 5595 8935 5620
September 2023 T9.75 65.55 T8.00 6650
October 2023 82.91 67.00 83.00 67.05
November 2023 2800 6810 8790 67.40
Deeember 2023 81.34 69.41 21.40 69.00
January 2024 04.60 7275 95.00 T2.50
February 2024 108.00 8232 107.90 8235
March 2024 98.94 BE.61 96940 T0.00
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viii) Stock Performance in comparison to Broad Based indices;
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ix) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31" March, 2024

Category Shareholders No. of Equity Equity Shares held
(Amount) No. of %o of total Shares held Amount | % amount
shareholders Shareholders
1- 5000 42995 H9.56 4072428 A0T24280 13.95
5001 — 10000 2715 5.65 2228244 22282440 7.63
10001 — 20000 1244 2.59 1903447 19034470 652
20001 - 30000 380 0.79 082983 Q829830 337
30001 - 40000 171 0.36 614498 6144980 2.10
40001 - 50000 136 0.28 645737 6457370 221
50001 - 100000 214 0.44 1608292 16082920 5.51
100001 & Above 152 0.32 17139371 171393710 58.71
Total 48007 100.00 29195000 291950000 100.00
x) Shareholding Pattern as on 31" March, 2024

Category *No. of sharcholders Nuo. of share held Yo of equity
Promoters and Promoter Group 9 1.29.14.955 44 24%
Public sharcholdmgs

Financial Institutions / Banks 1 1291 0.00%
Bodies Corporate 111 507,146 1.74%
Non Resident Indians 255 2,285,570 0.98%
Non Resident Indians - Non Repatriable 127 233 488 0.80%
Resident Individuals 46317 1,42.76,923 48.90%
Forcign Portfolio - Corp 2 17,776 0.27T%
HUF 496 8.97.851 3.08%
Total 47318 2.91,95,000 1005

*Sharcholders with Grouping has been considered and mentioned.
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xi} Director’s Shareholding as on 31" March, 2024

5. No. | Name of Director No. of Share Held % of Holding
L. Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal 4700092 [6.10%
2 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 5448974 I B.66%
3 Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu 1200 0.001%
4. Dr. Parvez Anjum Nil Mil
5 Dr. Smita Hajari Nil Nil
. Mr. Abdul Quader Motorwala Mil Mil

Total 1.01.50,266 34.76%

xii) Dematerialization of Shares and Liguidity

2.91,94,584 Equity Sharcs representing 99.99% of the total equity sharc capital of the company is held in dematenalized
form with National Sccuritics Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited as on
31*March, 2024.

The bifurcation of shares held in Physical & Demat form as on 3 1st March 2024, is given below:

Category No. of sharcholders No. of share held Ve of equity
Physical 3 113 0.00%
Demat Segment NSDL 13085 89.17.161 30.54%

CDSL 34919 202,777,726 69.46%
Total 48007 2,91.95,000 100.00%

xiii) No Outstanding GDRs

The Company had issucd Global Depository Receipts on 11th April 2011, and the underlying shares against cach of the
GDRs were issucd in the name of the Bank of New York Mellon DR, the depository. As on 315t March 2024, there were
no GDRs outstanding.

The Company has been delisted from the Luxemburg Stock Exchange on 26th Scptember, 2014,

xiv) Investor Grievances Redressal System
KFin Technologics Limited, Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company has confirmed that, three Complaints
and requests were reccived during the FY 2023-24 from the Sharcholders which was duly resolved. However, no
complaints were received during the year through SEBI Scores portal. To redress investor gricvances, the Company has
adedicated c-mail id complaintsi@itcxmopipe.com Lo which investors may send complaints.

xv) Share Transfer System
The Company’s shares arc covercd under the compulsory dematenialisation list and are transferable through the
depository system. Sharcs sent for transfer in physical form are registered and retumed within a period of fiftcen days
from the date of receipt of the documents, provided the documcenis are valid and complete in all respects.

xvijRegistrar and Transfer Agents
Share transfer, dividend payment and all other sharcholders’ correspondence are attended to and processed by our
Registrar and Transfer Agents, i.c. KFin Technologics Limited having their office at:

KEFin Technologies Limited

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad — 500 032
Tel: +91-40-67162222, 33211000

Fax: +91-40-23420814

xvii) Plant Locations
The Company’'s plant is located at Registered Office, i.c. 98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur (M.P.) 45033 1.
xviii) Corporate Identity Number
The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company is L25200MP2008PLC0O20852.

xix) Address for Correspondence
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Sharcholder’s correspondence: Sharcholders may correspond with:

1. Regstrar & Transfer Agents for all matters relating to transfor / dematenalization of shares, payment of dividend,
PO refunds / demat erediis at:
KFin Technologics Limited
Karvy Sclenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500032
Tel:+91 4067162222, 33211000
Fax:+91 4023420814

2. Sharcholder may also contact:

Mr. Ajay Shnivastava
Company Scerctary & Compliance Officer
Texmo Pipes and Products Limited
98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur (M.P.) 450331
Tel. No.07325-255122
Email id- esf@icxmopipe.com

xx) Reconciliation of Share Capital

As stipulated by SEBI, during the year on quarterly basis the Company had complicd with the Regulation 76 of SEBI
{D&P) Regulation 201 8 by obtaming from a qualificd Practicing Company Sceretary a *Reconciliation of Share Capital
Audit Report’ to reconeile the total admitted, issucd and listed eapital with the National Sceurnitics Depository Limited
{NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and Stock Exchanges.

xxi)  Go-Green Initiative
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has undertaken a *Green Iniiative” in the ficld of Corporate Governanee by permitting
the delivery of documents viz. notices of mectings, annual reports cle. to the Sharcholders through clectronic mode vide its
Circular No.17/2011 dated 21 Aprnil 2011, In pursuance of same, wec take immense pleasure in informing you that your
company had started this from last three year onwards, initiated this Go-Green Programme by sending the soft copics of the
Annual Repor to the Sharcholders who have already registered their E-mail Ids with the Company and RTA. Further witha
vicw o cncourage the samc in future we roguest the sharcholders to kindly register their email address with the
Company/Registrar & Sharc Transfer Agent (With Depository Participants in casc of shares held in dematerialised form).
This paperless compliance is a part of Green Initiative im the Corporate Governance as introduced by MCA.L

xxii) Credit Rating
The Company has obtaincd Crodit Rating from Rating Agency M/s India Rating and Rescarch Private Limited and
during the year under revicw, in January, 2024 M/s India Rating and Rescarch Privale Limited has assigned and
reaffirmed our Bank loan rating as “IND BBB +7 (Tniple B+) for fund based facilitics.

xxiii) Statement of fees paid by the Company to Statutory Auditors:

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company has paid statutory and other Aundit fees amounting to Bs. 13.5 lakhs to
the Statutory Auditors. The details of the same have been already mentioned in notes to the financial stalements.
xxiv) During the Financial Year, no such agreement is cxccuted which is binding to the Company as per clause 5A of paragraph
AcolPart A of Schedule 1T of Listing Regulations.
27Ty COMPLIANCE
The Company Sccrctary while prepaning the Agenda, Notes on Agenda, Minutes ete. of the mecting(s), is responsible for and
is reguired to ensurc adherence to the applicable laws and regulations including the Companics Act 2013, FEMA,, read with
the Rules and Regulations issued there under, Listing Agreement with the stock exchanges and Rules and Regulations issucd
by the RBI and the Scerctarial Standards issucd by the Institute of Company Scerctanics of India.
28) MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS
The Company has fully complicd with the applicable mandatory requirements of Regulation 27 of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 exccuted with the Stock Exchanges.
29) ADOPTION OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS
Although it 1s nol mandatory, the Board of TPPL has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Commuitice. However, the

same has been applicable from the FY 2023-24, as per the provisions of Scection 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Details of the
Committee have been provided under “Composition of Corporaie Social Responsibility Commitiec™.
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30) COMPLIANCE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The guarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance has been submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the Company's
Equity Sharcs arc listed in the reguisite format duly signed by the Compliance Officer or Managing Dircetor as per applicable
provisions of SEBI (LODR) 2015. Apart from that the Company has also complicd all requirement of Corporate Governance
Report of sub-para (2) to (10) of Schedule Vol SEBI{LODR) Regulations, 201 5.

31) AUDITORS QUALIFICATION ON FINANCIALSTATEMENT
The Company’s Financial Statement s frec from any qualification by the Auditors.

32) CERTIFICATION OF COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE
The certificate from Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Company Scerctary in Practice, have been obtained stating that none of the

Dircetors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualificd from being appointed or continuing as a dircctors
af the Company by the SEBL/ Ministry of Corporate A ffairs or any such authority.

33) AUDITORS'CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company has obtained a Certificate from ils Scerctanal Auditors testifying to 1is compliance with the provision relating
to Corporate Governance laid out in Schedule V ofthe SEBI {LODR) Regulations, 2015 exceuted with the Stock Exchange.
The Certificale is annexcd to this Report and the same will be forming part of the Annual Report to be filed by the Company.

34) INFORMATION PURSUANT TO REGULATION 34(3) AND SCHEDULE ¥ OF THE SEBI (LODR)
REGULATIONS, 2015.

Loan and Advances in the nature of loan to Subsidiarics: Ami. in Lakhs
MName of the Company Balance as at 31"March 2024 | Maximum outstanding during the year
Tapti Pipes & Products Limited FZE *Nil

Shree Venkatesh Industrics Private Limited 71937 71937

Shree Venkatesh Polymers Private Limited

*During the previous year under review, considenng the financial position of its wholly owned Forcign Subsidiary Company
namcly “Tapti Pipes & Products Lid., FZE UAE’, for the financial year ended 317 March, 2023 as per its audited financial
statement, the company has made a provision for impairment of cntire loans and advances, which was given by the company
to its subsidiary company in carlicr years and which was outstanding as on 317 March, 2023, amounting to 3 62146 Lakhs.
35) CEQ/CFO CERTIFICATE
As required under Part B of Schedule 11 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, Mr. Mohit
Agrawal, Chicf Exceutive Officer and Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu, Whole Time Dircetor cum Chiefl Financial Officer of the
Company have certificd (o the Board regarding financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024,
The CEQACFO Certification of Financial Statement and Cash Flow Statement for the year are enclosed at the end of this Report.
36) REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A scparate scction on Corporate Govermnance forms a part of the Annual Report. This Chapter read togcther with the
information given in the chapter entitled Management Discussion and Analysis and Sharcholders mformation, constitute a
detailed compliance report on Corporate Governance during 2023-24.
37) DISCLOSURE ABOUT UTILISATION OF FUND RECEIVED FROM PREFERENTIALALLOTMENT UNDER
REGULATION32(7A) OF SEBI{LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015
During the FY 2023-24, the Company has not issucd and raisced any amount pertaining to allotment of shares on preferential basis.
38%) DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT PURSUANT TO SCHEDULE VOF
THE SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015
As required by Clausc D of Schedule V of SEBI {LODR) Regulation, 2015, this is to confirm that the Company has adopted a
code ol conduct for all Board Members and Scnior Management of the company. The code is available on the Company s web
site i.c. hitps:/lexmopipe.com.
. confirm in respeet of the financial yvear ended 317 March, 2024, that the Company has received from the senior management
tcam of the company and the members of the Board, a declaration of compliznce with the code of conduct as applicable to them.
For the purpose of this declaration, scnior management team comprises of employees in the Key Managerial Personnel cadre
as on 31" March, 2024 of thc Company.
For Texmo Pipes and Products Limited

Date: 13.08.2024 Mohit Agrawal
Place: Burhanpur Chief Executive Officer
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CEQVCFO CERTIFICATION TO THE BOARD
(Under Schedule 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015)

To
The Board of Dircctors
Texmo Pipes and Products Limited

We, Mohit Agrawal, Chief Exceutive Officer and Vijay Prasad Pappu, Whole Time Dircetor Cum Chicf Finaneial Officer, of
Texmo Pipes and Products Limited (“the Company™), to the best of our knowledge and belief, hereby certify that:

A, We have revicwed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our knowledge and
belict:

{1} Thesestatements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading.

(2) These statements together prescnt a truc and fair view of the listed entity s affairs and arc in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There arc, to the best of our knowledge and belicl, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the year which
are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity s code of conduct.

C. We aceept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for finaneial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectivencss of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining Lo finaneial reporting and we have
disclosed to the auditors and the audit commitice, deficiencics in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any,
of which they arc aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D.  Wehave indicated to the auditors and the Audit commitice
(1) Significant changes in mtemnal control over financial reporting during the year;

(2) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes Lo the
financial statcments; and

(3) Instances of significant fraud of which they have become awarc and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an cmployee having a significant role in the listed entity’s internal control system over financial

reporting.
Place: Burhanpur Mohit Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Date: 29.05.2024 Chief Executive Officer Whole Time Director cum CFO

(DIN: D2066748)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

To

The Members,

Texmo Pipes and Products Limited,
9%, Bahadarpur Road,

Burhanpur (M.P.) 450331

I have cxamined the Compliance of Corporate Governance by Texmo Pipes and Products Limited (CIN:
L25200MP2008PLC020852) (“thc Company™) for the year ended on 3 1% March, 2024, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and
clauses (b) to (1) of regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the yearended on March 31, 2024,

I. Thecompliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My cxamination was limited
to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said clause. It is neither an audit nor an cxpression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

2. In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to my examination of the relevant records and the explanations
given to me and the representations made by the Directors and the Management, | certify that the Company has complicd with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulation 17 to 27 and clauscs (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and
paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations for the respective period of applicability as specificd
under paragraph | above, during the yearended March 31,2024,

3. I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficicncy or
cffectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Dinesh Kumar Gupta

Date: 12/08/2024 Practicing Company Sceretary
Place: Indore M. No.:53%6 CP No_ 4715
UDIN: FO05396F000955026
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

Regquirements) Repulations, 2015

Ta,

The Mcembers of,

Texmo Pipes And Products Limited,
98, Bahadarpur Road,

Burhanpur (M.P.) 450331

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, retumns and disclosures received from the Dircctors of the Texmo Pipes
And Products Limited having (CIN: L253200MP2008PLCO020852) and having registercd office at 98, Bahadarpur Road,
Burhanpur (M.P.) 45033 1 (hcreinafter referred as “the company” ), produced before me by the company for the purposc of issuing
this certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34 (3) and Schedule V Para C Clausc (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulations, 201 5.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Dircetor Identification number
(DIN) status at the portal www.mea gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furmished to me by the company and its
officers, 1 herchy certify that none of the direetors on the Board of the company as stated below for the financial year ending 3 1st
March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Director of the companics by the Sceurnitics
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

S.No. | NameofDircctors DIN Date ol appomiment
L Rashmi Agrawal 00316248 03/07/2008
2 Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 00316249 03/07/2008
3. Vijay Prasad Pappua 02066748 03/07/2008
4. Parvez Anjum 08529781 13/08/2019
5 Smita Hajan 08763920 24/07/2020
B Abdul Quader Motorwala 03481624 14/02/2023

Ensuring the cligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Dircctor on the Board is the responsibility of the management of
the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these, based on our venification. This certificate is neither an assuranece
as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the company.

Date: 12/08/2024 Dinesh Kumar Gupia
Place: Indore Practicing Company Secretary
(M No 5396 | CPNo.4715)

UDIN: FOO5396F000954949
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‘ANNEXURE - G°
MANAGEMENT DISSCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDIAN ECONOMY

India has again rankcd = Largest Economy in the world and the Indian cconomy displayed speedy growth year on year and
globally reaching heights. The Central government declared the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) for the financial year 2023-24 at
7.6% against 7.2% for the financial year 2022-23. Owing to two major trade routes, Russia and Ukraine, along with subsequent
developmenis imposcd by different cconomics, global cconomy had a major impact on global supply chains as a result oil prices
surged high, which in tum pushed up inflation which also affect Indian cconomy and business trade. In line with global
movements, stock markets vanation, inflation, forex reserves again took a hit and increased in this year. All the major cconomics
of the world have also gone through some form of changes in trade policics and is also approaching India in vanous sectors for
trade and commeree. The Government is keenly working hard keeping in mind the vision of building “Make In fndia™ and
“Viksit Bharat (@2047".

OUTLOOK

In Financial Year 2024-25, the overall growth scenarnio is expected to remain well, although significant challenges persist in the
global environment. Consumption, income growth, and borrowing costs shall affect the countrics overall cconomic scenanio. The
global ceonomy is expected to grow 2.7 percent in 2024, influcnced by the ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict. Concurrently, global
inflation is projected to fall marginally to & per cenl. Despile other challenges, there are positive clements within the global
ceonomic landscape. The largest cconomies like China, the US, the European Union, India, Japan, the UK, and South Korea arc
not in a recession growth.

Even as the global conflict remaimed geographically distant from India, npples comprised increased oil import, inflation, cautious
government and a sluggish cquity market. India’s cconomic growth is cstimated at 7.6 per cent in FY 2023-24. India emerged as
the fastest-growing cconomy in FY 2023-24. India rctains its position and leads as the fifth-largest global cconomy. India
surpassed China and became the world’s most populous nation. The Govermnmment's increascd impetus on infrastructure creation,
showeased in the largest-ever allocation in the Union Budget is expected to drive cconomic progress. Expanding public digital
platforms and measures such as boosting infrastructure, global outreach, PM GatiShakti, the National Logistics Policy, and the
Production-Linked Incentive schemes will support and aid cconomic growth. Also major cconomic drivers arc road
transporiation and major policics and aids in all scetors and industrics.

INDIAN PIPING INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The future of the Indian plastic pipe market is cycing a futunistic approach and filled with opportunitics and is likely to grow in
coming yecars. The key sectors in Indian Piping Industry arc divided in potable water supply, wastewater supply, clectrical and
telccommunication cable protection, agriculture, chemicals, and oil and gas cic. As the countiry charl shows growth towards
development, the market is expected to grow at an impressive CAGR of 10.3% from 2022 to 2027, reaching a valuation of $10.9
billion. This growth can be attributed to a large number of factors, including government investment in infrastructure, an uptick in
residential and commercial construction, industrial expansion, the imigation scctor, and the replacement of deterniorating and GI
pipes. Undeterred by the challenges posed by the pandemic, the polymer pipes sector has emerged as a shining star in India's
ceonomy. The PVC Pipe Scetor expected to grow 10-12% volume growth this year. The demand for metal to polymer pipes has
cxpericnced a noticeable shift across various industrics, particularly in plumbing and piping applications within the construction
industry. CPVC pipes have also witnessed a surge in demand in the hot- and cold-water plumbing industry in recent years. As the
Indian ceonomy continues to march forward, the plastic pipe market is poised for an impressive growth trajectory, spearheading a
new cra ol infrastructure development in the country.

OPPORTUNITIESAND THE GOVERNMENT IMPETUS

The Government’s increased focus and impetus on infrastructure creation, road transportation, showeascd in the largest-cver
allocation in the Union Budget is expected to drive ceconomic progress and growth. Expanding public digital platforms and
measures such as PM GatiShakti, the National Logistics Policy, and the Production-Linked Incentive schemies will support and
aid cconomic growth. The Government is year on year focusing on allocating and inereasing budgets for infrastructure,
agriculture and major scetors giving highest level of revenue and employment in all means.

THE GOVERNMENT DEVELOPING INITIATIVES:
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The Capital Outlay Budget 2023-24:

The Budget 2023-24 sought to lay the foundation for the future of the Indian cconomy by raising capital investment outlay to Rs.

11 Lakh erores which equivalent to 3.4 per cent of GDP of the ceconomy.

Har Ghar Nal Se Jal: Under the Jal Jeevan Mission, the *Har Ghar Nal Sc Jal” Scheme aims to provide every houschold with a

Funetional Houschold Tap Connection (FHTC) inits premises to reduce the burden of fetching water on women in the houschold.

With the scheme, the government looks to provide all eitizens of the country with susiainable water supply connectivity for the

provision of clean drinking water and is focusing with a clear vision with a roadmap.

PM Gati Shakti National Master Plan:

By announcement of PM (ati Shakti National Master Plan and National Logistics Policy catalyse the infrastructure scetor and its

huge outlay boost all scctor in infrastructure and development. The Government’s focus by this initiative creates master plan for

cfficicnt and speedy work progress in developing sectors.

The land based transportation system:

The Indian government intends to aceelerate road construction year on year and the overall road construction project pipeline

remains robust across various arcas and scen in exccution stages. The Government focus is to build and develop roads and

highways to casc transportation and cfficient and cffective time management and casc in doing business.

Affordable Housing Project:

The growing awareness of home owncrship and the Government’s favorable affordable housing schemes has led to significant

growth in the affordable housing scgment. As we advanee, the demand for affordable housing will continue over the coming years.

In the Umion Budget 2024-25, the Finance Ministry has again announced PM Awas Yojana 2.0 - an initiative addressing urban

housing shortage, ensuning a pucca house to all cligible families focusing on urban poor.

Other Opportunitics:

*  The mcrcased growth in construction industry and technological advancement leads to the clear vision of government in our
scctor which shows the roadmap for our industry and future outlook.

=  Focusing on Telecom and Gas Sceetor, Company is driving its approach towards gas pipeline projects supply and distribution
chammels.

=  The Water Supply and Distnbution channels outreaching to the end areas focused ws on improving technological
advancement and reaching public distribution channels.

=  Secctors focusing more positively year on year includes Imigation, Real Estale and Urban Infrastructure and vanious
government schemes like Pradhan Manin Knshi Sinchayee Yojana and boosting in micro imgation projeets and apriculture.

= Furthecrmore, policy initiatives like AMRUT (Atal Mission for Rejuvenation and Urban Transformation) and Smart Citics
Mission creates huge demand for commercial and real estate.

CHALLENGES

Cost of raw material

The raw matcrial prices continue to increase and due to incrcasc in international crude oil rates because of conflict between
Ukraine and Russia. This Conflict has been projected to extent in this financial year also and the production cost of the players
operating in the industry also affecied a lot. Morcover, the change in raw matenial prices impact the end wsers and pipe
manufacturing players, as the cost is to be passed down to the downsircam indusiry users and is also affects both organized and
unorganized scolors.

Risk Management

The Company has in place an cflective nsk management framework Lo primarily control business and operational risks. The major
risk arcas arc systematically and peniodically reviewed by the scnior management. Al vanious levels, comprehensive policics and
procedures will help to identify, mitigate and monitor nisks. By teking such proactive measurcs, the Company cnsures that
strategic business objectives are achicved scamlessly in a sicady and cfficient manner. During the financial year under review,
rating for fund bascd facilitics of the Company has been *IND BBB+. Further, your Company has an intricate Risk Management
procedure which depicts business risk and operational risks that are supported by policy framework.

Human Resource

The Human Resource division of the company plays a vital role in hining, training, managing and retaining employees tobuild a
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group of talented workforces. So that they can reach their full potential and work diligently towards the growth of the
organization. The Company has created a level playing ficld space, whercon cqual opportunitics to all cmployees is provided.
With this belicf, it has cnhanced employee morale, boosted productivity and reduced people absentecism. As of March 31, 2024,
the Company 's permanent total work foree 1s 356 cmployees.

Product Wise Performance
Company’s major products arc PVC, HDPE, Fittings and Trading. Performance of various products at a glance is as under:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
HDPE Pipc 26.211.09 38.488.68
PVC Pipc 18.265.81 16.435.51
CPVC filting 1.296.53 1.346.76
Moulding fithings 325537 3.230.16
CPVC Pipe T2.98
Roto Watcr Tank T24.76 43921
RM Compound Salc 242 .46 220.84
Trading Salc 3.077.84 3.166.32
Total 53.146.84 63,327.47
Add - Sales of Services 68634 516.70
Total revenue from operation as per audit report 5383318 6384417

Note — The Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassificd wherever necessary to make them comparable with current
periods figure.

Internal Control System and their adequacy

The Company considers that internal control is onc of the key supportts of governanee which provide freedom to the management
within a outline of appropriaie checks and balances. Texmo Pipes and Products Limited have a strong intemal control framework,
which was instituted considering the size, nature and risk in the business. The Company’s internal control environment provide
assurance on cfficicnt conduct of operations, sccurity of Asscts, prevention and detection of frauds/crrors, accuracy and
complctencss of accounting records, timely preparation of authentic financial information and compliance with applicable laws
and regulation. The Company uses SAP - Enterprise Resources Planning software as its core [T system. The Internal Auditor is a
Chartered Accountant has been enirusted the job to conduct regular internal Audits at all the units/Branches and report to the
management the lapses, if any and submitted Report on quarterly basis to the Board of Dircetors for their review and comments.
To cnsure efficicnt Internal control system, the Company has a well constituted Audit committee who at its periodical mecting,
review the competence of internal control system and Procedures thereby Suggesting improvement in the system and process as
per the changes of Business dynamics. The sysiem and process are continuously improved by adopting best in class processes,
automation and implementing latest I T tools.

Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to operational performance

()n a standalonc basis your company recorded a turnover of Rs. 53,833 .18 Lakhs for the year ended 317 March, 2024 as against Rs.
63,844 17 Lakhs in the previous year which shows a decrease of 15,68 %

Un a standalonc basis, the profit before interest, depreeiation and tax for the financial year is Bs. 2,938.51 Lakhs as against Rs.
2.659.72 Lakhs recorded in the previous year. The profit before tax for the financial year stood at Rs. 1,506.46 Lakhs compared to
Rs. 59422 Lakhs of the previous year. The profit afier tax & exceptional item for the financial year at Rs. 962.25 Lakhs compared
toRs. 112,61 Lakhs ofthe previous year.

On a standalonc basis your company recorded Production of 40,907.70 MT for the year ended 317 March, 2024 as againsl
43 943 20 M T in the previous year which shows a decreasc to 6.91%.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:

Details of significant changes, i.c., change of 25% or more, as compared to the immediately previous Financial Year in key
financial ratio, along with delailed explanation therefore:
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Sr. |Particulars Ratioas on Ratio ason %ol Explanation, ifany

No. 31 March 2024)3 1 March 2023( Change

i.  |Dcbt Equity Ratio 0.14 Q.10 50.32% |Duc to increase in borrowings and increase in
total equity as compared to previous yoars.

ii. |Returm on Equity Ratio 5.02% 0.60% 730.25% | Duc to increase in Profit after tax as compared
to previous year.

iii. |Met Profit Ratio 1.79% 018% 013.43%|Due to increase in Profit after tax as compared
to previous year.

iv. |DebiService Coverage Ratio 2013 1.497 34.46% [Duc to decrease in caming before interest & (ax
and debt service as compared Lo previous year.

v. |TradcReceivable Turnover Ratio | 8.85 12.64 29.97% (Due to decreasc in Turnover and increase i
Trade Reeeivable as compared to previous year.

vi. |Retumn on Investment Ratio 0.49% 100.00% | Due to Net Gain on Investmenis anse.

RETURNONNETWORTH:

Dietails of change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous Financial Year as follows:

Sr. |Particulars Ratio ason Ratio as on %o of Explanation, if any

No. 31 March 2024|31 March 2023| Change

in¥ ind
i. |Retumn onNet Worth T28% 0.92% 693.70% | Duc to increase in Profit after tax as compared
Lo previous yoar.

Cautionary Statement

Somec of the statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis, describing the company’s objectives, projections, cstimatces
and cxpectations may be “forward looking statcments’ within the meaning of applicable Laws and Regulations. Actual results
might differ substantially from those expressced or implicd. Important developments that could affeet the Company s operalions
include changes in cconomic conditions affecting demand, supply and pricc movements in the domestic and overscas markets in
which your company operates changes in the Government regulations, Tax Laws and other Statutes or other incidental factors.
The company assumes no responsibality in respect of forward-looking statements, which may be amended or modified in future.
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Form ACQC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companics (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient feature of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or Joint ventures
Part “A™: Subsidiaries
{Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Name of the Subsidiary Tapti Pipes and Shree Venkatesh Shree Venkatesh
Products Limited FZE | Industries Private Polymers Private
(Refer Note (i) & (ii)) Limited Limited
5. No. 1 2 i
The date sinee when subsidiary was acquired 13.03.2011 20.03.2024 30.04 2023
(Datc of incorporation) | (Date of acquisition)| (Datc of Incorporation)
Reporting period 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24
Sharc capital 7323.11 1.52 1.00
Reserves & surplus (8306.33) [010.60 6l. 70
Total asscts 6. 15 381351 1041 .49
Total Liabilitics 1049.37 280139 078.79
Investmenis
Turnover 322 110187
Profit before taxation (555.53) (12.38) 7535
Provision for taxation {1.964) 13.21
Profit after taxation (555.53) (10.42) 62.14
Proposed Dividend
Extent of sharcholding (in percentage) 100% 51% 1 00%%
MNotes:

i) Converted into Indian Rupees at the Exchange rate USD 1 = 83.3739 INR.
i1} The financial statements have been audited by a firm of Chartered A ccountants other than M/s. Anil Kamal Garg & Company.
11} Mames of subsidianies which are yet o commence operations: Nil

iv) Mames of subsidiarics which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil
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Part B: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2003 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures
{Amt. in Lakhs)

Name of Juintly Controlled Entity NIL
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2024
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired Not Applicable
3. Shares of Jointly Controlled Entity held by the company on the year end Not Applicable
No. Not Applicable
Amount of Investment in Jointly Control Entity Mot Applicable
Extend of Holding in pereentage Not Applicable
4. Description of how there is significant influence Not Applicable
5. Reason why the Jointly Controlled Entity is not consolidated Not Applicable
6. Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest andited Balance Sheet Not Applicable
7. Profit or Loss for the year Not Applicable
i. Considered in Consolidation Mot Applicable
i. Mot Considered in Consolidation Mot Applicable
Note:

i) Mames of associales or joint ventures which are yel to commence operations: Nil

i) Mames of associales or joint venturcs which have been higuidated or sold duning the year: Nil

For: Anil Kamal Garg & Company For Texmo Pipes and Products Limited
Firm Reg No 004186C
Chartered Accountants

Devendra Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Partner Managing Director Whaole Time Director eum CFO
Membership No 078057 (DIN 00316249) (DIN 02066748)
Mohit Agrawal Ajay Shrivastava
Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary

Date: 29" May 2024
Place: Burhanpur



TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED 16™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,
TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Texmo Pipes
And Products Limited (“the Company”), which comprses the Standalone Balance
Sheet as at March 31st, 2024, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the ‘standalone financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
atfairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2024, and its Profit and Other Comprehensive
Income, Changes in Equity and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Description of Key Audit Matters

S.No. | Key Audit Matters

How was the matter addressed in our audit |

| 1 Uncertain tax positions - Direct and Indirect Taxes

The Company has uncertain tax
matters pending litigations under
direct tax and various indirect tax
laws. The  hitigation  involves
significant judgement to determine
the possible outcome based on which
accounting treatment 15 given to the
disputed amount.

Given the magnitude of potential
outflow of economic resources and
uncertainty of potential outcome,
uncertain tax positions are considered
to be key audit matters,

[Refer Note 38 to the standalone
financial statements. ]

"

Qur audit procedures included, among others,
the following:

* Obtained details of uncertain tax position and
gained understanding thereof:

* Obtained details of tax assessments and also
demands raised:

* Along with our internal tax experts, read and
analysed relevant communication with the
authorities;

*  Evaluated advice obtained by the
management from legal consultants on possible
outcome of the litigation:

* Discussed with senior management and
evaluated management’s assumptions
regarding provisions made or reflected as
contingent labilities:

» Assessed whether the disclosures for
uncertain tax positions are in accordance with
the requirements of Ind AS 37 on “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets™.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the standalone financial statements of the
Company :

& PROVISION FOR DIMUNITION IN VALUE OF INVESTMENTS IN
SUBSIDIARY

As disclosed in Note No. 41 of ‘Provision for Diminution in Value of Investment
in Subsidiary’, we have noted that at the reporting date, based upon the audited
financial statements of its subsidiary namely, M/s. Tapti Pipes & Products Ltd.,
FZE, UAE (in short "TPPL") as of 31st March, 2024, the company has determined
the Fair Market Value of investment in equity shares of TPPL made in earlier
years and accordingly, the resultant loss arising from the diminution in value of
investments has been charged to Statement of Profit or Loss Account under Nore
No. 34 of 'Exception liems'.

2. MATTERS EMANATING FROM THE INVESTIGATION CONDUCTED BY
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA [SEBI] IN
CONNECTION WITH GLOBAL DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS (GDRs) ISSUED BY
THE COMPANY DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2011-12

As disclosed in Note No. 43 of ‘Matters Emanating From The Investigation
Conducted By The Securities And Exchange Board Of India [SEBI] in Connection
with Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) issued by the company during the
financial year 2011-12', during the preceding financial year i.e. F.Y. 2022-23, the
company has made a payment of rupees Twenty Five Lakhs towards penalty under
SEBI Regulation. Also, certain directions on the company and its directors have
been imposed by the SEBI.

Our opinion 1s not modified in respect of above matters.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report
Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's
Report. Business Responsibility Report. Corporate Governance and Sharcholder’s
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters
stated n section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors
are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

13 A



TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED 16™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
traud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(1)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements
made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate. to modity our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial
statements represent the underlving transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

]
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of Section
143 of the Act , we give in the “Annexure-A”, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31st, 2024, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31st, 2024 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure-B™;
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(2)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given (o us:

(i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements — Refer
Note — 38 to the standalone financial statements.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

(i)  There were no amounts which were required to be transterred to the
[nvestor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entitics
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

(b)  The management has represented. that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.
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(v)  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

(vi)(a) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the
Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its
books of account for the financial year ended March 31%,
2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further,
during the course of our audit, on test check basis, we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with.

(b) As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014 1s applicable from Apnl 1st, 2023, reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention 1s not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31st, 2024,

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section
197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid
to any director 1s not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section
197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. : 004186C
Place : Indore
Dated : May 29" 2024
Devendra Bansal
Partner
Membership No. ; 078057
ICAT UDIN : 24078057BKGOUV2313
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in Paragraph 1, under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Regquirements’
section of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Texmo Pipes
And Products Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year
ended March 317, 2024, we report that:

(ifa) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular
programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which
all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of
three years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and
equipment were verified during financial year 2021-22. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification during financial year 2021-22.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds
of immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) recorded in the
books of accounts of the Company are held in the name of the Company. In
respect of Immovable Property taken on lease, the lease agreements are in the
name of the company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets
or both during the year.

{e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.
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(i1) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In
our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate in relation to the
size of the Company and the nature of its business. It has been explained to us that
the discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to
books and records were not more than 10% in the aggregate for each class of
inventory and the variation has been appropriately dealt with in the books of
accounts.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the year. On
the examination of records, it has been observed that the quarterly returns or
statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in
Agreement with the books of account of the Company except for the following
discrepancies.

[Rs. in Lakhs]

Natwreof | Quarter ending to | Amountas | Amount as per | Difference | Reasons for
Statement which the amownt | perbooks of | Statements Differences, as
Jupnis h'; d befare relates eI 1 ‘;"‘-*"I:’g‘";” informed by the
the L] Wl
management
Banks/Financial 4!
Thstitutions | | | .
307 June, 2023 7,775.50 7. 180.30 595.19 | The difference is
Stock 5 primarily due o
Statement | 30" September, 2023 | 7,689.9] 6,844.17 #4574 | non inclusion of
containing certain items af

inventory while
Jurnishing the
stotement to the

details of | 31" December. 2023 | 7.150.15 |  6.896.02 | 25413
fmveniories

307 March, 2024 6597.22 6,539.76 |  37.46 Bank
30 June, 2023 | 681782 | 693715 | (11933 |
Statement , The differcnce i
containing | 30" September, 2023 6,644,589 6.769.07 | (124.17) | Primardyduets

nen-consideration

details of of credir note whife

Trade 37 December, 2023 G6,991.29 FhOa7a2 | (75.73) deterining
Receivables | 1 ' { + amount of Trade
[ Receivables av
3 March, 2024 G545 47 7 163.55 (O20.08) | furaished before

the Banks
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{(11i)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, we report that the company has
provided loan to its subsidiary company. However, it has not provided any
advance in the nature of loans or stood as a guarantor or provided any security to
any entity. In respect of loans granted, the requisite information is as below:

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has provided loan to its subsidiary
company, as below:

: [Rs. in Lakhs]
Particulars Subsidiary Joint Venture | Associate Others

Aggregate amount of loan
advanced during the year 719.37 - - -
ended 31* March, 2024
Balance outstanding as at
Balance sheet date 1.e. 719.37 -——— - ——-

31% March, 2024

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made and the
terms and conditions of the grant of secured and unsecured loans are, prima facie,
not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures conducted by us, in our opinion, the loan has been granted
without any security and without stipulating any schedule of repayment of
principal and interest. As the loan is repayable on Demand along with interest, the
question as to regularity of the repayment or interest receipts does not arise.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures conducted by us, in our opinion, there being no stipulated
schedule of repayment and the Company having not demanded the repayment of
loan, the loan so granted has not become overdue.
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(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to
settle the overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

(f) The company has granted loan to its wholly owned subsidiary, without any

security. which is repayable on demand and which does not specify any terms or
period of repayment, details of which are mentioned below:

[Rs. in Lakhs]

Particulars All Parties  Promoters | Related Parties |
(a)Aggregate of total loans/ 719.37 - 719.37
advances innature of loan | _
(b)Out of total loans and advances, 719.37 ———- 719.37

repayable on demand / agreement
does not  specify any terms or
_period of repayment |
Percentage of loans/advances in
nature of loan to the total loans 100% - 100%%
| [bfa*100]

(iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, the Company has not provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Sections 185 and 186 of the Act. In
respect of the investments made and loans given by the Company, in our opinion
the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act have been complied with.

(v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public
within the meaning of provisions of section 73 to 76 and the other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company
pursuant to the rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of
cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its manufactured goods
and are of the opimon that prima facie, the presceribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained. However. we have not carried out a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether these are accurate or
complete,
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(vi1) (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the Company is
generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax , provident fund, employees” state insurance, income tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material
statutory dues applicable to it, with the appropriate authorities though there has
been a marginal delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amount payable in respect of aforesaid dues were in arrears as on March 31%,
2024 for a period more than six months from the date they became payable,
except Excise Duty amounting to Rs. 15856 Lakhs, which is pavable due to
reversal of CENVAT Credit on the Lost Goods and Commercial Tax amounting
to Rs.40.44 Lakhs and Income Tax (Search) (A.Y.2016-17) amounting to
Rs.38.12 Lakhs. It has been informed to us that the owtstanding amount of Rs.
158.56 Lakhs will be paid by the company as and when the insurance claim
against the goods lost will be received by it,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material
dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
material statutory dues applicable to it, which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, except for the following:

[Rs. in Lakhs]

Name of the MNature of Amount | Amount | Periodto | Forum where the dispute
Statute Dues Deposited = which the 15 pending
amount
relates
| _ (FY)
Income Tax Income Tax 3210 3209 | 2009-10 | Income Tax Appellate
Act, 1961 | | | Tribunal, Indore
42,73 42,75 | 2010-11 | Income Tax Appellate
1 | | Tribunal, Indore
29.90 6.00 | 2009-10 | Commissioner of Income
| | Tax Appeals, Bhopal
54,97 17000 | 2010=11 | Commissioner of lncome
| | | Tax Appeals, Bhopal
127.05 2310 0 2011-12 | Commissioner of Income
Tax Appeals, Bhopal
154.51 3100 0 20012-13 | Commussioner of Income
. . | Tax Appeals, Bhopal
|98 18 40000 1 2004-15  Commussioner of Income
Tax Appeals, Bhopal
H35.23 13365 | 2015-16 | Commissioner of Income
| Tax Appeals, Bhopal
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[Es. in Lakhs]

Name of the Mature of Amount ~ Amount | Periodto | Forum where the dispute is
Statute Dues Deposited | which the pending
armount
relates
Madhya Value Added | 119.78 399 | 2007-08 | Hon'ble High Court of
Pradesh Value | Tax | | Madhya Pradesh, Jabalpur
Added Tax, 24.25 606 [ 2000-11 | Additional Commissioner
2002 iy o of Commercial Tax . Indore
6.70 - 2011-12 | M.P. Commercial Tax
| Appellate Board
41.39 10,12 2012-13 M.P. Commercial Tax
. Appellate Board
13.14 | 3,29 2015-16 | Addifional Commissioner
| of Commercial Tax |, Indore
3094 999 [ 2016-17 | Additional Commissioner
of Commercial Tax ., Indore
Central Sales Central Sales | 47.32 | 2.37 | 2007-08 | Hon'ble High Court of
Tax Act, 1956 Tax Madbya Pradesh, Jabalpur
Entry Tax Act, | Entry Tax IR 23 1.91 708 Hon’ble High Court of
1976 | Madhya Pradesh, Jabalpur
21.55 11.85 | 2008-09 | Hon'ble High Court of
Madhya Pradesh, Jabalpur
7.90) 1.97 | 2009-10 M_P. Commercial Tax
Appellate Board
Goods and Goods and 36.66 5.67 | 2017-18 | Goods and Services Tax
Services Act, | Services Tax Appellate Authority
2017

(viii)

(1x)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
surrendered or disclosed any transactions. previously unrecorded as income in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as

income during the year.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the
mformation and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any

lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared as
Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
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{c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the term loans have been applied, on an overall basis, for the purposes for
which they were obtained.

(d) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the
information and explanation given to us, funds raised on short-term basis have.
prima facie, not been utilised during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or
further public offer {including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order
1s not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India. and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company.
However, we have been informed by the management that employee of the
company misappropriated funds amounting to Rs. 34.09 Lakhs during the year
under audit towards realisation of debtors of freight and logistics income.

(b} During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to
us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required
to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

84 A



TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED 16™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

(¢) According to information and explanation given by management, there
were no whistle blower complaints received by the company during the year.

{xii) According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company is not
a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xi1) of the Order i1s not applicable to
the Company.

(xi11) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the transactions with related parties are in complhiance with Sections 177 and
188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions
have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) {a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit
procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been
considered by us,

(xv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
J(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance
activities during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting
under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the
course of audit, the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii)  The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial yvear and in
the immediately preceding financial year.
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(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order 15 not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of
Directors and Management and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

(xx) The Company has during the year spent the amount of Corporate Social
Responsibility as required under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xxi) The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of
audit of standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of
the said clause has been included in this report.

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration No. : 004186C
Place : Indore
Dated : May 29", 2024
Devendra Bansal
Partner
Membership No. : 078057
[CAI UDIN : 24078057BKGOUV2313
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-scction 3 of Scction 143 of the
Companies Act, 2003 (*“the Act™)

Referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of the Independent Auditors® Report of even date to the members of Texmo Pipes and
Products Limited on the Standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March
31st, 2024, we report that:

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements
of TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED (“the Company™) as of 31st March, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI")., These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors” Responsihility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Cuidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 1ssued by ICAI and deemed to be prescnbed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
matenial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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[2]

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial
Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s intemal financial controls with reference 1o financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to the
Financial Statement

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to tuture
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, 1 all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2024, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 0041 86C
Place : Indore
Dated : May 29™ 2024
Devendra Bansal
Partner
Membership No. : 078057

[CAT UDIN : 24078057BKGOUV2313
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

[Amount in Lakhs]

Particulars Hota Mo, As al As atl
31t March, 2024 A1st Mareh, 2023
A. ASSETS
{1} |NON-CURBREMT ASSETS
(&) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 12.469.80 12.791.16
({b) Right-of-Use Assets 3 B66.88 1.059.53
(e} Capital Work-In-Progress 4 - 18.57
(d) Investrment Property 5 38.44 3844
(&) Intanaible Assets Other than Goodwill 3] 4.43 4.73
() Financial Assats
i} Invasiments ¥ 1.082.21 BOT.TO

iy Loans B 719,37 -
{g) Other Non-Current Assels 9 405.72 425.06
TOTAL MOM-CURRENT ASSETS in 1550685 14.946.18

12} |CURREMNT ASSETS
(&) Inventaries 10 £.597.23 706536
{b) Financial Assals
i} Trade Receivables 11 654547 5.6814.46

iiy Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 16.51 61.97

iii) Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 BBE.T1 B04.08
() Cher Current Assals 14 2.369.20 2,195.65
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS &) 1641512 1574242

T 1+ 32,011.97 30,668.60

B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
(&) Equity Share Capital 15 2,919.50 2,919.50
(] Other Equity 16 16.705.64 15.768.92
TOTAL EQUITY 19,629.14 1866842
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 (Contd.......)

[Amoaunt in Lakhs)

Farliculars Mota Mo, As at As al
Ftst March, 2024 31st March, 2023
LIABILITIES
1) |[NON-CURREMNT LIABILITIES
(&) Financial Liabilites
i} Borrowings 17 1.543.21 1,345.75
i) Lease Liabilities 18 926.16 1,087.00
{b) Delerrad Tax Liabilitias (Met) 18 1.580.52 158015
(e} Diher Mon-Currant Liabilities 20 629.50 567.84
TOTAL MOM-CURRENT LIABILITIES (1 1| 4,679,538 4.580.74
{2} |CUBRBENT LIABILITIES
{a) Financial Liabilities
i} Barrowings 21 128467 431,67
il) Lease Liabilitias 2 163.71 12809
iil) Trada Payables 23
~Tolal sutslanding dues of rmacng erenprises & smal emenprisas; and a3, 04 417.75
-Total outstanding duss of craditors other than micro anerprises &
srmall entarprizes 3.827.22 436557
iv) Other Financial Liabilities - =
{b) Other Current Liabilities 24 1.501.52 1.643.05
iz} Provisions 25 332.55 241.9%
() Current Tax Liakilifies {Net) 119.84 161.33
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES {2) 7.703.45 7.409.45
TOTAL LIABILITIES {1 + 2} 12,382.83 12,000,149
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 32,0011.97 30,688.61
Signilican! Accounting Polickes & Practices and Other Notes 18371046
Additional Regulatory Infermation 47
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements
Im terms of our report of aven date altached
For Anil Kamal Garg & Company For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Mo. : 004186C
Devendra Banszal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Pariner Managing Direclor Whale Time Director cum CFO
Membership Mo. - 078057 DIN : 00316249 DIM @ 02066748
IGAI UDIN © 2407805TBKGOUV2313
Maohit Agrawal Ajay Shrivastava
Chief Exacutive Officer Company Secretary
Indara, May 28th, 2024 Burhanpur, May 22th, 2024
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31st March, 2024

[Amaunt in Lakins)

Particulars Note Mo, Wear ended Year ended
A5t March, 2024 st March, 2023
I |Valug of Sales §3,0:23.23 T4 B2E25
I |Less: GST on Vakue of Sales (2,120.08} {10.984,08)
il |Revenue fram Operations 26 8%,833.18 B3.844.17
v |Other Incomea 27 125.00 853,02
V| TOTAL INCOME {iil + v} 53,959.08 63,927.19
Vi |EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 28 37,250,680 46,204,45
Purchases of Stock-In-Trade 29 288777 281894
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-In-Trade and
Work-In-Pragress 30 148,73 455 36
Employes Banefits Expanse a3l 2 465 64 2,289 83
Finance Costs 32 B23.52 1.282 58
Depraciation and Amortization Expense 1,043.38 1,082 497
iher Expenses 33 T.275.67 T.H8T.91
TOTAL EXPENSES (V1) 51,905.64 62,132.02
Vil |Profit before exceptional items and tax (W-V1) 2,053.44 178517
Wil |Exceptional items 34 S46.88 1.200.95
¥ |Profit before tax (VI 1,506.46 58422
X |Tax Expensa:
{1} Current Tax 530,00 500.00
{2} Shorl{Excess) Tax Provision for earlier years 23.84 16,54
{3} Deferred Tax [9.63} (34.73)
TOTAL TAX EXPEMNSE ¥} S44.21 481.61
X1 |Profit for the year {1X-X) 9E2.25 11261
Xl |Cther Comprehensive Income a5
A (i} ltems that will mot be reclassified subsequently to profit or koss {2877} 3472
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified subsegquenthy
fo profit or loss 724 -
B. (i} Kems that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
[ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified subsequantly
fo profit ar loss - -
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME (X1} {21.53) 34.72
Xl | TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (XI+XIN adi.72 147.33
XV  |Earnings Per Equity Share &
Basic {T) 3.30 038
Diluded () 3.30 0,35
Significant Accounling Policies & Practices and Olhar MNolas 1837 1o 46
Additional Regulatery Information a7

The accompanyimg rodes farm an integral part of the Standalons Financlal Statemants
In s o our report of mven dile allached

For Anil Kamal Garg & Campany

Charered Accountants

ICAI Firm Ragistration Mo, : 0041860

For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors

Vijay Prasad Pappu

Whale Time Direcior cum CFO

Indare, May Z3th, 2024

Devendra Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal
Partruer Maraging Director
Membershio No. - 078057 DIN : 00316245
IGAL DM : 24078067BKGOUNVZS13

Mahit Agrawal

Chiet Executive Officer

Burhanpur, May 29th, 2024

CHM : 02066T4R

Ajay Shrivastava
Company Secratany
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024
A Eguity Share Capital

1 G t ing poriad
[Ameunt in Lakhs]
Balanca a% a1 151 April, 2023 Changss in Equily Shan Feslaied bafarce as al Changss in Equily Shars Capilal | Balance as o1 315t March, 2024 |
Cagilal dus 1o pricr parioed 181 Agil, 2023 dhiring F.¥. 2023-24
291550 - 281980 - 201880 |
12) Previaus reporing pevkod
[Amaant i Lakhs]
Balanca as at 151 Agil, 2022 Chanpes in Equity Shana Rastalod bafance as at Changas in Equity Share Capital Balance as al 3151 March, 2023
Cagital dua 1o prior panod st Agnl, 2022 during F.¥, 202823
291950 B 2.519.50 E 21950
B, Hher Equity
{1} Current reporting period
[Amaant in Lakbs]
Parfcukas Eaquily Gomporant of Resar ard Surphss Rewahiation Totad
Cormpound Financial Soourties Retained Burplus
Instrumants Pratmium Earnings
Bralanes a1 the Beginfirg of raporting period as al et Aprd, 2023 5.0 6.931.76 2.2Ta.a2 Ed11.45 15.786.92

|Ghanges in Accounting Polices/Pror Panced Eroes - - - - -

Ehlﬂbﬁlhﬂm!:ﬁ-ﬂhﬂﬂlmﬂrmin’mdﬂﬂ st Aprll, XY 8589 B9 .76 2,279,822 G411 .45 15.768.92 i
|Prosit for tha financial yaar 202324 . . 962,75 . s6z3s |
Jther comprehenshie incoma for the financial year 202324 - - 128,77} - (2T
(Irsames taw redating Do iteers Thal will not be redassiied subssguantly 1o pralit I
o loaa - = T4 - 724 |
Transfer from Revaiuation Sunphie o Retained Eamings = * 7.Ta 7.7 -
|Uinamartisad Gest Perlizn an Intansst Fraa Loans tn Subsidary Written-off . . . . .
Unamorlised Interets Expanses an Loans from refated parfies writhan odf - . . - .

- r S5 | 779 D072 |

Balance al the and of rparting period & o Jst March, 2024 85.89 609 .76 322885 6,453,686 16.709.04 |

|2 Frevious reporting penod
[Amount in Laskhis]

Pameubars Eswily Comporant of | Plesars drd Suphss Revakualion Tetal
Cornpeund Firancial Saourties Aetainnd Surpius
Inatruments Pramium Earnings.
|Balance al the baginning of reporting perlod as ab 151 Aprl, 2052 a549 EAFLTE 24832449 a.411.45 15.621.58

:l.‘,.'hnngn-.'.n.ﬁ:;pt.lnhnq PolicsesP nor Panod Errces . . - . .

I | |
imldhﬁmttlihbégirrﬁan‘l raparling pariod w1 en Spnl, HEE [T 551 .76 213248 41145 15.5&1.!&%
|Profit dor the inancial year 2022-23 - - 1281 - 112.61
Other comprahensha incoma for the lindndal yesr 2022-23 - - 34.72 - M2
Transfar traom Ravauation Sumphlie o Reteined Eamings ol = - - -
Unamorlisad Cost Portion an Inbarast Frae Laars 1o Subsidary Withen-cH . . - : .
Unamacrlised Interets Expenses an Loans from redated parties writhen off . - .
- - 14733 - 147.33 i

|Balance at the end of reparting period @ o 3 st March, 2023 B5.88 6,91 .78 227882 6,471.45 1|§Ep§.§_|
Tha accompamying notes tarm an integral part of the Standalane Financial Stxlements
s per cur altached Raport of evan dala
|F|:|r funil Kamal Garg & Commpany Far and on the behalf of the Boord of Directiors
Chartansd Accountants
BCAd Firm Apgstmion N, 0021860
| Dewanden Bangal Sanjay Kurvas Aegrawal Wijay Prasad Pappu
|Partnar Managing Diracior Whete Tima Diractar cum GFO|
\Membarship Mo, : 0TBGET DM - OE16248 DM : C2065T48)|
BCAL LADIN - 2407808 TR GO 2213

Mohit Agraseal Ajay Shrvastwal

Chief Exacutve Officer Comparty Secretanyd
El:mlnre. May 20th, 2024 Burharpur, May 2580, 2024
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31st March, 2024

[Amount in Lakhs
Sno. |Particulars ‘ear ended 31st March, 2024 Year ended 315t March, 2023
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prafit before Tax 1,506,486 594,22
Adjustments for -

Depreciation and Amartization Expanse 1,043.34 1,082.97

Interest on Lease Liabilities 105,80 113,72

Othar Financs Costs 718.72 1,178.83

Bad Debts T706.72 .

Provision for Impairment of Debtors madefrevarsad) {143.37) 18.88

Intarast Incoma (90.20) (53.87)

Met Lossi{iGain) on Property Plant & Equipment 3.08 0.33

Mat Lossf{Gain) on Assets held for sale {5.35] -

Provision tor Dirminution in Value of Invastmants in Subsidiary 546.38 -

Remeasurement of Defined Benetit Plans [21.63) 2.863.19 34,72 2,375.48
Operating Profil before Working Capital Changes 4,369.65 296970
Met change in;

Inventories 468.14 {669.96)

Trade Receivables {1,494.36) (1,148,617}

Othar Financial Assals (B1.73) 191.91

Other Current Assals (184.31) [27.24)|

Financial Liabilities (49216 190.96

Othar Current Liabilities (141,53] 480,04

Shart Term Provisions 00,56 {1,835,39) 19.46 {964, 14)
Cash generated from/ {used in) Operations 2,534.26 2,005.56
Direct Taxes Paid (Met) 595.33) (479.97)
Met Cash generated from/ jused in) Cperating Activities 1.938.93 1,525.53

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Furchase of Proparty, Plant and Equipment and Intangitles (547.38) {T16.47)
Sale/ Disposals of Property, Plant and Equipment 34.83 4.34
Sale/ Disposals of Assets Held for Sale 16.10 -
Movement in Mon Current Investments {1.031.49) 554.43
Movement in Leng Term Advances [F12.37) 584,98
Movement in Deposits 19.34 86.43
Intarest Received 90.20 53.97
'Net Cash generated from/ used In} Investing Activities {2137.77) | 567.68

C. |CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
{Repaymeanl)/Procaeds of Long-tarm Bofrowings 187 .46 {401.47)
{Repaymentl/Proceads from Short term Borrowings g43.01 {270.94)
{Repayment)/Pracesds of Other Mon Current Liablilies 61.85 168.74
{Repayment)/Procesds of Other Current Financial Liabilities - (0.38)
Paymenl of Leasa Liabilfies including Interest thereon [225.03) (210.81)
Financa Costs (718.72) (1,178.83)
MNet Cash generated from/ {used in) Financing Activities 155,37 (2,045.659)
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Contd... )

[Amiount in Lakhs]

Sno. |Particulars Year ended 315t March, 2024 Year ended 31st March, 2023
NET CHAMGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [A+B+C] [45.47) 47.58
Cazh and cagh equivalents at the beginning of the year 61.28 14,39
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1651 | ] 61.97

Componenits of cash and cash equivalents
as at the year end :

Balance with Banks in Current Accounis - 46,99
Cash on Hand 16.51 14,88
Cash and cash equivalenls at the end of the year | 16.51 &1.97

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalons Finencial Statements
In terms of our report of even date attached
For Anil Kamal Garg & Company For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Mo, @ 004186C

Devendra Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Fartnar Managing Director Whale Time Directar cum CFO
Membarship No. : 075057 DN : 00316249 OiM : 02066748
ICAL UDHM : 2407805TBKGOUV2313
Maohit Agrawal Ajay Shrivastava
Chiel Executive Officar Company Secrelary
Indare, May 28th, 2024 Burhangpur, May 29th, 2024
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NOTES ON ACCOUNT
TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

MOTES TO THE STAMDALOME FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024
[T in lakhs unless specified otherwisa)

MOTE -1A - CORPORATE INFORMATION

Texmg Pipes and Products Limited ("the Company”) was formed as a Partnership Firm by the name Mfs Shree Maohit Industries on 13th
May, 1999 and was subsaquently converted into Public Limited Company under Part IX of the then Companies Act, 1956 under the name
of Texmo Fipes and Products Limited having Certificate of Incorporation dated 3rd July, 2008. Its shares are listed with the Naticnal Stock
Exchange [WNSE] and Bombay Stock Exchange [BSE]. The Registered Office of the Company is situated at 98, Bahadarpur Road,
Burhanpur (M_P.) 450331. The Company iz principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of PVYC, HDPE, SWR, Sprinkler, Drip, CPVC
Pipes and Fittings and Walar Tanks.

MOTE -18 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1B.1 Basis of aration

The standalone financial statemants have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") as nofified by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Acf, 2013 ('Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accordingly, the Company has prepared these standalone Financial Statements which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Cther Comprehensive Income) for the year ended 315t March 2024, the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 313t March 2024, and accounting policies and other explanatory
information (together hereinafter referred to as ‘the Financial Statements').

The standalone financial statemeants of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been authorized for issue in accordance with
a resolution passed in the Meaeting of the Board of Directors held on 28th May, 2024,

18.2 Basis of Measurement

The standalone financial statemeants have been prepared on a going concerm basis using historical cost convention and on accrual meathod
of accounting, except for tha following assets and liabililies which have been measurad at fair value;

= Certain financial assets and labilities (including derivative instrumants);
- Defined benefit plans - plan assals
- Assals Hald for Sale

1B.3 Funetional and Presentation Currency

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR}, which is the Company's functional currency.

1B.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1B.4.1 Praparly, Plam and Equipiment (PPE)

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, frade discounts and rebates less accumulated
depraciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost Includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any other cost directly
attributable 1o bringing the assets to its working condition for its intendad wse, net charges on foreign axchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate vanations altributabla to the assets,

(b} Subsaquent costs are included in the assel's carnying amount of recognized as a separate assel, as appropriate, only whan it s
probable that future economic benefits associatad with the itam will flow to tha entity and the cost can be measured reliably. In the
carrying amount of an iterm of PPE, tha cost of replacing tha part of such an item is recagnized when that cost is incurred if Ihe
recognition criterias are met. The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognized in accordance with the
deracagnition principles.

{ch Expenseas incurred in ralation to a project, net of income earmed during the project developmeant stage prior to its intanded use, are
considerad as Pra - Operative Expenses and are disclesed under 'Capital Work-in-Prograss',

(d) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipmant is provided by the Parant Company using straight line mathod, axcept on Frasheld
Land, an which no depraciation is provided. Depreciation on Properly, Plant and Equipment is provided by the Subsidiary
Companies namely 'Shree Venkatesh Industries Pt Lid.' & 'Shrea Venkatesh Polymers Pyt Lid." using wrilten down value
method, Depreciation provided is based on usahul life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule Il fo the Companies Acl, 2013 , If
significant parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted and depreciated
for as separate items (major components) of Property, Flant and Equipment. In respect of the Dies and Moulds, the useful life is
estimated at 12 years, which is different from the prescribed life of 8 years under Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013.
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16.4.2

(e}

if)

e}

Leases

16™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed al each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statemant of Profit and Loss when the assal is
darecognizad.

Spare parts procured along with the Flant & Machinery or subsequently which meet the recognition criteria are capitalized and
added in the carmying amourt of such item. The carrying amount of those spare parts that are replaced is derecognized when no
future econcmic benefits are expected fram their use or upon disposal. Other machinery spares are treated as “stores & spares”
forming part of the inventory.

The Company as a lessee

(a)

L

{z)

id)

(8}

i

(g}

L

The Company’s lease assel classes consist of leases for land. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a confract. A contract is, of containg, a laase f the contract conveys the rght to control the use of an identifiad assat
far a period of tima in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract convays the right to cantrol the use of an identified
assel, the Company assessas whather

(i} the contrac! involves the use of an identilied asset;
{iy the Company substantially has all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease; and

(i the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees o determine the lease term as the non-cancellable pariod of a leasa adjusted with any option to
axtand or terminata the lease. if tha use of such oplion is reasonably certain, The Company makes an assessman! on tha axpected
lease tarm on a lease-by-leasa basis and theraby assesses whather it 15 reasonably cartain thal any options to extend or terminate
the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehald
improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lzase and the imporance of the underlying
asset to Company's operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suifable alfernatives,
The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the cument economic circumstances. After
considering curment and fulure economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease peried
relating to the existing lease conftracts.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a Right-of-Use (ROU) asset and a comesponding lease
liabkility for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for short term leases and low value leases. For these short term
and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

The lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and
lease liabilities Includes thesa options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subseguently measured at cost less accumulated
depraciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life
of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events of changes in circumstances indicate that
thair carrying amounts may not e recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount {i.e. the higher of
the fair value lass cost o sell and the value-in-use) iz datermined on an Individual asset basis unless the asset does not ganarate
cash flows that are largaly independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the racoverable amaunt is determined far the
Cash Gensrating Unit (CGLU) to which the assel belongs.

The lease liability iz initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the fulure lease payments made over the lease
term. The |lease payments are discounted wsing the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding
adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its asseszment of whather it will exercise an extension or a
termination opticn.

Leasa liability and ROU assels have bean separately prasented in the Balance Sheel and |leasa payments have been classified as
financing cash flaws.

The Company as a lessor

{a)

The Company has not entered into any long term lease contract during the year in the capacity of "Lessar”,
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18.4.3

16.4.4

18.4.5

Adaption of Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) through Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards} Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases, which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17
Leases, and other interpretaticns. Ind AS 116 sets oul the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for both lessees and lessors. Itintroduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees.

Capital Work-in-Prograss

{a) Expenditure incurred on assets under construction (including a project) is carried af cost under 'Capital Work-in-Progress', Such
costs comprises purchase price of asset including impart duties and non-refundable taxes and costs that are dirsctly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intendead by management
and after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

by Cost directly attributable to projects under construction include costs of employee benefits, expenditure in relation to survey and
investigation activities of the projects, cost of site preparation, initial delivery and handling charges, installation and assembly costs,
professional fees, expenditure on maintenance and up-gradation etc. of common public facilities, depreciation on assets used in
construction of project, interest during construction and other costs if attributable to construction of projects. Such costs are
accumulated under 'Capital Work-in-Progress’ and subsequently allocated on systematic basis over major assets, other than land
and infrastrecture Tacilities. on commissioning of oreiects.

{c) Capltal Expenditure incurred for creation of facilities, over which the Company does not have confrol but the creation of which is
assantial principally for construction of the project, is capitalized and carfied under 'Capital Work-in-Progress' and subsaguently
allocated on systamalic basis ovar major assets, athar than land and infrastructura facilities, on commisgioning of projacts, keaping
in view the “attributability” and the “Unit of Measure” concepts in Ind AS 16- “Froperty, Plant & Equipment”. Expenditure of such
nature incurred after completion of the project, is chargad to Statament of Profit and Loss.

{a) Recognition and Measurement

The Freehaold Land classified as Investment Proparty is stated at Revalued Cost as on the dale of transition o Ind-AS.
fbh  Depreciation

Mo depreciation is provided on Freehold Land, considering its infinite useful life.
icl Disposal

Gains or logses arising from derecognition of investment properly is measured as the difference betwaen the net disposal procesds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intanginle asseals

{a) Intangibie Assets purchased are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated
amortization /depletion and impairment foss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly
aftributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable 1o the intangible assets. Subsequent costs are included in the
assal's carrying amount or racagnisad as a separate assal, as appropriate, only when it is probable that fulure acenamic banefils
associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

{b) Amartisation is provided en straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the intangitle assets, which is taken at § years for
Computer Software. The amartisation periad for intangible assets with finita ugeful lives ara reviewad al least al sach year end.
Changes in useful lives are treatad as changes in accounting estimates.

{c} Gains or losses arsing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

{dy Revenue expenditure periaining to research is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, Development costs of products are
charged to the Siatement of Profit and Loss unless a product’s fechnological and commercial feasibility has been established, in
which case such expenditure is capitalised.

(&) The Company has no internally generated Intangible Assets.
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1B4.6 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant and Equipmeant and Intangible Assate

{a) The Company assesses at each reporfing date as to whether there is any indication that any proparty, plant and eguipment and
intangible assets or group of assets, called Cash Generating Units (CGU) may be impaired, If any such indication exists the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGL is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU 1o which the
aszsel belonas.

{E) An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amaunt. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assassments of the time valua of monay and risk spacific o the assets.

{c} The impaiment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has beemn a change in the astimate of recoverable
amaunt.

1B.4.7  Borrawing Costs

{a) Borrowing costs include exchange differances arising from forgign currency borrowings o the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost. Barrowing cosis directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial pericd of time to gei ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
aszset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.

k) Interest income earned on the lemporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on gualifying assets is
daductad from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

{c} All ather borrowing costs are expensad in the period in which they cocur,
1848  Inventories

{a) lterms af inventories are maasurad al lower of cost and net realisabla valua after providing lor obsolescance, if any, axcepl in case
af by-products which are valued at net realisabla value. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and
ather casts including manufacturing overheads nef of recoverable taxes incurred in bringing them fo their respective present
lxcation and condition.

{by Cost of raw materials, work-in- progress, finished goods, stock-in-trade, stores and spares and packing materials are determined at
Cost, with moving average price an First in First Out [FIFO] basis.

1B.4.9  Aszsals Hald For Sala

The assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is intended to be recovered principally through sale rather than through
continuing usa. The condition for classification of hald for sale is mel when the asset is available for iImmadiate sale and the same is highly
probable of being completed within ona year from the date of classification under held for sala.

1B.4.10 Provisions, Confingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels

{a) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will ke required to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Such provisions are determined based on management's estimate of the amount
reguired to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement i recognised as a standalone asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

by I the affact of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pra-tax rata that raflecls, when
appropriats, the risks spacific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in tha provision due to the passage of time is
recagnised as a finance cost,

{c} Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management. These are reviewad at each balance sheet date
and are adjusted to reflact the curfent management’s estimate.

{dy Contingant assets are not recagnized but are disclesed in the financial statements when inflow of economic benefils is probable.

18411 Income Taxes

{ay Income-Tax expensa comprises of current and deferred income tax which has been shown under the head Tax Expenses’. Income
lax axpanse is recogniad in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss axcept to the extent that it relates ta items recognized
diractly in equity, in which case it is recognized in athar comprehensive incomea,

{b) Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid fo the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

{c) Deferred tax 15 recognised on temporary differences betwesn the carming amounts of assels and labilties in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases usead in the computation of taxable profit,

{dy Deferred tax liabilittes and assels are measurad at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
seltled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The carrying amaount of deferrad Lax labilitias and assels are reviewad at the end of @ach reporting period.
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18.4.12

1B.4.13

16.4.14

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translalions

{a) Transactions in fereign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary asseis
and liabilities demominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting
date.

{b) Exchange differances arsing on setttement or translation of monetary items are recognisad in Statement of Profit and Loss except
o the extent of exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on fareign currency borrowings that are
directly atfributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of assets.

ic} Mon-manetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the exchange rates at
the date of the transaction. Mon-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arizing on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair
value g treated in line with the racognition of the gain or loss on the changa in fair value of the item (i.e., transliation differences an
iterns whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss are also racognised in OC| or Statement of
Profit and Loss, respectively).

Em, e Boenelits Expensa

{a) Shaort Term Employee Benefils

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employeas are recognised as an expense during the pericd when the amployees render the senices.

{b) Post-Employment Benedits

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays specified contibutions to a separate
entity. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Pension Scheme.
The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the
amployvee renders tha related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheat date
excesds the contribution already paid, the deficit payabla to the schame is recegnised as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. If the cantribution already paid exceads the conlribution dus for services received befare the balance sheel date, then
excess 15 recognised as an asset to that extent,

(¢} Definad Banalits Plans

(i} The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developrmeants in tha future. These include tha determination of the dizcount rate, fulure salary increases, mortality
rates and future pension increases. Due fo the complexitiss invalved in tha valuation and i1s long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumplions are reviewed at each reporting date,

{ii} The Company pays gratuity to the employees whosver has completed five years of service with the Company af the time of
resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the provisions
of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1872,

i) The gratuity liability amount is contributed 1o the approved gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratuily payment to the
amployees. The gratuity fund has been approved by the governing Income-Tax authorities,

{Iv) The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employmeant benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Gredit Method
and spread over the period duning which the benefit is expecied to be derived from employees’ services.

(v) Re-measuremants of defined benafit plans in respect of post-employmant are charged to the Other Comprahensive
Ineome.

{d) Employee Separation Costs

Compensation to employees who have opted for retirement under the voluntary retirement scheme of the Company is payable in
the year of exercise of option by the employee. The Company recognises the employee separation cost when the scheme is
announcad and the Company is demonstrably committed to it

Revenue from Operations

{a) Revenue from sale of goods is recaognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control or
managerial involvemant with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

() Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performance obligation to render the services are completed as per
contractually agreed terms.

{c} Revenue from sale of goods & rendering of services is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding trade discounts, volume rebates and faxes or duties
collacted on bahalf of the Governmant such as Goods and Services Tax [GST]. However, mere far tha reprasentation purpases, in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, value of salas, al once, is shown inclusive of Goods & Services Tax and subsequently, such
Goods & Sarvices Tax ara reduced.
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1B.4.15

1B.4.16

1B.4.17

1B.4.18

iB.4.18

{a) Intarest Income

For all Debt Instruments measured either at Amortized Cost or at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income, interest
income is recorded using the Effective Inlerest Rate [EIR]. EIR iz the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expectad life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, whare appropriate, to the gross carmying
amourt af the linancial asseat or to the amorlized cost of a linancial kability.

[14]] Dividend Incoma

Dividend incame is recognised only when the right to receive the same is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and tha amaunt of dividend can be measurad raliably.

Goods and Sarvices Tax [GST]

The Goods & Services Tax balances, as appearing in the Balance Sheet of the Company, are subject 1o the reconciliation at the time of
furnishing the annual GST returns of the company, under the Goods and Services Tax Enactments, for the financial year 2023-24.

{a) Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted expacted to be admitted 1o the extant that there is no
uncertainty in receiving the claims.

[14]] The Company Is expacting the settlement of insurance claims lodged by it within next twelve months and therafore, the Company
has clagsified such Insurance Claims Receivables under the head ‘Other Cumrent Assels” in the Balance Sheet,

Incentives Receivable from Government

{a) VAT Incantive recervables from Governmant under TRIFAC are accounted for cn the basiz of claims admitted! axpected to be
admitted to the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims,

() The Company I3 expecting the settlement of incentive receivables lodged by it, within next twelve months and therefore. the
Company has classified such incentive receivables under the haad "Other Currant Assets' in the Balance Sheet.

Financial instrumenis
[¥:1)] Financial Asgets
(i} itial r it mi rement
All financial assets and liabilities arg intially recognized af fair value. Transaction costs that are direcily aftributable 1o tha
acquisition ar issue of financial assets and tinancial liabilities, which are not at fair value through  profit or loss, are adjusted

to the falr value on initlal recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

{Hi) Subseguent mMessurameant

Financial assets carriad at amartisad cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is helkd within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in
arder to collect contractual cash flows and the contraciual ferms of the financial asset giva rise an specified dates o cash
flows that are salaly payments of principal and interest on the principal amount oulstanding.

Financial asssts al fair value through ather comprabensive incoma (FYTOCH

A financial assal s measurad at FVTOC! I i1 i hald wilhin & business modal whose objective iz achieved by both collacling
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on spacified
dates to cazh flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount  outstanding.

A financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVWOCI, is classified as FYTPL.

iy Investment in subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Veniures

The Company has elected to measure investment in its wholly owned subsidiaries Tapti Pipes & Products Ltd., FZE, UAE'
& 'Shree Venkatesh Polymers Pyt, Ltd." and its partially owned subsidiary ‘Shree Venkatesh Indusiries Pvt. Lid.' at its Fair
Walua .

(i) Othar Equity Investinants
Al ether aqully Investmenls are meoasurad al falr value, with valua changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,

except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in '‘Other
Comprehensive Income’.
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(b}

W) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 108, the Company uses "Expected Cradit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairmant of
financial assets,

Expacted cradil losses are measured through a loss allowanca at an amount egual to:

« The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

« Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the
financial instrument)

Faor trade recaivables Company applies ‘simplified approach” which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised fram
initial recognition of the receivables, The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss an the
porifalio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward
looking estimates are analysed.

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL fo provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in
credif risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full ifetima ECL is usead.

Financial Liabilities

{1 Initial recognition and measurameant

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring
nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost,

(i} nt m I t
Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interast method. For trade and other payables maturing
within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these

instrumeants.

iy Derivative financial instruments and Hedge Accounting

Derivativa financial instruments are inifislly recognisad at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is enterad
inta and are also subsequently measured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets whan the fair value is
positive and as financial iabilities when the fair value is negafive. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of derivatives are laken directly to Statement of Profit and Loss, except for the effective porlion of cash flow hedges which
iz recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and later to Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedged item affacts
profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment If a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a
non-financial assats or non-financial liability.

Hedges that meet the criteria for hadge accounting are accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedge

The Company designates derivative confracis or non dervative financial assets [/ liabilities as hedging instruments to
mitigate the risk of movement in interest rates and foreign exchange rates for foreign exchange exposure on highly
prabable future cash flows atiributable to a recognised asset or liability or forecast cash transactions. When a derivative is
designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective porfion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is
recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve baing part of other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion of changes
in the fair valua of the derivative is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relatienship
no longer meets the erteria lor hedoge accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospactively. If the hedaing
instrumant expiras or s sold, lerminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or lass on the hedging instrumeant recagnized in
cazh flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains in cash flow hadging reserve until the underlying
transaction occurs, The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the cash flow hedging resarve is transferred to
the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occumrence of the underlying transaction. If the forecasted transaction is no
longer expected to ocour, then the amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Fair Walue H

The Company designates derivative contractz or non derivative financial assets / liabilties as hedging instruments to
mitigate the risk of change in fair value of hedged item due to movement in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
cammadity prices.

Changas in the fair value of hedging instruments and hedged items that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges
are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the camrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is
amortised to Statement of Profil and Loss over the period of maturity.
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1B.4.20

18.4.21

18.4.22

1B.4.23

[iv) Derecogniticn of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire
or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109, A financial liability (or a part
of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the cantract is
discharged or cancelled or axpires.

Operating Cycls

(&) The Company presents (s assets and liabilities in the balance sheel based on currentinon-current classification which is based
upan the Company's aparating cycle. The Company has idaniified twelva manths as its operating eycle.

{b) An asset is treated as current when it is:

{i} Expected to be realized ar intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

{iiy  Held primarity for the purpose of trading;

{iiily  Expected 1o ba realized within twalve months after tha reporting pariod; or

(W)  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a lability for at least twelve months after
the raporing period

(<) A liakility 1s freated as current when :

{i} It is expected to be settled in normal oparating cycle;

{iiy M is incurred primarily for the purpose of trading;

filiy It is due ta be settlad within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(w)  There is no unconditional right o defer the settlement of the liability for at least twalve months after the
raporling perlad.

(d) Defarred tax assets and labilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

mings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the peried atiributabla to eguity sharehalders by weightad
average number of aguity shares aulstanding during the perod. The weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the
pariod are adjusted for events of shares issued during the year including bonus issue.

For the purpese of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
welghled average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Divi Distribut

Dividends paid is recognisad in the period in which the intarim dividends are approved by the Board of Directors, or in respact of the final
dividend when approved by the shareholders.

Statement of Cash Flows

{a)  Cashand Cash equivalents
For the purposa of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, othar short-larm,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and

which ara subject 1o an insignificant risk of changas in value.

(b) The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7
on 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

HNOTE -1C - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS reguires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that zffect the application of accounting palicies and the reported amounis of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial
statements and the reparted amounts of the revenues and expenzes for the years presented. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors thal are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions and conditions. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an cngoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects onby that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
rewision affects both currant and fulure pariods.

1Ca

Depreciation ! amorisation and useful lives of property plant and equipment [ intangible assets

Property, Plant and Eguipment / Intangible asseis are depreciated / amorised over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated wseful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine
the amount of depreciation / amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the
Company's historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation [
amartisation for future percds is revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

102 A



TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED 16™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

1¢.2

1C.4

1G5

Aecaverability of Trade Receivable

Judgments are reguired in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those
recaivables is reguired. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty. the amount and timing of anticipated future
paymants and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

Provisions

Provisionz and liabilities are recognized in the pariod whan it becomes probable that thers will ba a future sutflow of funds rasulling from
past operations or avenls and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recagnition and quantification of the
liability requires the application of judgment fo existing facls and circumstances, which can be subject to change, The carrying amounts of
provisions and labilities are reviewed reqularly and revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances,

Impairmant of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. if any indication exists. the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or Cash Generating Units
{CGUs) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determinad for an individual asset, unless the asset doas not ganerate
cash inflows that ara largely indepandent of those from other assels or a groups of assels. Whers tha carrying amount of an asset or CGU
axceads 18 recoverable amaount, tha assel is considerad impaired and is written down to its racoverable amaunt.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their prasent value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of ha time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation madel is used,

Impairment of financial assels
The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumplions about risk of defaull and expectad cash loss rates. The

Company uses judgmeant in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting penod,
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

HOTE - 7 - NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

[AmaLn in Lakhs)

‘Particulan: | As a1 As af
|
Irvestrment in Equity Instruments (U nqualed)
A Whally Owrad Subsidianas
i Tegli Ppes & Produgls Lid, FZE, UAE * 116213 116213
132,735 [Previous yaar - 32.235), Equity Sharas ol Face Valea of 1000 UAE Dithams [Previaus year = 10090) each
Lags - Provigion for Deninutien in Yaiue of Invastimant in Shara of Tagtl Pipes & Products Lid FZE, UAE 1,101,468 55448
BO.GT EO7.65
(@ Shres Venkalsah Polymera Privale Lirmitad, Bufkanpar
10,000 [Prewiols year - NilL Equity Shares of Face Vales of 2100 sach, Tully paid-up 1.0 -
] G61.67 G007 86
By Gener Subsidiary
Shrae Yenkatash Indiesines Frivase Limitad, Indore
10,405 [Previoes year - Mill. Equilty Sharas of Face Valee of #1065 each, Partly paidap af Rs.5- aach
Issuad at Premium of $19.7%0/% aach, =1} 1.030.43 -
L} Qihars
Tenrme Figes Foundation
00 [Prewious yaar - 500), Equity Shares of Face Vakue of T10- each. fully paid-up ] 0.05 .05
TOTAL (BB ) 1.082.21 farre
id FZE,
5 at A5 at
E1st March, 2024 | 315t March, 2073 |
Opanng Balanca 554,48 -
Add 1 Provigion made disirg the year 545.54 554.48
Closing Balarce 1101448 554.48
‘Mates: .
{ia Tha provissan for dimirution in valus af imvastment in shares of wholly owned foreign subsidary of the Company namaly ‘Taph Pipas & Products L., FZE
LIAE', has baen made cansdering the financial position and net worth of tha subsidany compary for the financial year anded 315t March, 2024, which In its
tam, i based upan the auditad financial statement of the subsidany company as of 3151 March, 2024, Tha provision of ¥ 54696 Lakhs (Presious year
Ra.554.48 Lakhsl Is inclsded in tha Mate Mo, 34 of - ‘Exceptionad Bams’ of e Standalone Statamant of Froft and Less of the company far the inancial ¥ear
J023-24,

MOTE - 7.2 » Irvestments in Equity instruments

[Amaurnl in Lakks
‘Particulars Az at Asat
318t March, 2024 | 31t Masch, 2023 |
Acgregate amount of Cuobad Invastmants . .
Acragata amount of Linguioted frvestments 219367 116R1E
Aggregata amoun o Impasment in Value of Quoted vesimenis 2 -
Aggregats ameind o Imsasment in Yalue of Unducted [vsastirants 1,101 .48 554 48
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MOTE - 8 - NOM-CURRENT LOANS
[Unsecured, constdered doubtiul]
[Amount in Lakhs]

Particulars Ag at As at
315t March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Loans to related parties 719.37 -
TOTAL 719,37 =
T R T Y T STA A | AR S P et

{iy  During the perod under review, the company has given loan to one of its Subsidiary companies namely " Shree Venkatesh Industnies Private
Limited".

{i}] The entire loan has been granied without oblaining any security and witheul stipulaling any terms or period of repaymant and is repayable an
Demand along with interast..

MOTE - 81 - Additional Resulatory Information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as resard to Loans or Advances

[Amaount in Lakhs

[Type of Borrawer As at 31st March, 2024 As al 31st March, 2023

Amount of Loan or| Percentage to the | Amount of Loan or | Percentage to the total
Advance in the total Loans and | Advanze i the nature of |Loans and Advances in

nature of kaan Advances in the Ioan autstanding the nature of loans

aiitstanding nature of loans
Promaotess - - - -
Directors = - = =
KMPs - - - -
Related Partias 71837 100.00% L) &
TOTAL | ¥18.37 100.00% - -
I

MOTE - 2 - OTHER NON-CURBENT ASSETS
[Unsecurad, considered good]

[Armauirnl in Lakks)
Particulars Ag at Az at

31stMarch, 2024 | 31stMarch, 2023 |

Advancas other than Capital Advances

Security Deposits 306.48 331.49
Taxes Paid Under Protest 99.24 93.57
TOTAL 40572 425 DB

MOTE -10 - INVENTORIES
[Waluad at kower of cosl and net realizable value]

[Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at Az at
31st March, 2024 S1st March, 2023
Raw Matarials 2.621.04 2.801.85
Work-In-Progress 20558 130.13
Finished Goods 2,979.45 3,280.98
Stock-In-Trade 634,66 55837
Stores and Spares 90.40 120.68
Packing Materials G610 T3.35
TOTAL 6.687.23 7.065.36

Motes:

i Amaount of inventories recognized as an expense have been disclosed in Notes 28,29 and 30.

{ii}  Entire inventories have besn hypothecated as security with banks against working capital loans, refer Note 21 for details,
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MOTE - 11 - CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES

[Amount in Lakhs)

16™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

Particulars

Ag at
315l March, 2024

As at
31zt March, 2023

Secured, considensd qood
Unsecured, considerad good

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Cradit Risk
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired

6.5945.47

5,614.46

= 143.37
- (143.37)
B 84547 5.6814.46

Metes:

{iy Mo trade ar othear recaivables are due from direclors or other officars of the Company eithar saverally or jointly with arny other person. Furiher, rada|
receivables due from subsidiaries amount to Rs.0.72 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. Mil), enterprises over which Key managerial persons are able fo|
exarcise significant influgnce amounts to ¥ Nil {Previous year € NIL) and firms or private companies in which any diractor is a partnar, a directar or
a mamber amounts to ¥ Ml (Previous year ¥ Nil) as at 31t March, 2024,

{ii}  The Allswance for Deubtful Debls has bean made on the basis of expected credil loss as per the judament of the managemant.

{iil} Entire Trade Receivables have been hypothecated with Banks against working capital loans, refer Note 21 for details
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TE -12 -
[Amount in Lakhs]
Particulars As at Az at
315t March, 2024 18t March, 2023 |
Balancas with Banks in Current Accourts - 4500
Cash on Hand 16.51 14.58
TOTAL 16.51 61.97

MOTE -13 - BANK BALAMCES OTHER THAM CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

[Amount in Lakhs]

Particulars A at As al
31st March, 2024 315t March, 2023
Fixed Deposits - Maturity more than 3 months and legs than 12 months 88671 B804.38
TOTAL ARE.T1 an4.98
Motes

{ii  Fixed Deposils are held as margin monay against the bank guarantes and letter of cradit facilities sanctionad by the Banks.

TE-14 - ER RR
[Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Az at As at
31stMarch, 2024 |  31sit March, 2023
A Capital Advances 5.50 7.1
[A) £.50 T.41
B. Advances other than Capital Advances
Taxes Paid Under Protest 457.20 457.20 |
Advance o related parties
- Advance to Supplisrs 76,19 -
Others
- to Suppliers 248.458 176.45 |
- to Employees 44,21 49.31
- ot Expansas 36,49 47.85
(B} BE2.56 73121 |
€. Others
Assets Held for Sale - Freenold Land 184.47 18522 |
Balances with Statutary Autharities 80.27 43,52 |
Prepaid Expenses Tr.aT 64.26 |
Insuranca Claims: Receivable 715.03 71503 |
Incantives Recaivable fram Govemmant 430.02 430,02 |
Giratuity Plan Assets - 2.98 |
Embezziement Maney Recoverable from Employes 34.09 -
{C} 1.501.15 1.457.03 |
TOTAL [A+B+C) 2,363.20 2,195.65 |

Mates: |

{il  Advance o suppliers includes aggregate amount of Rs. 76,19 Lakhs (Previous Year B Nil) dus from firms ar private campanies in which any of the|
directors of the Company is either a partner or a direclor or a member, as at 31st March, 2024. |

{il} The entire Insurance Claim Is receivable by the Company against the losses of Property, Plant and Equipment and Inventonas occurred in earlier]
years, The Company has received the partial Insurance Claim and the remaining claim iz expected to be setfled in the financial year 2024-25, The§
Managamen! consider the same as good for recovery and thersfora, no provision far impairment of the value of such claim has been considarad
MECASEArY.

{iil}  The incentives récelvables from Gowvermnment by the Company s the VAT amount recelvable under TRIFAC Subsidiary Scheme. The Company is|
expaciing that such incentive will be received in the financial year 2024-25. The Management consider the same as good for recovery and|
tharefora, no provision for mpairment of the value of such claim has bean considerad necessary. |
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MOTE -15 - EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
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A, Authonsed and Paid-up Share Capital
[Amaunt in Lakhs)
Farticulars As at 315t March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Ma, of Amaunt Mo, of Amount
Shares Shares
AUTHORISED
Equity Shares of T 10/- each 3,60.00,000 3.600.00 3,60,00,000 3,600.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID-UP
Equily Shares of € 10¢- gach 291,895,000 2,219,560 2,91,85,000 2.819.50
TOTAL _ 291,935,000 2.918.50 £,91,95,000 £,919.50

B.

Beconciliation of the number of shares oulstanding at the beqinning and at the end of the reportin

q pearied

[Armaunt in Lakhs)

Farticulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Mo, of Amaount Mo, of Amaount
Shares Sharas
Shares outstanding at the baginning of the year 2.91,95,000 20960 2,91.95,000 2,019.60
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares bought back during the yvear - . - -
Sharez outstanding at the end of the year 2.91,95,000 | 2.919.60 2,91,85,000 2,919.50

C. Details of shares held by sharsholders halding more than 5%

of the aggregate sharas in the company

Mame of Shareholdar As at 3131 March, 2024 As al 31sl March, 2023
Mes. of % af Mo al = of
Shares held Haolding Shares hald Holding
Shri Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 54,48 974 18.664% 5448974 18.664%
Smi. Rashmi Agrawal 47 00,082 16.099% 47.00,032 16.09%%
Shree Padmavati Imigations LLP 26,12,000 B.947% 26,12,000 8.947%
0. Details of shares held by Promoters as dalined in the Companies Act, 2013 as at 315t March, 2024 and as al 315t March, 2023
Mame of the Promoter As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 % Change during the
M. of %o of Mo, of 5% of yaar
Shares held Taotal Shares Shares hald Total Shares

Shrl Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 54 48,974 1B.664% 54 48974 1B.664%
Smi. Rashmi Agrawal 47.00,082 16.099% 47.00,052 16.099%
Shree Padmavati Irigations LLP 26,112,000 B.9474% 26,12,000 2.947%
Smt. Rashmi Agrawal & Shri Sanjay
Kumar Agrawal an behalf ol Shree 1,43.000 0.430% 143,000 0.490%
Venkatesh Industries
Shel Mohan Lal Schan Lal Shah 6.088 0.021% 6,085 0.021%
Shri Ananda Urmale 1.200 0.004% 1,200 0.004%
Shri Rajesh Babanlal Agrawal 1,200 0.004% 1,200 0.004%
Shii Vijay Prasad Pappu 1,200 0.004% 1,200 0.004%
Shri Mehmood Ahmad Khan 1.200 0.004% 1,200 0.004%

Total 1,29 14,955 | 44,237 % 1,29,14,955 d4d, 237 %
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E. Details of sharas held by Promoters as defined in the Companigs Act, 2013 as at 31st March, 2023 and as at 31st March, 2022
Mame of the Promoter Az al 31st March, 2023 A at 31st March, 2022 % Change during the
M. of &0 of Mo, of o of yaar
Shares held Total Shares Shares held Total Shares

Shel Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 54 48,974 1B.864%: 54.48,974 1B.864% -
Smt. Rashmi Agrawal 47,00,092 16.099% 47.00,092 16.09%% -
Shree Padmavati Irigations LLP 26,12.000 B.947% 26,112,000 B.947% %
Smi. Rashmi Agrawal & Shri Sanjay
Kurmar Agrawal on behalf of Shree 1,43,000 0.4900% 1.43,000 0.490% -
enkatesh Industries
Shri Mohan Lal Schan Lal Shah 6,089 0.021% 6,085 0.021% -
Shei Ananda Urmale 1,200 0.004% 1,200 0.004% -
Shri Aajesh Babanlal Agrawal 1.200 0.004% 1,200 0.004% -
Shri Vijay Prasad Pappu 1,200 0.0043% 1,200 0.004% -
Shri Mehmoad Ahmed Khan 1.200 0.004% 1,200 0.004% -

Total 1,99.14,855 | 44.237% 1,29.14 955 44, 237% =
F. Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares
ﬁg_ﬁ-ﬁmpanf_ﬁa'ﬁ issued clnl';r ong class Df";z_ﬁljﬁy_aharEE having face value of T xl_C_lf-_p‘le_r shara. Eiﬁ-ﬁt':s'ﬁgfﬁn-:;la?fi_s_-a-»!-i:u:fl:;le for ana vole per share held. In
the event of Iguidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to recelve the remalning assets of the Company, after distibution of all preferential amounts, In
propartion o their shareholding,

G, Alletment of Bonus SharesBuy Back of shares

e . S e e e e e

cash, or bought back during the peried of five years immediately preceding the reperting date. There are no securities which are converlible into equity
shares.

NOTE -16 - OTHER EQUITY
[Amaount in Lakhs]
Particulars Ag at As al
31st March, 2024 315t March, 2023
Securities Premium 5,991.76 6,891.76
Reatained Eamings 3,228.33 227982
Revaluation Reserve 6,403.66 5,411.45
Equity Compenant of Compound Financial Instruments 85.89 85.89
TOTAL 16,709.64 15,768.32

MNOTE -16.1 - Nature and Purpose of Reserves

(a) Securities Premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognized in Securities Premium. The amount of securities premium can be
ulilized anly in accordance with the provisions of the Cnmpanies Act, 2013 tor specified purposes.

The datails of movement in Securities Premium during the vear is as below:
[Amount in Lakhs]

Farticulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Opening Balance 6.001.76 6.991.78
Add;  Premium gn issue of Equity Shares - -
6.981.76 B.331.76
Less:  Utilized during the year - &
Closing Balance 6,901.76 6,901.76
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i)

i)

(di

Retained Eamings
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Aatained Eamings ara the profits that the Sompany has samed il date, less any translaers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid

to shareholders.

The details of movement in Retained Earnings during the year is as below:

[Amaunt in Lakhs]

Particulars As at As al
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Opening Balanca 227982 2.132.48
Add : Amount transfarred from Revaluation Surplus fo Retained Earnings T.79 -
2.287.61 2.132.49
Add:  Profit for the year 962.25 112.81
3,240 86 224510
Add:  Other Comprehensive Income for the Year {21.83) 34.72
Closing Balance 3,228.33 2.279.82

Aevaluation Reserve

A revaluatian resenve is a non-cash reserve created fo reflect the frus value of the asset when the market value of a cerain category of asset is
miore of less than the value of such assel at which it is recordad in the books af accounl. The camparny has crealed revalualion reserve by making
revaluation of the assets carried out during the financial vear 2016-17. From the Revaluation Reserve, during the year under review , an amount of
Rs.7.78 Lakhs has been reversed due o effecting sale of cartain revalued assels.

The details of mavemneant in Revaluation Reserve during the year is as balow:

[Amaunt in Lakhs]

Partlculars As at As al
&1st March, 2024 st March, 2023
Opening Balanca 5.411.45 6,411.45
Less : Amount transferred to Retained Eamings (7.79) -
Closing Balance 6,403.66 6.411.45

Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments

Equity compenent of compound financial statement represents the differance between the proceeds of the bormawings made by the Campany fraom
its prometars, during the pravious financial years, at low inlerest rate, and the fair value of the liability component.

The details of mavemant in Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments during the year is as balkaw:

[Amount i Lakis)

Partlculars Az at Mg at
31st March, 2024 st March, 2023
Opening Balance B5.85 B5.55
Closing Balance B5.89 B5.89
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MOTE - 17- NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

[Amaunt in Lakhs]

Particulars Az at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Mon Currerit Currant Man Currenl Currant
Term Loans
A Securad
From Banks 1,043.21 4046.54 1,345.75 ATH.06
{A) L 1,043.21 40654 | 1,345.75 3TE.96
B. Unsecured
Loars and Advances
Fram Directars and thair relatives 500.00 = = =
8 L 500.00 - | e -
TOTAL {A+B) 1,543.21 406.54 1,345.75 A76.96
Metes:
{iy  The Current portion of the Borrowings represant the principal amaount of loan, which is repayable in next twelva months and has bean classified
under Mate 21 "Shart Term Borrowings® .
iy  Reafer Mote 46 tor information abaut liquidity risk.
Hate -17.1 - Mature of security, terms of e elalls of suaran iv rLo u Frowin
Sno. Matura of Sacurity Tarms of Repaymant

Term Loan of T 700 Lakhs (Previous year 7 700 Lakhs}i Repayable in 84 equal monthly installments of ¥ B.33 Lakhs with inifial moratorium
from Punjab Mational Bank s secured on first and periad of 5 manths starting from Aprl, 2018, Last installment due in March, 2025, Rate of
exclusive charge by way of Equitable Mortgage uniimeresl 9.96% p.a. as at year end. {Previous Year 10.55% p.a.)

Machinerias and Hypothecation of all movable)

Machineras! Implemantsf Fixed Assets and G.uaranle&sg-

of Mr, Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal, (Total Quistanding as on 31-03-2024 is ¥ 100.00 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 200.00 Lakhs)
Shree Padmavali Irrigation LLP, Shree Balaji Industrie-s;r.;-ur af which ¥ 100.00 Lakhs [Previous year  99.89 Lakhs) is taken fo current maturities
and Shree Venkatesh Industries aleng with pan passu|of fong fterm debls)

charge by way of Equitable Morgags of Properties)

owned by Directors Mr. Sanjay Kurmar Agrawal, hrs.|

Rashmi Agrawal and Mfs Zhree Balaji Indusiries as;

collateral securify.

Term Loan of T 1,800 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 1,800 Repayable in 78 monthly principal instaliments of ® 23,08 Lakhs sach starting from April,
Lakhs) from Punjab Mational Bank is secured by lirstand;-EDEZ. Last instafimant due in September, 2028, Rate of Interesl as al the year end is
exclusive charge by way of Equitable Mortgage of 9.70% p.a. (Previous Year 10.55% p.a)

propased building situated at Kharsa no. 108 at Gram

Mohammedpura, Burhanpur (MJP.) and by way of [Total Ouistanding a5 on 31-03-2024 (s § 1,246.15 Lakhs ([Previous year
Hypothecation on plant & machineries & all movable 1,525, 07Lakhs) out of which § 276,08 Lakhs (Previous vear T 276.96 Lakhs) is taken fo
machinaries/ implements/ fixed assets to be created uut:¢mim&mﬁ;fﬂg of long term debis.]

of proposed term loan of the bank. (Presently,

consortivm has first pari-passu charge by way of EM an|

Khasra no. 103 al Gram Mehammedpura, Burhanpur]

(M.P.). It Is further secured by second charge on entire|

current assets of the company both present and future|

{Firs! charge exisls with WC Lenders of consortium).
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Sno, Nature of Security Terms of Repayment

3 |Vehicle Loan af ¥ 126.00 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ NIE}! Repayable in 48 agual monthly installments starting from June, 2023. Last installrment
from Punjab Nafional Bank is secured by Hypothecation{due in May, 2027, Rate of Interest is 8.67% p.a. as at the year end, (Previous Year Mil)
of Vahicla.

EIToLaI Outstanging € 103.07 Lakhs (Frevious year ¥ M) ot of which § 29.58 Lakhs
| (Previous year § Nl taken to cument malurities of lang ferm debts]

MOTE -18 - LEASE LIABILITIES
[Amaunt in Lakhs]

Particulars As at 315t March, 2024 As al 31st March, 2023
Mon Current Currant Man Currant Currant
Lease Liabilities for Land 92615 163.711 1.087.00 128.09
TOTAL | 926.15 163.71 1,087.00 128.00
Moties:

(i} The Current partion of the Lease Liabiities represant the Lease Rental which is payable in next twelve months and has been classfied under Note
22 Current Lease Liabilites'.

{ii}  For details on the impkcations of application of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements, Refer Notes 1 & 38,

-18 - |

[Armount in Lakhs]

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 318t March, 2023
Deferrad Tax Liabilities on ac nt of taxable t ifferen 1
Al the baginning of the year 1.500.15 1.624. 88
Less : ChargefCredit) to Statement of Profit and Loss {9.63) {34.73)
TOTAL 1,580.52 1,590,158

[Amaunl i Lakhs)

Particulars Ag at Charge/Credit) o As at
1st April, 2023 | Statement of Profit and 31st March, 2024
Loss
A, Deferrad Tax Liahilities in relation to ;
Properly, Plant and Equipment 274.32 {9.82) 26450
Revalued Land 1.391.06 (5.92) 1.385.14
Right-of-Use Asset 266,66 {48.48) 218.18
(A} 193204 | {64.22) 1,867.82
B. Deferred Tax Assets in relation to
Provision for Impairmeant of Trade Recsivahla 36.08 {36.08) -
Gratuity Payable - 13.00 13.00
Lease Liabiities a05.81 {31.51) 274.30
(B} 341,89 {54.59) 267.30
TOTAL A-B) 1,580.15 (9.5} 1,580.52

119 A



TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

16™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

Mote =19.2 - Component of Deferred Tax Liabilities for the financial year ended 31 st March, 2023

[Amaount in Lakhs]

Particulars Ag at Charge/Cradit) to As at
151 April, 2022 | Statement of Profit and A1zl March, 2023
Loss
A Deferrad Tax Liabilities in relation o ;
Property, Plant and Equipment 2B4.46 {1014} 27432
Revalued Land 1.401.52 {10.48) 1.391.06
Right-of-Use Assat 315.16 {48.49) 266.66
{A) 2.001.13 {E9.08) 1.832.04
B. Deferred Tax Assets in relation to ;
Provision for Impalrment of Trade Recalvable 31.33 4.75 35.08
Gratuity Payable 1467 {1467} -
Lease Liabilities 330.25 {24.44) 305.81
(8 376.25 {34.36) 341.89
TOTAL {A-B) 1.624.88 {(34.73) 1,590.15
MOTE - 20 - OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
[Amaount in Lakhs]
FParticulars Az at As at
3=t Mareh, 2024 31zl Marsh, 2023
&, Advances against Sale of Property 7.60 5.60
() 7.50 £.50
B. Orthers
Long Term Deposits from Dealers and Suppliers 564,98 B61.28
Lang Term Deposits frem Tenants 5368 0.36
Gratuity Payable 51.66 -
1B} B22.00 562.34
TOTAL (A+B) 629.50 BET 84
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[Amaunt in Lakhs]

Particulars As at As at
315t March, 2024 A1st March, 2023
A, From Banks
Cash Cradit Facilities 88813 T4.71
{Loans Repayable on Demand, Secured]
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 406.54 376.96
[A) 1.284 67 45167
B. ram Other
Current Malurites of Lang Term Dabit - -
[B) = =
TOTAL (A+B) 1.284.67 451,67

Motes:

Irmgations LLP, Shree Balaji Industries and Shree Vankatesh Industries.

{iy The company has borrowed Cash Credit Loans from State Bank of India, Punjab National Bank, ICICI Bank and Central Bank of India lad by Stata
Bank of India wherein, 3Bl Cash Credit Loan of ¥ 450,86 Lakhs (Previcus Year ¥ 8.53 Lakhs), Punjab Mational Bank Cash Credit Lean of
104.71 Lakhs (Previous Year ¥ 64.57 Lakhs), ICICI Bank Cash Credit Loan of ¥ 33256 Lakhs (Previous Year @ Nil Lakhs) and Central Bank of
India Cash Credit Loan of ¥ Mil (Previous Year ¥ 1.61 Lakhs) are secured by lirst Par pasu charge (amangst the consortium membars) on whala
of companies present & future stocks of Raw Material, Finished Goeods, Stock in Process, Stores & Spares and other Raw Material and the
company's present and fulure book dabls cutstanding monies, receivable claims, bills, Conlfracts, angagemants, securities, investments, rights and
assels of the company. The working capital faclliies, as above, are further secured by way of equitable mortgage of Immovable Properties of the
cempany and promoters, related entities and personal guaraniees of Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Mra, Rashmi Agrawal, Shree Padmavati

MOTE - 22 - CURRENT LEASE LIABILITIES

[Amaount in Lakhs]

Particulars As at As al
318t March, 2024 A1st March, 2023
Current Malurities of Lease Liabilities 183.71 128.08
TOTAL 163,71 126,09
MOTE - 23 - CURRENT TRADE PAYABLES
[Amaunt in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31&t March, 2024 318t March, 2023
Tatal cutstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprizes 363.94 417.75
Tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & small enterprises 392722 436557
TOTAL 428116 4,783.32

Metes:

{il  Trade payables are due 1o firms or private companiss in which any of the directors of the Company is a pariner or a director or a member amounts

to T 419.08 Lakhs {Previous year T B5.46 Lakhs) as at 3151 March, 2024,
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The mformaticn as required 1o be disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been delermined Lo the exlent such
parties have been identified cn the basis of information available with the Company. The amount of principal and interest outstanding during the year is

given balow :
_ [Amount in Lakhs]
Particulars As al As al
Fst March, 2024 31st March, 2023
{a}  Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year 363.94 44775

(b} Interest due theraon remaining unpaid 1o any supplier as at the end of the

accounting year

(e} The amount of interesl paid along with the amounts of tha paymenl made 1o the
supplior bavond the appointad day

{d}  The amount of interest due and payable for the year
{e}  The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the

accounting year

(i The amount of further interast due and payable even in the succesading year,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid

[Amaunt in Lakhs)

SMo  (Particulars

Qutstanding for following perods from due date of payment

Tatal
Lessthan 1 ¥ear | 11to 2 years 2 1o 3 vears More than 3 vears
1 [MEME 365,94 - - - 383.94
2 Othar than MSME 3,762,868 65,70 61,08 arTs 3.9zr.22
3 |Digputed dues - MSME - = - = A
4 Disputad duss - Other than MSME - - - Y
TOTAL 4,126.63 | 65.70 E1.08 arTs 4,291 18

[Amaunt in Lakhs)

S.Mo  |Particulars Qutstanding far fallowing perods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 Year | 1io 2vyears 210 3 vears More than 3 yvears
1 MSMME 417,75 + k - 417.75
2 Crther than MSME 4 25714 B3.43 11.80 2r.a 4,365.58
3  |Disgputed dues - MSME - - - - -
4 Disputed duss - Dther than MSME - - - -
TOTAL 4 67489 63.43 11.B0 2r.21 4,783.33
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NOTE - 24 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
[Amaunt in Lakhs)

Particulars As at Az at
315t March, 2024 31st March, 2023
A, Aevanue Haceived in Advance
Advance from Customers 446,26 618.31
(A ' 4606 B18.31
B. Cithars
Statutany Liabilities 36364 36245
Gratuity Payable - -
Other Liabliities [Refer Mote below] 691 .62 662,29
(B 1,055.26 1,024.74
TOTAL [A+B) 1,501.52 1,643.05
Mote |

{i} Oither liabilities include amount due (o directors or othar officars of the Company either severally or joinily with any other person or ta firms or
private companies in which any of the directors of the Company is a partner or a direcior or a mamber amounting to ¥ 114.73 Lakhs (Previous year

T 20,84 Lakhs),
[Armaunt in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
315t March, 2024 31st March, 2023
For Employes Benefits 182.89 173687
For Others 139.66 68.32
TOTAL 33255 241.99

MOTE - 26 - REVENUE FROM OFERATIONS

[Amaount in Lakhs]
Year ended Year anded
Particulars 31at March, 2024 31st March, 2023

A, Sale of Products

Manulaciurad Goods 48 526,54 58,940.31
Traded Goods 3,320.30 3,387.18
(A) i _53,146.84 63,327.47 |
B. Sale of Services
Fraight and Lagistics Income GEE.34 516.70
(B} ' BOE.34 51E.70
TOTAL [A+B) 53,833.18 63,844,117

123 A



TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

16™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

as at 3st March, 2024

[Amaunt in Lakhs)

Parficulars India Dutside India Total
Plastic Pipes, Fittings, Allied Products and Trading Accessores 5242208 - 52422
Water Tanks and Alled Praducls T24 76 - 725
TOTAL 53,146.84 - 53,148 84
MOTE - 26.2 - Revenue From Conlracts with Customers disaggregated on the basis of Geographical Region and Major Businesses
as at 31 st March, 2023
[Amaount in Lakhs]
Particulars India Outsida India
Plastic Pipes, Fittings, Allied Products and Trading Accessorias 62,887 45 - 62887
Water Tanks and Alied Products 440.01 = 440
TOTAL 63,327 .46 = 83,327 46
MOTE - 27 - OTHER INCOME
[Amaount in Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended Yaar andad
318t March, 2024 31st March, 2023
A, Interast Incomae [AY 280.20 5347
B. Other Non-Cperafing Income
Gain on Sale of assets held for Salke 5,35 -
Mizcallaneous Recelpts 3035 2005
(B} 3570 29.05
TOTAL [A+B) 12540 B3.02
Motes:
(i} Interast Incoma includes impact of financial nstrumeants
MOTE - 28 - COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
[Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Yoar andad
315t March, 2024 A1st March, 2023
Raw Materials Consumad 36,837.78 45.834.40
Packing Materials Consumed 32212 370.05
TOTAL a7,.250.90 46,204.45
MOTE - 29 - PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
[Amount in Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended Year endad
315t March, 2024 315t March, 2023
Pipes & Fittings 2.001.49 1,800.51
Others 796.28 1.018.43
TOTAL 288777 2.918.94
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NOTE - 30 - CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORKIN-PROGRESS
[Amaount in Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended Year endad
315t March, 2024 A1st March, 2023
B, Inventories at tha beginning of the year
Finished Goods 3.280.98 3,884 53
Waork-In-Progress 130,13 34 57
Stock-In-Trade 558.37 445,68
A 3,969.48 4,424 54
B. Inyentories &t the end of the year
Finished Goods 297945 328008
Work=In-Progress 20559 13013
Stock-In-Trade 634,65 558.37
{B) A,819.69 396848 |
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES {A-B) 148,79 465,36
MOTE - 311 - EMPLOYEE BEMNEFITS EXPENSES
[Amaunt in Lakhs]
Particulars Year anded Year andad
313t March, 2024 31sl March, 2023
Directors' Remunearation 49275 40743
Salary, Wages, Bonus & Gratuity 1,844.24 1,735.78
Contribution towards Provident Fund 53.49 54.85
Contribution towards ESIC 20,14 21.51
Emploves Wellare and Olhar Benefils 55,02 70.26
TOTAL 2,465.64 2,289.85
MOTE - 32 - EC
[Armaunt in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year endad
31st March, 2024 31sf March, 2023
Interest Expensas 28490 868.80
Letter of Credit Charges 37283 252 75
Loan Processing and Incidental Expenses 57.53 51.12
Bank Guarantes Commissian 4,48 617
Intarest on Laase Liabilities 103.80 115.72
TOTAL B2a.52 1,282 56
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[Amaunt in Lakhs]

Particulars ear ended Year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March. 20033
A, Manufacturing and Operating Expenses
Power & Fuel 1,720.38 1,B67.67
Stores & Spares Consumed 126.35 148.53
Repairs to Plant & Machineries 117.04 105,32
Other Manufacturing Expenses 47774 47714
(&) 2441.51 2,588.66
B. Administrative Expenses
Lease Rent Expenses - -
Rent Expenses 70.35 61,92
Slatioriery & Printing 14,36 20.28
Postage and Courier Expenses 1.42 1.62
Electricity Expenses 1.68 1.19
Vehicle Running and Maintenance 34.54 23.36
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 200,65 127,80
Talaphone, Mobile and Intameat Expanses 1217 12,83
Directors Sitting Fees 4.10 3.78
Auditors' Remuneration
- Statutory Auditars' 13.50 11.00
- Othars 1.2 1,35
Insurancs 4417 44.95
Repairs ard Maintenance
- Factory Building 33337 105.04
- Office Building 43.52 13.59
- Others 1.40 1.5%
Legal & Professional Expensas 42.70 46.09
Software Programnme & Licence Fees 20.57 1417
License Renswal Fees 3.52 6.91
Guest Accommeadation Charges 5.66 737
Rates & Taxes 6.38 140,83
Charity & Donatian - 21.58
Contribution tlowards Corparate Social Responsibility 25.46 27.16
Loss an Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 3.08 0.33
Loss on Forgign Currency Transactions - a7.549
Oifice Expenses 50.95 3117
(B} 935.35 783,14
. Selling, Distribution & Other Expenses
Advertisement, Publicity & Sales Promotion 203.26 157.08
Copyright Usage Charges - 103.11
Cormimission on Sales 146.75 7882
Fraight, Cartage Outward & Other Selling Expenses 2 80038 3,821.85
Discount & Other Expensas aB85.07 34547
Bad Dabts T06.72 -
Allawance for Doubtful Dabts (revarsaly made {143.37) 18,88
() 3,898 81 4,5626.11
TOTAL [A+B+C) 727567 7,887
MWOTE - 331 - Break-up of Statutory Auditors’ Remuneration
[Amaunt in Lakhs]
Particulars Yaar endad Year anded
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
(a) |For Audit Services
- Statutory Audit Fees .50 8.00
- Tax Audit Fees 2.50 2.00
- GET Audit Feas 1.50 1.00
13.50 11.00
(b} |Certification and Consultation Fees = 1.75
TOTAL 13.50 12.75
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MOTE - 34 - EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

[Amaunt in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Yaear ended

315t March, 2024 31sl March, 2023
Pravision for Diminution in Valus of Invastments in Subsidiary 546,98 55448
Provision for Impairment in Value of Loans to Subsidiary - 621.47
Penalty under SEBI Regulations - 2500
TOTAL 546,98 1,200.85

Maote ;

{il  The provision for diminution in value of investment in shares of wholly cwned foreign subsidary of the Company namely Tapli Pipes & Products
Ltd.. FZE UAE’, has been made conskdering the linancial position and nat worth of the subsidary company for the financial year ended 31st March,
2024, which in its furn, is based upon the audited financial statemant of the subsidary company as af 31st March, 2024,

MOTE - 35 - OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME

[Amaunt in Lakhs]

Face Valua Per Equity Share

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2024 315l March, 2023
A, Hemsa that will not be reclassified nto profit or loss :
{ii  Change in Revaluation surplus - -
{ii) Aemeasuraments of defined benefit plans (28.77) 34.72
{ii} Equity Instrument of the defined benefit plans - -
{iw)  Fair Value changes relating to own credit risk of financial liabilities designated -
at fair valus through profit or loss - -
v} Share of other comprehensive Income in Associate and Joint Ventures, o the - -
extent not to be classified into profit or loss - -
(viy  Others = =
(A {28.77) 34.72
B. Items that will be reclassified to profit or logs .
(i} Exchange differances in translating the financial statements of forsign operation -
{ii)  Debl instruments through other comprehansiva Incomea - -
{iil} The effective portion of gains and loss on hedging Instruments in a cash flow hedge - -
{iv) Share of olher comprehansive Income in Associate and Joint Venlures, 1o the -
extent not to be classified inte profit or loss - =
v} Others -
(B =
TOTAL [A+B) {28.77) 34,72
MOTE - 36 - EARNING PER SHARE
[Amaunt in Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended Year endad
315t March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Met Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders 962,25 11281
Waighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for caledlating Basic EPS 2,91.95,000 2.91.95,000
Weighted Average Paotential Equity Shares - -
Tatal Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating Diluted EPS 2,91,95,000 291,595,000
Basic Earning Per Share 3.30 0.38
Dilutad Easning Per Share 330 0.39

10

10
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[Amaunt in Lakhs]

Particulars Year ended Yaar endad
31at March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Profit betore Tax 1.506.46 589422
Effect of Ind A5 Adjustmants (15311} {B0.75)
Adjusted Profif belors Tax 1,353.35 53347
Applicable Tax Rate 25 168% 25.168%
Computad Tax Expense 340,61 134,26
Tax Ellect of:
Income not taxable - -
Expenses Disallowabla 64.72 Tr40
Othar Differencas 11612 28615
Uncertain tax positions 9,55 219
Current Tax Provigion 530,00 200,00
Effactive Tax Rate 35.18% B 4%,
- 38 - TMENT.
[Amaount in Lakhs)
Farticulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2024 A1st March, 2023
Contingent Liability nat provided in respect of
(i Disputed Income Tax Demand 1,324 .69 1,324 69
{il} Dizsputed Excise Duly VAT .CST & Entry Tax Demands E74.01 400._24
{ii} Guarantee Given by the company’s Banker in the normal course of business 348.25 393,89
(v} Letter of Cradit for purchase of goods B74.16 1,.962.77
iv) Other Dispules - -
[Relor Mole Below]
Commitmants
Capital Contracts remaining to be executed 249.45 25025
Mites:
(i} Itis not practicable for the Company 1o estimate the timings of cash outfiows, il any, in respast of the above pending resclution of the respectiva

preceedings.

{il  The Company does not expact any reimbursemants in respect of tha above contingant liabilities

{iil} Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are detarminad only on receipt of judgments’ decisions pending at vanous forums!

authorifies,

{iw)  The Company's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company pertaining io proceadings pending with Excise, Income Tax, Salas”
VAT tax and other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for whera
provisions are reguired and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company deoes not expect the

outcome of these proceedings fo have a materiafly advarse affect an its financial stataments
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- -

APFLICATION OF IND AS 116

Ministry af Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases, which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and other
interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. i
introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting madel for lessees.

The Company has adopled Ind AS 116, effective annual rgparting perod beginning 1st April, 2021 and applied the standard to its leasas. Accordingly, tha
Company has measured its lvasa liability as at 151 April, 2021 at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the interast rata of
8.95% p.a. implicit in the lease at the dale of transition to Ind AS.

The Right-of-Use Asset has been recagnised at an amount equal o the l=ase liabilty. Accordingly, & Right-of-Use asset of ¥ 1371.53 Lakhs has been
racognized in F.Y. 2021-22. The cumulative affect on transition in retained earmings net off taxes is ¥ Nil.

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous perieds to depreciation cost for the Right-of-Use asset, and
finance cost for interest accruad on lease liabilifies.

The Company doas nat have an optien to purchase such leasehold land at the end of the lease parod. Thare are no restriclions such as those concaming
dividends, additional debts and further leasing imposed by the lease agreements.

Irid AS 116 has resulled in an mereasa in net cash inflows ram cparating activiies and an increase in cash oulflews trem inancing activities on account of
lease payments, The principal and interest portion of the lease payments have been disclosed under cash flow from financing activities which for the vear
ended March 31si, 2024, aggregating to ¥ 229.03 Lakhs (Previous Year ¥ 210.80 Lakhs),

For movemant in Right-of-Use Asset Refer Note 3 and movement in Laase Liability during the vear is as follows ;
[Amaurnt in Lakks)

Particulars Year ended 313t March, Year ended 31st
2024 March, 2023
Balanca at the beginning 1.215.08 1.312.18
Additions - -
Finance cost accrued during the year 103,80 113.72
Dalations - -
Paymant of lease labilitias (229.03) (210.81)
Balance at the end 1,089.86 1.215.00
TE - 40 - T "

{i  Defined Contribution Plan

Cantribution 1o Defined Coniribullon Plans, recoganised as axpensa for the year is as under: ;
[Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
315t March, 2024 318t March, 2023
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 5349 54,85
Employer's Contribution te ESIC Fund 2014 21.51
{il  Defined Benefit Plan
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation
i pening g 9 [Amaunt in Lakhs]
Particulars Gratuity {Funded)
Yaar endad Year anded
31t March, 2024 318t March, 2023
Defined Banefit Obligation at beginning of the year 182.58 187.82
Current Service Cost 26,63 21.92
Imterast Cost 12.96 13.90
Fast Service Cost (Vested benefits) - -
Benefits paid {6.32) (2.65)
Actuarial (GainyLoss 2757 {38.41)
Delined Banelit Obligation al year end 24342 182.58
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[Amount in Lakhs]

Particulars Gratuity (Funded)
Yaar endead Year snded
318t March, 2024 A1st March, 2023

Fair value of Plan Assets at beginning of year 185.565 129.53
Expected Retum on Flan Assets 12.98 1157
Actuarial Gain/Loss) 1.21) {3.69)
Employer Confribution 0.75 50.99
Benefits Paid {B.32) {265}
Fair value of Plan Assets at year end 191.75 185.65

Reconciliation of fair Value of Assets and Obligations

[Amaount in Lakhs]

Particulars Gratuity {Funded)
Az at As at
31st March, 2024 A1st March, 2023
Fair value of Plan Assels 191.75 185.55
Present Yalue of Benefit Obligation 243,42 18257
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet {Surplusi{Deficit)) {51.67) 2.08
Expanses recognised during the year
[Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity (Funded)
As at As al
31st March, 2024 A1st March, 2023
In Income Slatemant
= Currant Sarvice Cost 26.63 21.92
= Interast Gost 12.96 13.30
- Past Service Cost - -
- Return on Plan Assats {12.%8) {11.37)
Mat Cost 26.61 24.45
In Othar Comprehensive Income
Actuarial {GainyLoss 27.57 {38.41)
Peturn on Plan Assels 1. 3.60
Net (IncomelExpenses for the period recognised in OC] 28.78 {3472
Actuarial Assumptions Gratuity {Funded)
As at As at
315t March, 2024 A1st March, 2023
Mortality Table (ALM)
Discount Rate (Per Annum) T 0% 700
Rate of Escalation in Salary (Per annum}) T.00% T.00%

Motes;

1 The estimates of rale of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflations, seniornity, premotion and other rebevant

factars including supply and demand in the employment market, The above information is certified by the actuary,

2 The expected contribution for Defined Benefit Plan for the next financial year will be in ine with F.¥. 2023-24.

3 The company makes provident fund {PF) contributions to defined contribution benefit plans for eligible employees. Under the scheme the company
is- required to contribute a specified percantage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits, The confributions specified under the law are paid to the

government autharities.

4 Amount towards Defined Contribution Plan have been recognized under Contribution 1o Providant and Other funds in Mote 31.
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5  Deafined Banelil Plan:

The Company has defined benefit plans for gratuity to eligible employess, contributions for which are made to Life Insurance Corperation of India, whao
invests the funds asg per IRDA guidelines. Tha details of these defined benelit plans recognized in the financial stalemaents are as under:

Genaral Deserption of the Plan

The Company operates a defined banefit plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering eligible employess, which provides a lump sum payment to vesied employees
al retirement. daath, incapacitation or tarmination of employment, of an amount based on the respactive employees salary and the tanure of employmeant.

The defined banefit plans typically expasa the company to various risk such as :
(a) Investmant risk:

The present valug of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated wusing a discouwnt rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the
and of the reporting period on government bonds. H the raturn an plan assat is below this rate, 1 will create plan deficit

(b)  Interest risk:
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offsst by an increase in the plan assets,
(e} Longevily risk:

The present value of the defined bensafit plan liakility is calculated by reference 1o the best estimate of the monality of plan panticipants both durng
and aftar thair amploymant. An increasa in the lile expaclancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liabilihy.

(d) Salary risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in
tha salary of the plan pariicipants will increase the plan’s liability.

MOTE - 41 - PROVISION FOR DIMINUITION IN VALUE OF INWESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

In accordance with Ind AS 1 the Company uses ted Credit Loss (ECL)' for evaluting impainment of financial assets

[Amount in Lakhs]

Particulars As at
3121 Marzh, 2024

1 Diminuition in Value of | i b= idi

Investrment in Equity Shares of M/s. Tapti Pipes & Produels Lid,, FZE, UAE [Wholly owned Subsidiary]
235 Ecqui hares of Face Valu 1 UAE Dirh

Fair Markat Valua of the Investmant as on 31-03-2023 607.65
Less : Fair Market Yalue of the Investment as on 31-03-2024 G067
546.58

Amount Debited in Statement of Profit and Loss under Note 34 of "Exceplional llems’
Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments in Subsidary 546.28
TOTAL S46.98

Miste :

During the Financial Year 2023-24, considering the financial position and net worth of its wholly owned Foreign Subsidiary Company namely ‘Tapti Pipes &
Products Lid.,, FZE UAE', for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 as per its audited financial statement and considering the fair market valua, the
company had made provision of ¥ 546,898 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.554.48 Lakhs) as on 31st March, 2024 on account of diminution in the value of
investment in such subsidiary company, as appearsd in iz books of account | The provision of ¥ 546,98 Lakhs (Previcus year Rs.554.48 Lakhs) is
included in the Mote No. 34 of ‘Exceptional ltems’ of tha Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss of the company for the financial Year 2023-24.
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The Datail and In 151 Marcs 4 is as under
[Asncuril i Lakhs)
Srer. [Pariculers Meame o the Enbily | Relatn Pispose Arrenl |
1 |Imestments Made Tapli Pipas & Praducts Lid. FZE Whelly ownad | Business Purpose 60.67
[Rater Note 7] subsidiary
Texma Pipes Foundadion Saction & CER Activity 0.05
Cempany in which
Hay Managerisl
Parsonnal are abla
lo earisg
significant
influance.
Shrea Vankatash Polymers Privata ‘Wholly awnad | Business Purpose 1.00
Lirmitesd subsidiary
Shree Verkalesh indisiries Private Partially Cranind | Business Purpose 1.030,49
Lirnited Subsidiary Go
2 |Loan Given [Unsescured) Shree Venkatesh industries Private Partially Owred | Business Purposa 718.37
|Rater Note d) Lirited Subsidiary Go
TOTAL 1.811.58 |

The Details of Leans given and nvestimearnts mads by the Company as at 315t March, 2023 is as undar ;

[Aumouri bn Lakhs)
Pupoes Amoart

Sno. |Particulars

Mame of 1he Entity

| Ralatian |

1 |Imestments Mada Tapti Pipas & Producks Lid. FZE ‘Whelly awnad

subsidiary

Business Purpasa 07,65

Saction B
| Company in which
Kay Managarial
Parsannal are able
1o exarcise
signiticant
influgnce,

Texma Pipes Foundation CSR Activity

2 |Loan Given [Urseouwead] Tapli Pipas & Producks Lid. FZE Whelly awnad

subsidiary

Business Purpasa -

TOTAL 607,70 |

Duiing the Financial Year 2022-23 the company was infially imposed with a penalty of As, 10,00 Crores by an Order passed on 28th June, 2022
by the Adjudecating Officar of the SEBI urdar saction 15HA of the Sacuritias and Exchange Board of india Act. 1992, Howaver, upoh Apgaal, the
sama was restricted to a sum of Rs. 2500 Lakhs by the Order dated 30-09-20%2 passed by the Securities Appellats Tribumal, Mumbai,
Aotordingly, during the fingnoiaf year 22-23, the company had made a paymaent of Bs. 25,00 Lakhs lowards such penalty, which was debited I:r!,l:
iz company te the statement of profil o leas under Wole Mo 34 of-Excaplional Mtams’

The Securilies and Exchangs Board of India (SEBI) vide Bs Final Order daled February 28th, 2023 passed under sections 11{1). 11{4} anxl !151}1;
the Securitias and Exchange Baard of India Act, 1992 in the matter of GDRs issued by tha company during the financial year 2011-12 has |ssuad
cartain direstions. The gist of the directions issued ara enumerated as undar

a) The company has bean restrained from accessing the securifies market and further, prohibited from buying, sefling or othereise dealing in
securilies including unids of mulual funds, direclly or indirectly, or being associated wilh the securities markel in any manner, whatsoever, far a
7 perad of 3 years from the date of the Order.

B} The comgany would confinue o pursus measures o bring back the cutstanding amount of USD 3.43 millien, the GOR procesds into ils bank
gccount in India within a period of one year from the date of the Order. The Directors of the company have also been directed 1o ensure tha
complianae of such direclion,

¢} The Ky Managarial Persons named as Mr. Sanjay Kumnar Sgrawal and Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu shall be restrained from acoessing the Indian,
secufilies market, and further prohibited from buying, selling or ofherwise dealing in securities including units of mutual furds, directly or mdureclly
of being asscclated with the securities markeat in any manner, for 8 perod of 3 years.

fiie)

The Comgany has filed an Appeal belore the Hon'ble Securilies Appellate Tribunal, Mumbal against the said Order dabed 28.02.2023 passed by|
the Whala Tima Member of SEBL After various hesmnge and ordars, tha matter is pending before the sald authomy. Howsyer, the amount of USD)
3.4% million as mentioned by SEBI, was already received by Tapti Pipes & Products Limited FZE, the wholly owned subsidiary of Texmo in
Septermiar, 2012 and had addifonally furnished a Cedtilicate fram a Chanered Accountant stating the sama balare the thtunal.

BY COMPANY SECRETARY
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RESPOGHBILIT
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In accordance with the provisions on Sectlon 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company has constiuted a SR Committes,
The details of CSR Activilies are as follows :

[Aerssund iri Lakhs)

Sni. Particullars As at A5 at
3131 March, 2024 181 March, 2023
1 |Erought fonward of amaunt spent bevond the slalutary requirement 34z 2,59
2 |Gross amount reguered fo be spent by the company during the year as per
Companies Act, 2013 26.61 26.76
3 |Amount spent by the company duning the year on the following:
{a} Donation for setting up hostel. 0.51 g
{o) Promoting Health Gare including Praventive Health Care and Sanitization 0.20 34
() Covid-18 relief related activities - -
{d) Denations and Financial Assistance tor Educalion 0,85 1.3
(e} Food Distribution Drive o Fight Hungar 12.05 21.22
{fi Woman Empowerment - 1.06
{zh Buralf Gommunity Development 10,52 0.59
{h}) Othars 153 -
Tatal {3} 25,45 27.69
4 [Cleaing amount yet to be spent
5 |Carry forward of amount spent bayond the statutary requirament 237 Jaz
G |Shortfall at the end of the year -
T |Total of Pravious Year Shortfalls
8  |RAsasons for Shortfalls Mot Applicable Mot Applicable
Mote:
(it During the financial year 2023-24, the company has paid C8R amount to ane of its related parties amounting fo a sum of ¥ 25.00 Lakhs

[Previous year € 27,00 Lakhs]

NOTE - 46 - OTHER NOTES

1

{a} All the financial instrumants are initially recognized and subsequenily re-measurad at fair valee as describad balow:

{ih The Tar value of Forward Foreign Exchange condracts & detemmined using forwaed exchange rales ol the balance sheel dale,

{iiy Al forgign currency denaminated assats and liabilities are ranslated using exchange rate al reporting date. Fair Value measuremeant hisrarchy:

[Aencatt in Lakis)

‘Pariculars Ag at 31at March, 2024 Ag at 3tst March, 2023
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Valus Fair Valug
&, Financial Assats
I 1AL Amortized Cost
(0| Irvestrments in Jointly Contralled Entity i 3 ’ >
{ii}| Trage Recaivablas 6,545.47 6,545.47 5,614,465 5614.45
(i) Cash & Cash Equivalents including
{rher Bank Balances 3. 22 90322 H56.95 866.95
{v)|Loans 71947 T19.37 - -
il [ALFYTRL
11| Inwestments £ z z) =
AL FVTOCH
(i} Investrments in Wholly Qwned Subsidiaries 61.87 £1.87 07 .85 80T .65
{iil| Inwestments in Partially Owned Subsidiary 1,030.49 1,030.49 - -
()| Cribvaer v bl 0.05 0.05 0.05 Q.05
'Particulara As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31at March, 2023
Carrying Value Fair Valug Canrying Valua Fair Valug
e i ial Liabiliti
(il | Barrowings 283788 2,837 58 179742 1,797.42
(il | Leasze Liabilithes 1,083,856 1,088 86 1,215.08 1,215,098
(i) Trade Payables 4,281 .16

v

Orver Financial Liabilities

4,231.16

4, 78332

4, 783,32
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{b) Foreign Currency Risk:

The Company undertakes ransactions denominated in foraign currency (mainky US Dollar) which is subject 1o the risk of exchange rate fluctuations.
Financial assets and liabilities denominated in fareign currency, including the Company's net investments in fareign operations (with a functional currency
othar than Indian Rupes), are alse subjact to reinstatement risks.

The carrying amaunt of forsign currency denominated financial assels and labilities including derivative contracts, are as follows:

Particulars As at Az at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
uso UsD
Financial Assels 12.52.081 12.52,051

Financial Liabilities - -

Met Exposure _ 12,52,051 12,52,061
Sensitivity analysis of 1% change in exchange rate at the end of reporting pericd net of hedges

(=} Foreign Currancy Sansitivity

For every percentage point change in the underlying exchange rate of the ouistanding foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities, including
derivative contracts, halding all other varables constant, the profit before tax for the year ended 31st March, 2024 would change by 12520.51 USD
[Previous Year - 12520.51 USD). Howaver, the managament of the Company does not expects its foreign curmency denominated financial assets to mature
within a peried of five years frem the end of the year under review,

{d) Interest Rata Risk

Interast rate risk is the risk that the future cash flow with respect to interest payments on borrowing will flucluate because of change in market interast

rates. The company's exposure o the risk of changes in market interest rales relates primarily 1o the Company's long-tarm debt obligation with floating
interast rates.

{e) Interest Rate Sensitivity

Interast rate risk is measwrad by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any movement in the referance rates could have an
Impact on the Company's cash flows as well as coste.

The Company is subject to variable interest rates on some of its interest bearing Babilities. The Company’s interest rate exposure is mainly related to debi
obiigations. The Company also uses a mix of interast rate sensitive financial instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day fo day
opaerations ke shor term loans.

As at March 31, 2024, financial Rability of ¥ 888,13 lakhs was subject to vanable interest rates. Increaseddecrease of 100 basls paints in interest rates at
the balance sheet date would result in decreasefincrease in profitfiloss) before tax of ¥ 1.30 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024,

The model assumes that interest rate changes ara instantaneoaus parallel shifts in the vield curve. Although some assets and liabilities may have similar
malurities or periods to re-pricing. these may not react correspondingly to changes in marke! interest rales. Also, the Interest rates on some types of assats
and liabilities may flucteate with changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types of assats may change with a lag.

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis paints interest rate across all yield curves, This calculation also assumes that the changs
oeours at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures oulstanding as at thal date. The penod end balances are not
necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

{Mote: The impact is indicated on the profitfiloss) before tax basis).

{1} Commodity Price Risk

Commaodity price risk arises due to flectuation in prices of raw material. The company has a risk management frame work aimed at prudently managing the
risk arising from the volatility in raw material prices and freight costs. The company's commodity risk is managed centrally through wefl-established frading
operations and contral processes. |n accordance with the risk management policy, the Company carelully calibrates the timing and the guantity of
purchase.

() Credit Risk

Credit rigk is the fisk thal a customer ar counterparly fo a financial instrument fails fo perdorm or pay the amounts due causing financial loss to tha

company. Credit risk anses mainly from the outstanding recaivables from customers. The company has a prudent and conservalive process for managng
its credit risk arising in the course of its business activities, The credit rafings/market standing of the customers are evaluated an a regular basis.

i) Liquidity Risk

Ligusdity risk arses from the Company's inabilily to meet ts cash flow commitments on time. Prodent liguidity risk management implies maintanmng
sufficient stock of cash and marketable securities . The Company maintains adequale cash and cash equivalents along with the need based credit limits to

maal the bguidity neads.
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(i} Hedge Accounting
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The Company has established risk management policies to hedge the volatility arising from exchange rale fluctuations in respect of firm commitments and
highly probable forecast transactions, through foreign exchange forward and options confracts. The proportion of forscast transactions that are fo be
hedged |s decided based on the size of the forecast transaction and market conditions. As the counterparty for such transactions are highly rated banks,
the risk of their non-performance is considered to be insignificant.

The Company uses derivatives to hedge its exposurs to changes in movement in foreign currency. Where such derivatives are not designated under
hedge accounling, changes in the fair value of such hedges are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lazss,

The Company may also designate certain hedges, usually for large transactions, as a cash flow hedge under hedge accounting, with the objective of
shielding the exposure from variability in cash flows. The currency, amount and tenure of such hedges are generally matched fo the underlying
transaction(s). Changes in the fair value of the elfactive portion of cash flow hedges are recognised as cash flow hedging reserve in Other Comprehensive
Income, While the probability of such hedges becoming ineffective is very low, the ineffective portion, if any, is immediately recegnized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The management of the Company does not expects ils foreign currency denominated financial assets to mature within a period of five years from the end
of the yaar undar review and tharafore, it has not entered into any hedaing coniracts for the same.

=47 -

{it'  During the financial yvear 2023-24, no proceading has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami properly undar the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and rulea made thereunder,

{ilfy  The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with the barks In lieu of sanctioned working capital facilities, which are in agreement with
the books of account other than those as set out below;

A, Ditference in Inventones

[% in Lakhs]
Quarter Ended Value as per Books Value as per Difference Reason far Yanance
Cluarterly
Statements
3':';“ dune, 2023 T-?;5-5° 7,180.30 585.19 | birarity, due ta non inclusion of certain fems of|
dU:Gaplenber, Sleo f60a31 6B 845.74 | jnventory while furnishing the statement to the
31et December, 2023 7.180.15 6.806,02 25413 | gtk with the result that Invantary Statements
313t March, 2024 6,597.23 6,539.76 5747 | submitted to the banks contained a lesser value
than the actual inventory held
B, Difference in Trade Receivables
[Z in Lakhs]
Cuartsr Ended Value as per Books | Value as per Difterance Reason for Varance
Quarterly
Statements
30th Jume, 2023 B,817.82 5937.15 {119.33) 4 g i ;
Tha difference is primarily due o non-
30th September, 2023 6,644, 89 B, 789,07 {12417} consideration of credit note while determining
31t December, 2023 6,991,249 T.067.02 (75.73) it of Trade Rechhables as finshai
31t March, 2024 545 47 718555 {620.08} Batsra -t Bl

{ii}  The company is not declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

{iv) The company has not entered info any material transaction with the companies struck-off under 5. 248 of tha Companies Act, 2013 or section 580
of the Companies Act, 1958 during the year.

(vl The Company does not have any charges or satislaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

{vi} The company has complied with the number of layers prescrbad under clause (B7) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Resiriction on
number of Layars) Rules, 2017

(wiiy The company has not applied for any Scheme of Arrangements in terms of Sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,

{wid) Mo lunds have been advanced or loaned or invested (elther from borrowed funds or share premium or any other scurces ar kind al lunds) by the
Company 1o ar in any other personis) or entitylias), including foreign entities {"Intermediaries”) with the understanding whether recordad in writing
ar siherwise, that the Intermadiary shall land ar invest in parly identified by or on behali of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiarias). The Company has
not recernved any fund from any parys) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend ar invast
in ather persens or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the ke on

bahall of the Ultimate Beneliciarias.
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(i  The Company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that hag been surrendered or disclosed ag incoma during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1861 {such as, search ar survey ar any octher relevant pravisions of the Income-tax Act,
1961

{x}) The company has not traded or invested in Crypte Currency or Vinual Currency during the Financial Year 2023-24.

(i) Disclosure relating to various ratios

[Amaount in Lakhs]

Sno. . [Paricufars As at As al % of Changes compared| Remarks
31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 to preceding year {mandatory if
Variation=25%)

(a) |Current Ratio (in limeas)
[Currerd Assals [ Currenl Liabilities]

Current Assels 1641512 15.742.42
Current Liabilities 7.703.45 7.409.45 Mat Applicable
Current Ratio 2.13 212 0.29%

ik} |Debt Equity Ratio (in times)
[Total Dabts / Total Equity | Due to increase in

borrowings and

Total Debis 2.837.88 1.787.42 7
[Won Current Borrowings+Current Bomowings| Im';:ii:: tgilﬁgmw
Tatal Equity 19,629.14 18,688.42 pr\ﬂviuﬁs fo
Debt Equity Ratio 014 0.10 50,32% Lhs

i) i i (in tim
|Earnings before Interest & Tax/ Debl Service]
Earnings before Interest & Tax 2,876.96 3,087.73
[Prefit batore Tax + Financs Costs]
Debl Service 1.429.51 2.063.01 Due to decrease in
[Fimance Costs + Scheduled principal repayment of Nen-| earning betors interest
Current Bomowings (Current Maturities of Long Term| & tax and dabt senvice
Debls ol previous year) + principal repayment of Lease| as compared to
Liabilities] previous yaar
Deabl Service Ratio 2013 1.497 34 46%,

(d) |Return on Eguity Ratio (in percantage)
|Profit after Tax f Average Total Equity]
Due 1o Increase in

Profit after Tax 26225 112.61 prafit after Tax as
Average Total Equity 19,158.78 18.614.76 compared 10 previous
[(Opening Tofal Equity+Closing Total Equity)/2] year

Return an Equity Ratio 5.02% 0.60% 730.25%,

{e) |Inventory Turnover Ratlo {in fimas)
[Sale of Products / Average Invantory)

Sale of Products 5314684 63.327.47

Average Inventary 6,831.30 6, 730,38 :
[{Opening Inventory+Closing Inventary)/2] Mot Applcable
Inventory Turnovear Ratio 7.78 .41 {17.32%)

{ft |Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio {in timas)
[Turmiowver! Average Trade Recaivablas]

Due to decrease in

Turnover {Revenue frem Operations) 53,835.18 6384417 Turnover and Increase
Average Trade Reciavablas B.O079.97 5,049 60 in Trade Receivable as
[iCpaning Trade Racaivables + Clasing Trade Recaivablos /2] compared 10 previous

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 8.85 12.64 {29.07%) yaar
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[Amount in Lakhs]
Sno, |Pariculars Az at As at %% of Changes compared| Remarks
31st Mareh, 2024 | 315t March, 2023 1oy pracading yaar {mandatary i
Varation=25%)
(g} |TradeP u R i ti
[Turnover’ Average Trads Payablas]
Turnaver (Reverus from Operaticns) 53,833,148 63,8447
Average Trade Payablas 4,537 .24 4. 6B7.84 Mat Applicable
[{Opening Trade Payables + Closing Trade Payables)i2]
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio 11.86 13.62 {12.88%:)
[k} ital Ti in fime
[Tumover £ Working Capital)
Turnover (Revenue from Operations) 53.833.18 63,844.17
Working Capital 11,735.74 11,151.68
[Current Assetls (-} Current Liabilities]
Met Capital Turnover Ratic 4.59 573 (19.88%) Mat Applicable
{i) i {i
[Preestit alter Tax f Turover)
Profit after Tax 8962.25 112.81 Due fo Increase in
Tumover {Revenus from Operations) 53,833.18 63.844 17 profit after Tax as
Met Profit Ratic 1.7%% 0.18% 313.43%| compared to previous
yaar
{t |Return on Capita oyed (in percentage
|Earnings Belore Interast & Taxes! Capital Employed]
Earnings Before Interest & Taxes 2,B76.96 3.087.73
[Profit before Tax + Finance Costs)
Capital Employved 22 46702 20,485 84
[Tetal Equity + Tatal Barrowings)
Return an Capital Employed 12.81% 16.07% {15.04%:) Mat Applicable
ik} |Return on Investment Ratio (in parcentage)
[Met Gain on Investment! Investment]
Met Gain an Investment 5.35 N
Investmant 1,002 21 BO7.70 Due te Met Galn on
Raturm of Investment Ratico 049% = 100.00%]  Investments arise
For Anil Kamal Garg & Company For and on the behalf of Board
Charlered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Mo : 0041860
Devendra Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Partner Managing Direciar Whala Time Director cum CFD
Membership No. © 078057 DIN - 00316249 DIN : 02066748
ICAL UDHN ; 2407605TBRGOUVZE1S
Maohit Agrawal Ajay Shrivastava
Chief Execulive Officer Company Secratary
Indare, May 2%h, 2024 Burhanpur, May 29th, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,
TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Texmo Pipes
And Products Limited (“the Parent Company™) and its subsidiaries (Parent Company
and 1ts subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™), which comprises the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the Consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (heremafter referred to
as the “Consolidated financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, and based on the consideration of report of other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiary as was audited by other auditors, the aforesaid Consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of
the Group as at March 31st, 2024, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive
income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the vear then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethies.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained along with the consideration of
report of the other auditors referred to m the Other Maiter section below, 1s sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Description of Key Audit Matters
S.No.  Key Audit Matters - How was the matter addressed in our audit
1 . Uncertain tax positions - Direct and Indirect Taxes

The Company has uncertain tax matters
pending litigations under direct tax and
various indirect tax laws. The litigation
involves  significant  judgement to
determine the possible outcome based on
which accounting treatment is given to
the disputed amount.

Given the magnitude of potential outflow
of economic resources and uncertainty of
potential  outcome,  uncertain  tax
positions are considered to be key audit
matters.

[Refer Note 41 to
financial statements.]

the Consolidated

Our audit procedures included, among others, the
following:

« Obtained details of uncertain tax position and
gained understanding thereof:

= Obtained details of tax asscssments and also
demands raised;

= Along with our internal tax experts, read and
analysed relevant communication with the
authorities;

* Evaluated advice obtained by the management
from legal consultants on possible outcome of the
litigation;

= Discussed with senior management and evaluated
management’s assumptions regarding provisions
made or reflected as contingent liabilities;

= Assessed whether the disclosures for uncertain tax
positions are in accordance with the requirements
of Ind AS 37 on "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets"

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’
Report Thereon

The Parent Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements . Standalone
Financial Statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consohidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
1s materially inconsistent with the Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors® Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Parent Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state
of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted m India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
mcludes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing
the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
15 a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

& [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures in the Consolidated financial
statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of
the going concern basis of accounting and. based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
sigmficant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as 4 going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities and business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities or business activities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities or business activities
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by
other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality 1s the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (1) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i1) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company of which
we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable. related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Other Matter

We did not carry out the audit of the financial statements of one subsidiary company,
whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 66.15 Lakhs as at March 31, 2024,
total revenues of Rs. Nil. total net loss after tax of Rs. 555.53 Lakhs, total comprehensive
income of Rs. Nil and net cash outflows of Rs. (.07 Lakhs for the vear ended March 31,
2024, These financial statements have been audited by the other auditors whose report
has been furnished to us by the management, and in our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of the subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the
Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the report of the
other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory requirements below, 1s not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L: With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph
4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (*'the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the
Act, as per the information and explanation provided to us by the management of
the Parent Company, we report that the auditors of the subsidiary companies
included in the consolidated financial statements have not made any qualifications
or adverse remarks reported in the respective Order reports of such companies.
Therefore, the clause (xxi1) of the aforesaid order is not applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the
consideration of the report of other auditors on separate financial statements of
subsidiary, referred in the Other Matters paragraph above, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to
preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been
kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the
reports of the other auditors,

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;
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(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of
the Parent Company as on March 31st, 2024, taken on record by the Board
of Directors of the Parent Company and the report of the statutory auditors
of its subsidiary company incorporated outside India, none of the directors
of the Group Company 1s disqualified as on March 31st, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure-A™;

(g)  In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31,
2024 has been paid/provided by the Parent Company to its directors in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act;

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiary as noted in the “Other Matter” paragraph:

(i)  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations as at 31 March 2024 on the consolidated financial position
of the Group — Refer Note - 41 to the Consolidated financial
statements.

(ii)  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts during the year ended 3 1% March, 2024,

(iii)  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Group.

(iv)  (a)  The Parent Company's management has represented that, to the
best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Parent company to or
in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalfl of the Parent company
(“*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(b)  The Parent Company’s management has represented. that, to the
best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by
the Parent company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

(v}  The Group has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section
197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Parent Company to its directors during the current year
is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration
paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the
Act. The Mimistry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Chartered Accountanis
ICAL Firm Registration No. : 004 186C
Place : Indore
Dated : May 29", 2024
Devendra Bansal
Partner
Membership No. : 078057

ICAI UDIN: 24078057BKGOUWG6647
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2003 (“the Act™)

Referred to in Paragraph 1(f), under ‘'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements ' section of the Independent Auditors™ Report of even date to the members
of Texmo Pipes and Products Limited on the Consolidated financial statements as of
and for the year ended March 31%, 2024, we report that:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TEXMO
PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED (“the Company or the Parent Company™) as of
31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements
of the Parent Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Parent Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of infernal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safecuarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and. both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
ol internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or Error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to these Consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 15 a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 3lst March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Parent Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration No, : 004186C
Place : Indore
Dated :May 29™, 2024
Devendra Bansal
Partner
Membership No. : 078057
ICAT UDIN : 24078057BKGOUWEG647
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IAmount in Lakhs]

n

mn

12

Perficulass

ASEETS
NOM-CURRENT ASSETS

(&) Property, Plant and Equipmeant
(b} Right-af-Lise Assels
() Capital Work=In-Progress
{d) Invesiment Property
(i) Goodwill
(=) Infangible Assels Other than Goodwil
{fl Financial Assats
1} Trade Recenables
iiy Othiar Fanancial Assats
iy Irvestments

[g) Other Mon-Currant Assets
TOTAL NON-CLURRENT ASSETS (1
CURRENT ASSETS
(&) Imventones.
(b} Financial Asssls

i} Trade Recoivables

ii) Cash and Cash Equivalsnts

Wiy Bank Balances othver than cash and cash equivalents
[c} Othar Curren] Assals

TOT, AREMNT ASSETS (2]

TOTAL ASBETE(1+2)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Enquity atiributable to owners of the parent

(&) Equity Share Cagital
() Ortharr Equity

4]
Mon-controling Inlersst
(2}

TOTAL EQUITY (1 + 2)

Haote Ma. As al Az at

318 March, 2084 3150 March, 2023
2 15,632.49 12,781.16
3 1,01657 1,059.53
4 = 19.57
5 3844 48,44

457 -
G 4.43 4.73
7 B6.03 612,85

] - X
g 0.08 0.05
10 48514 425 06
17,227.72 14,951.40
1 7025 65 706537
12 6, 545,59 5E14.46
13 91.02 E216
14 1,041.25 804,98
15 2. 768,08 2135 65
| 17,475.57 15,742.62
a4,703.29 30,694.02
16 2,919.60 2,819,650
17 16, 766,47 15,768.92
19,685.87 18,6388.42

18 18.459)

R 8

19,677 48 18, BER.42
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 (Contd....... }
[Arnount In Lakhs]
Fariculars Mote Mo Az al As at
315t March, 2024 3181 March, 2023
LIABILITIES
i) NOMN-CURREMT LIABILITIES
(&) Financial Liabilfias
il Borrowings 19 2.990.33 1,345.75
iy Lease Liabilties 20 1,067.68 1,087.00
(b} Daferrad Tax Liabilifies (Mat) 21 1.579.72 159015
{e} Other Mon-Current Liabilities 22 623,50 BET.B4
TOTAL MOMN-CURREMT LIABILITIES (1 | 6,267.23 4, 55074
2 CURRENT LIABILITIES
(&) Financial Liabikties
il Barrowings 23 1,38%.09 451.87
i} Leass Liabilities 24 176.94 128.08
i) Trade Payables 25
-Total outstanding duse of mécra antenprises & smal entenprses; and BaE,89 7,75
~Tolal pulslanding dugs of credilors olher than micro enterprises &
small entarprisas 4,207.,43 4,355 68
) Diher Financial Liabilios 26 = =
{b) Other Currant Liabilites 7 1,834.00 1,648 .45
(¢} Provisians 2B 344 .84 241.99
[d) Gurrant Tax Liabilities {Mat} 119.35 161.33
TOTAL CURAENT LIABILITIES ] ' E,758.58 7 414.86
TOT IABILITI 1 15, 025,81 12, 005,60
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES | 34,703.29 30,694.02

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Iy Berrnes Of our report of even dale attached

For Anil Kamal Gare & Company
Charterad Accourlants
FZAl Finn Ragistration Mo, - 041460

Devendra Bansal

Partnar

Membarahig Mo @ 078057

FCAR LIDEN = 240T806TRKGOUWEGLT

Indore, May 29th, 2024

For and an the behall of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Kumar Agrawal
aniging Direcior
DM : 0216249

Mohit Agrawal
Chiaf Exacutive Officer

Burhanpur, May 28th, 2024

Wiale Time Director cum CFO

Vijay Prasad Pappu

DM ; (2066748

Ajay Shrivastava
Company Secretary
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31st March, 2024

[Amount in Lakhs]

Ivdoore, May 20th, 2024

Parliculars Note Mo, Yaar erded Year ended
3151 March, 2024 3A1st March, 2023
| Value of Sales 62,810,893 7482825
il Lesa: GST on Value of Sales [9,385.97] {10,984.08}
1l Revanus from Operations 8 53.421.96 63,8447
v Citiver Income 30 128.24 83.02
v TOTAL INCOME (Il + V) 53,550.24 63,927.19
v EXPEMNSE
Cost of Materials Consumed N 36,801 .61 AG 20 45
Purchases of Stock=In-Trada 32 2,887.77 2.918.95
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-In-Trade and
Work-In-Prograss X3 Fr.e8 455,35
Employes Benelils Expense o 2,472.88 2,289.83
Finance Coals 35 833,83 1,292 56
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 1,062 64 1,082.897
Oiiner Expenses 36 7.852 68 15,176.57
TOTAL EXPENSES (VI} 51,989.37 69,420.68
Wi Profit'{Loss) bafare exceptianal ilems and tax (V=VI) 1,580,87 {5,433.43)
VI Exceptional tems a7 B46.88 1,200,894
I Profitf{Loes} before tax (WII-VIIN 1,013.89 [6,6594.43)
X Tax Expanse;
(1) Current Tax 542,00 500,00
[2) FhonfExcess) Tax Provision for earker vears Fia4 16,34
[(3) Detarred Tax {10.39) 134.73)
TOTAL TAX EXFENSE (%] 555,45 481,81
X Profitf{Loss) for the year (IX-X) 458,44 {7176 0]
xR Mon=Controlling Inleres (5.11)
X | Prafit trassferred to Cansolidatd Financial Statement L 463.55 _[TATE.04)
X Oitfwer Compréabersive nctome 3B
A (i} Hems that wil nol bBe reclassified subsaquantly 1o profil or loss {28771 34.72
{iy Incame tax refaling 1o ilems thatl will nal be reclassiied subsequantly
10 profi of less T.24
B. (i} Hems that wil be reclassiied subsaquenly to profit or les {107 .56] 1.518.05
(i} Incoma 1ac refiatirg 1o tams that will ba reclassified subsequently
10 prof or loss
TOTAL QTHER COMPREHENEIVE INCOME [V 1120.0%) 1,552.97
X TOTAL COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (XXM} 334,46 [5,623.27)
vl Eaminga Par Equity Share ¥
Basic (T) 1.57 {24.58)
Diluted [T} 1.57 (24.58)
e aocnrﬁpa.ng.-mg notes are &n integral part of the Corsclidated Financial Statemeants
I Berrns al sur reparl of even dale ailached
For Anil Kamal Garg & Company For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartared Accourdants
ICAl Firm Ragistration Mo, - D0418606
Devendra Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Pariner Managing Darecior Whale Timea Direslar cum CFC
Membership No. | 0TEOET DI ; 0DE16243 DN : 02066748
PCAL UDOEN - 2407EISTEKGOUWEEAT
Mahil Agrawal Ajay Shrivastaa

Chiaf Exacutive Oficer Company Secratary

Burhanpur, May 20th, 2024
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2024

[Amaunt in Lakhs)

Sno. |Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2024 Yaar ended 31st March, 2023
A |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
| Profit{Loss) before Tax 1.013.83 (6,604, 43)
A tments for -
Depreciation and Amaortization Expense 1,064.33 1,082.97
Interest on Lease Liabilties 113,82 113,72
Ciher Finance Costs 720,01 1,178.83
Bad Debts T06.72 5513.35
Prowision for Impairment of Debtars 412,08 1,38315
Interest Incorme (82.55) {53.57)
Met LossifGainy on Sale of Assels 3.07 0.33
Met Loss/{Gain) on Azsets held for sale (5.35) -
Remeasurament of Defined Benalit Plans {21.53) 34.72
Exchange Difference on Translation of Financial Statements & Others 555.53 1,518.05
Lozeas Aftributable to Minority inferast 511 3.461.24 - 11,181.16
| Operatine Profit beforas Workine Capital Chanses 447513 4, 486,73
[ Net change in:
Investtonas 39.72 (B62.96)
Trade Receivables (1,507.11) [4,865.65)
Chher Financial Assets [236.27] 212,07
Oher Currant Assats (583.16) {64.43)
Trade Payables 111.00 180.96
Civer Currant Liabilities 18554 48238
Short Term Provisions 102.86 (1.867.42) 19.46 (3,299,159}
| Cash generated from/ (used in} Operations 2.5R7.71 487 54
Direct Taxes Paid (Met) (B07.86) (479.97)
Met Cash generated from/ (used in) Operating Activities 1,979.85 7.57
B, |CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles (3,722.08) (T16.47}
| Salef Disposals of Property, Plant and Equiprment 34.83 4,34
| Salef Disposals of Assets Held for Sale 16.10 -
| Movement in Non Current Invesiments - (0.05)
Movement in Other Non-Current Assats {40.08) -
|Purchase of Goodwill [4.57) -
hovement in Deposits - 2,743.23
Interest Recelved 92.55 53,97
|Met Cash generated from/ (used in) Investing Activities (3.623.26) 2 085,72
C. |CASH FLOW FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
| [Repaymeant)/Proceads of Long-lerm Barrowings 1.644.57 (401.47)
|{Repayment)/Fraceeds from Short term Borrowings $37.42 (270,94)
|{Repayment)Proceads of Other Non Current Liablities 61.66 16.74
| (Repayment)Proceeds of Other Current Financial Liabililies - {0.38)
| Payrment of Lease Liabilities including Interest tharaon (242.89) (210,81}
|Ircreased (Decraasa) in Minarity nterest [B.43) -
|Finance Caosts (720.01) [1,178.83)
Med Cash generated from/ (used in} Financing Activities 1.E72.26 i2,045.69)|
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Cont....}

[Amount in Lakhs]

Sno. |Particulars Year ended 315t March, 2024 Year ended 31st March, 2023
MNET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [A+B+C)] 28.85 47.60
Cash and cagh eguivalents at the beginning of the year 62,17 14.57
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year 9 .02 6217

Components of cash and cash equivalents
\as at the yaar end :

Balance with Banks in Current Accounts T3.45 46,95

Cash on Hamd 17.57 15.18
p- e ———

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year .02 6217

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Staternents
In terms of our report of even date attached
Far Anil Kamal Gars & Company Far and an the behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
[CAl Firm Registration Mo, ; 0041860

Devendra Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu|
Partnar Managing DMrector Whole Time Directar cum CFO|
Membership Mo, - 078057 Dir : 00316249 DIN - C2066T48|
ICAl UDIN © 2407B05TBRGOUWESAT
Maohit Aerawal Ajay Shrivastova)
Chial Exscutive Officar Company Secrelary|
Indore, May 29th, 2024 Burhangpur, May 23th, 2024
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HOTES OM ACCOUNT
TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

[T in lakhs unbess specified otherwise)

1A.1

1A.2

183

184

185

1A.6

1B8.1

1B.2

18.3

P

Texmno Pipes and Products Limited {“the Parent Cormpany”) was fermed as a Parnership Firm by the name M Shrae Mohit Industries on 13th May 1989 and wes
subsagquently converted inko Public Limited Company under Par X of the Companies Act, 1956 under the name of Texrmo Pipes and Products Limited having
Ceerlificate of Incorporation dated 3rd July 2008 The Parent Company's shares are fisted with the National Stock Exchange [N5SE] and Bombay Stock Exchange
[BSE). The Ragistarad Office of the Company is sifuated al 38, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur M.P.) 450331, The Parent Company is principally engaged in
manufeciuring and trading of PV, HDPE, SWH, Sprinkler, Drip, CPVC Pipes and Fitlings.

Tapti Pipes & Products Limited FZE ie a limited Bability sstablishment, regisiered in Hamriyah Free Zonse as a free zone esiablishment with statues (FZE]} under
Cammercial License No, 7599 incorporated on Mareh 13, 2011, issued by Hamiyvah Free Zone Autharity, Sharab, UAE. The registered oflice of the astablishmen
i ELOB Office Mo. E2-113F-43, P.O. Box 48509, Hamriyah Free Zone. Sharjah, United Arab Emirates. The establishment s engaged in the business of General
Trading.

Shree Venkatesh Industies Private Limited ("the Subssdiary Company™) was incorporated on O71h Auguest, 2020 under the Companies Acl, 2013 with the main
abjectve of Manufaciuring of Plastic and Rubber Producta.

Shrae Venkatash Polymears Privata Limited {“the Company”) was incorporatad on 30th Apeil, 2023 under the Companies Acd, 2013 with the main objective of
Manufacturing of Plastie and Aubber Products.

Tapti Pipes & Producls Limited FZE & Shres Venkatesh Polymers Privale Limited are the Parent Company's wholly owned subsidianes and Shrea Venkatesh
Inctustries Private Limited |s the Parent Gompany's partially owned subsidiary.

The Parant Company, its wholly owned subsidiaries & its partially owned subsidiary are collactively referrad to as "Group”.

1 A
Basis of Preparation
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {"Ind AS") a5 notified by Menistry of Corporate Affairs
pursuant to Section 133 of the Cormpanies Act, 2013 (Act) read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Aules, 2015 as amended and sther relevant
provisions of the Act.
Accordingly, the Parent Company has prepared these Consclidated Financial Statements which comgrise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024,
the Consolidated Siaternent of Proht and Loss (including Mhar Comprehensive Incoma) for the year endad 31 March 2024, the Consolidated Siatement of
Changes in Equity and the Gonsolidaled Staterment of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024, and accounting pobeles and other explanatory informatian
(together hereinafiar referred 10 a5 “tha Financial Statamants’).

The Consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2034 were authonzed for issue in accordance with a resolulion of the Board of
Direciors on May 280h, 2024,

Basis Of Consolidati

The financial statements of the Paremt Company and ils subsidiasies are combinad on a line by line basis by adding togethar like items of assels, liabililies, equity,
Incomas, sxpenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-group balamces and Intra-group transactions.

Profits or lesses resulting rom intra-group lransactions that are recegnised i assels, such as ventory and propeny, plant & equipmend, are eliminated in Wil

In case of foreign subsidisries, revenua items are consoldated st the average rate prevailing during the year. All asssts and liabiliies are conwerted at rates
prevailing at the end of the year, Aoy exchange dilerence ansing on consolidation is recognised in the Exchange difference on translation of Financial Stalements
of Foreign Operations Reserve. [Refar Note 17]

Dflset {eliminate] the carming amaount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of eguity of aubsidiany,

The difference betwesen the preceeds from dispeaal of investment in subsidiary and the carrying amount of its assets less labilities as on the date of disposal is
recognised in the Congolidaled Statemaent of Prolil and Loss beng the prafil or koss on disposal of invesiment in subsidiany.

Mon Gontroliing Interest's share of nel assels of cansolidated subsidiary is identifiad and presented in the Consalidated Balance Sheel separate Irom abdites and
the aquaty of the Parent Company's sharsholders.

Th Parent Company accounts lor its shane of pos acguesition changes in nel assels of associales and joinl ventures, alter ebminating unrealised prolils and losses

resulting from transactions between the Parent Company and s associates to the extent of its share, through its Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loas, to the
extend such changs is attributable to the assockates’ Statement of Profl and Loss and through its reserses for the balance based on available informatian,

Basis of Mexsurement

The Consobdated financial stalements have besn prepared on a going concemn basls using histerical cost conventson and on sccrual method of sccounting, except
for the following asseis and liabiities which have been maasurad at fair value:

= Ceriain financial assats and labilities {including derivalive instruments);

- Defined benefit plans - plan assets; and
= Assats Held for Sale

|
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1B.4

iB.5

1B.5.1

1B5.2

Functional and Presentation Currency

Thasa Consolidated financial statements are presanied in Indian Rupaas (INR). which is the Parent Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded
off ta the nearest lakh, unbess otharwlse indicated.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Property, Plard and Equipment (PPE)

[F:13 Property, Plant and Equipmeant are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade diacounts and rebales less accumulated depreclation and Impalrment
losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any other cast direcily attributable to bringing the assats to its working condition for
Its Intended use, net charges on forelgn exechange contracts and adustments arising from exchange rate varalions attributable fo the assels,

b} Subsagquent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized 8s a separate assed, as appropniale, only when it is probable that future
soanormic bty associaled with the item will llow (o the entily and the cost can be maeasuced reliably, 0 e carmying amownl of an ibem of PPE, The tos!
of replacing the part of such an Hem is recognized when thal coet is incurrad if the recognition criterias are met. The camying amount of those paris that
are replaced is derecognized in accordance with the derecognilion principles,

] Expanses incurred in relation to a project, net of income earnad during the project developmant stage prior 1o #s intended use, are considerad as Pre -
Operative Expenses and are daclosed under ‘Gapital Work - In - Progress”.

{d} Depraciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided using siraight line method, sxcept on Freshold Land, on which no depreciation is provided.
Depreciation provided 15 based cn useful e of the assels as prescribed i Schedule | 1o the Sompanies Act, 2013 | I, signifieant pars of an item o
Proparty, Plant and Equipment have diffarant useful lives, than they are accounted and depreciated for as separats items (major components) of
Propearty, Plant and Equipment, In respect of the Dies and Moulds, the useful lle s estimated at 12 years, which s different from the prescribed ble of 8
years under Schadule Il to the Companias Act, 2013

(=} The residual vahues, ussful lives and methods of depraciation of property, plant and squipment are reviewsd &t sach financial year end and adjusted
prospecively, | appropriate,

i Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal procesds and the
carning amount of the assel and are recognized in e Statement of Proit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

113 Spare pars procured along with the Flant & Machinery or subsequently which meet the recognition criteria are capltalized and added in the carmying
amoaunt of such item. The carrying amount of those spare parts thal are replaced is derecognized whan no fulure economic benafits are expected from
thelr use of upon disposal, Other machinery spares are treated &s “stores & spares” forming pan of the inventory.

Leasas
Tha Group as a lassee

(@) The Group's lease assel dasses primarily consist of leases tar land. The Group assesses whether a confract contains a lease, al mceplion of & confract,
A contract is, or contains, a leass if the contract corveys the right to control the use ot an identified asset for a period of tme in exchange for
cangideration, To assess whether a confracl conveys the right 1o contral the use of an identified asset, the Group assessas whelher :

[ the contract invohres the use of an identilied asset;
fily  Ihe Growp has substantially all of the econcmic benefils from use of the asset through the period of the lease; and
{i)  the Group has the Aght 1o direct the use of the asset.

i) Ivd AS 116 requires lassees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable peniod of a lease adjustad with any option fo extend or terminate the
lease, if the use of such optien is reasonably certain, The Greup makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-bylease basis and thereby
assesses whether it s reasonably certain that any oplions to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, tha Group
congiders tactors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and e
importance of the wndarlying asset to Group operations taking info account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives.
The lease term in fubete pefods s reassessed ta ensure that the lease termn felledts the current econcomic circumstances, Afler cangidening current aindd
future aconomic conditions, the Group has concluded that no changes are reguired to lease period relating to the existing lease contracts.

{c) At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a Right-of-Use (ROU) assset and a comesponding lease lability for all lease
arrangements in which il is a lessee, excepl lor shaorl lesm leases and low value leases, For these shor term and low-value leases, the Grodp récognizas
the leass paymenls as an operating expense on a straight-Ene basis over the term of the lease.

{d} Tha Iease arrangemants includas the oplions 1o extend or lerminala the lease before the end of the kease term, ROU assats and lsase liabilites includes
these aptions when it is reasonably carfain that they will be exercized.

{a} Tha ROW assets are initially recognized al cost, which comprisas the inilial amounl of the leasa Bability adjusted for any lease paymants made at or pricr
to the commencement date of the leaze plus any inftlal direct coats less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
dapreciation and impairmeant losses.

L] ROU assets are depreciated fram the commencement date on a siralghi-line basls over the shorter of the lease term and usefdd lite of the underlying
assel. ROV assels are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicale thal thesr carrying amounts may nol be
recoverable. For the purpose of impalrment testing, the recoverable amount (e, the higher of the fair value less cost o sall and the value-in-use] is
determinad on an individual assel basis unlass the assel does nol generabe cash flows that are largely independent of those from alher assels. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Uit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.
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1B.5.3

1B.5.4

1B.5.5

{gh The lease llakbdiy ks initially measured al amortized cost at the present value of the fulure lease payments, The lease payments are discourded using the
intarast rabe implicit in the kease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremantal borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liaksilities are rerneasured with a carresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Growp changes its assessment ol whether it will exercise an
axtsnsion or a termination option.

{h} Leass liability and ROU assets have bean separately presented in the Gonsolidated Balance Sheet and laase paymenis have bean classified as financing
cagh flows.

The Group as a lassor

{ap The Group has ol entered inlo any lease confract during the vear in the capacity of "Lessor,
Adoption of Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rubss. 201% and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Second Amendment Rules, has nolilied Ind AS 116 Leases, which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and other interpretations. Ind A5 116
sats out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presantation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors | introduces a single, on-balance sheet
lease accounting model for lessees,

The Growp has enterad into six lease agreements, in gardier years, all expiring in the tinancial year 2021-22. Logking 1o the shor-term unexpired period of the lease
agreaments as en the date of applicability of nd AS 116 Leas=s, the group has classified such l=ases as "Short Term Leases' and cormespondingly, has claimad the
sxamption benefil under paragraph 5(a) of Ind AS 116 Leases, Accordingly, the group has recognised the lsase payments associated with those leases as an
CPEeTAlnG expense.

Capital Work-in-Progress

{a} Expenditure incurred on assets under construction (including a project} s camed at cost under 'Capral ‘Work-in-Progrese'. Such costs comprises
purchase price of assed including mport dudies and non-relundable taxes and costs that are directly atfributable fo bringing the asset lo the locaton and
condition necessary far it 1o be capable of oparating in the manner intended by management and after deducting trade discounts and rebatas.

1] Cost directly attributablie to projects under canatruction include costs of employes benefits, expenditure in relation to survey and investigation activities of
the projects, cosl of site preparation, infial defivery and handling charges, installation and assembly costs, professional fees, expanditure on maintenanca
and up-gradation alc. of common public facllities, depreciation on assste used in construction ef project, inferast during consfructon and other costs i
atiribulaide 1o construction of projects. Such cosls are accumulated under 'Capital Work=in-Progress' and subsequently allocated on systemalic basis
owel Mejor assats, other than land and infrastructure facilities, on commisaloning of projects.

{c) Capital Expenditure incurmad for creation of facilities, owver which the Growp does not hawe control but the creation of which is essential principally for
canstruction of the project i5 capitalized and carried under 'Capiml Wm-'-ﬁ—ngrr:ss' and subsegquently allocaled on systematic basis over magor assels,
other than land and infrastructure facilfies, on commissioning of projects, keeping in wiew the “attributability” and the *"Unit of Measura” concepls in Ind AS
18- ‘Properly, Planl & Equipment”. Expendilure of such nature incurred aller comphetion of the project, is charged lo Consolidated Statement of Proli and

Loss.
Intangibla assets
{a} Imtangible Assals purchased are stated al cost of acquisition ned of recoverable taxes, trade discounl and rebates fess accurnulated amortization

fdepletion and Irmpalrment losg, i any. Such cost includes purchase price, borowing costs, and any cost directly attributable fo benging the asset to is
working condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracis and adjustments arising from axchange rale variations aftributable fo
the infamgile assels, Subsequent costs are Included In the 8ssets canying amount or recognised as a separabe assel, as appropriate, only when it s
profbable that future economic benafits associated with the flem will flow to the entfity and the cost can be measured reliably.

B} Amoriisation 15 provided on atreight-line basie owver estimated usedul lives of the intangible assets, which |s taken at § years for Computer Software, The
amorizalion period for intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewad at least al each year end. Changes in useful lives are Ireated as changas in
accounting estimates.

&) Gaing or lasses ansing from dergcognilion of an intangible assel are measured as the differgnce betwesn the net disposal procesds and the camyving
amaunt of the aseet and are recognisad in the Consolidated Statemend of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognizsed.

{d} Revenue expenditure paraining 1o research is charged to the Gonsolidated Siatement of Profit and Loss. Development costs of products are charged fo
the Consehdated Stalerment af Predit and Loss unless a product's lechnological and commerdial toasbility has been eslablished, in which case such
axpanditure is capitalissd.

=) The Group has ne internally generated Intanglble Assels,

Impairment of Mon-Financial Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment and Infangitle Assets

{a} Tha Group assessas at each reporting date as 1o whether thers is any indication thal any property, plant and aquipment and infangible assats or group of
azsets, cafled Cagh Generating Linits (CGLUY) may be impalred. B any such indicetion exsts the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU (s estimated fo

detarming the exiant of impairmend, if any. Whan il is not possible o estimale the racoverable amount of an individual assel, the Group estmalas the
recoverable amount of the CGL to which the asast belongs,

[+1] An impalrment losa s recognised in the Consolidated Statemsnt of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset's carmying amount excesds its recoverable amount,
Thia recoverable amount is highar of an assel’s fair value less cosl of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated fulure cash flows,
discountad to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects curant market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific ta the
aseels,

{c) The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.
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1B.5.6

1B.5.7

1B.5.8

1B.5.9

1B.5.11

Borrowing Costs

{a} Borrowing costs nclude mxchange differences ansing from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded a5 an adiestmaent 1o the inerest
cost. Bomowing coste directly attributable to the acquesition. constrection or production of an assat thal necessarily takes a substantial pericd of time 1o get
reacty for its intended use of sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the assel. A qualifying asset is one thal necessarily takes substantial perod of time
to get ready for its intended use.

[1:13 Interast income eamad on the temposany invesiment of specific borrowings panding their expendifure on gualifying assels k= deducted from the bormowing
costs eligible for capitalsation.

{c) All other borrowing costs are expensed in the perad in which they scour.

Invenionss

{a} Hems of inventories are measurad al kewer of cost and nat realisable valug after providing for cbsolescance, il any, except in case of by-products which

are valued at net realisable walue. Cost of inventores compnisea of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and otiier coste including manufaciusng
owarheads net of recoverable taxes mcurred in bringing tham (o their respactive present location and condilion.

[:13 Cost of rew materials, work-in- progrese, finished goods, stock-in-trade, slores and spares and packing matarials are detarmined at Cost. with mowing
average price on First in First Oul [FIFQ] basis.

Tha assets are classified as held for sale if thair carming amcunt is intended to be recovarad principally through sale rather than through comtineing use. The
condifion o classfication of held for sake is met when the asset s available for Immediate sale and the same |s highly probable of being completed within o year
from the date of classfication under held for sale. The Parent Company, is holding a Land at Shukhpuri Village, as '"Asssis hald for Salg’, under the head of Cther
Current Assels, a8 the management now antisgates completion af the sale by March, 2024 (Previously, the company was estimating the completion of sale by
March, 2023).

Provisions, Contingant Lisbilittes and Contingent Assels

{a} Prowisions arg racognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) a5 & resull of a past event, it is probable that an autllow of
resources ambodying economic benefits will be required 1o sattle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Such
provisions are dedermingd based on management's estimate of the amound required lo selile the obligation at the balance sheat dale. When the Group
axpecis some or all of a provision to be reimburaed, the reimbursemeant is recognised as a standalona asset only when the reimbursement is virually
cortain,

113 H the affect of tha time value of monaey is material, provisions are discounted wsing a current pre-tax rate that raflects, when appropriale, the risks specific
to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

ic) Contingent liakilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the managamani. These are reviewed al each balance sheet dale and are adjusted to
raflec] the current managemen’s estimate.

[l:13 Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in the conaolidated financial statements whean inflow of economic benefits ia probabla.

{a} Income-Tax sxpansa comprises of current and deferred income tax which has baen shown under the head ‘Oiher Expanses'. Income fax expense is
recognied in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss excspl 1o the extent that it relates to ilems recoonized directly in eguity, In which case |t is
racognized in siher comprehensive incoma.

b} Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from er paid fo the faxaton authorities, based on tax rates and
laws that are anacted or substantively enacied at the Balance sheet date.

1a) Deferrad tax k3 recognised on temporary differences between the canrying amounts of assels and liabilities in the comaolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases usad in the compulation of taxable profit.

[:1] Deferred tax llabiilies and assets are measured at the fax rates that are expected to apply in the pericd in which the llability s settled or the asset
realisad, based on lax rales (and {ax laws) thaf have been enacted or subslandively enaclad by the end of the reparding period. The carrying amound of
deferred tax labllities and assets are reviewead &l the end of each reparting period.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translatrons

{a} Transaclions in forsign currencies are indially recorded al the exchange rale prevailing on the dale of fransaction. Monetary assels and liabilities
denominatad In farsign currencies &re franslated at the functional currency closing rates of exchange &t the raporting date.

b} Exchange differances arising on eettlsment or translation of mometary items are racognizsed in Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss exceapt to the
axtant of exchange differencas which are regarded as an adjustment 1o inferest costs on foreign currency Borrowings that are direclly altributable o the
acquisitien or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of asaats.

] Man-monetary ilems thal are measured in terms of historical cost in a loreign curmency are recorded using the exchange rales at the date of the
traneaction. Mon-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
rreasured. The gam of loss ansing on ranslaton of non-monetany ems measured at Lair vabes is freated in line with the recognition of the gain or kss on
the change in fair valee of the item {i.e., translation diflerences on items whose fair value gain or boss is recognisad in OC] or Consolidated Statement of
Predit and Loss are also recogniged in OC or Consolidaled Stalement of Profit and Loss, respectively),
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Employes Banefits Expenss

1B.5.12

1B.5.13

1B.5.14

18.5.15

{a)

{E}

{a)

(d}

Re

{a}

e}

()

Short Term Employes Bensfils

The undiscounied amowl of shorl lerm employes benalits expected 1o be paid in exchange lor the services rendered by employees ane rnmgnisad %
an expenss during the period when the employeas render the services.

P fil

A defined contributon plan s & post-employrment benedit plan under which the Group pays specified contributions 10 a separate entity. The Parent
company makes specified monthly confributions towards Prowident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Pension Schema and the subsidiary company
namely ' Shree Venkatesh Polymers Privete Limited' makes specified monthly contributions fowerds ESIC. The Parent Company & the Subsidiary
Company contribution is recognised as an expansa in tha Consolidated Stalemant of Profit and Loss during the pariod in which the employes renders the
related service. IF the contribution payable 1o the scheme lor service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the confribution already pald, the
daficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deduciling the contribution already paid. If the contribution akready paid excesds the
contribution dee for services recalved before the balance shest date, then excess |s recognised as an asset o that exient,

Diefined Banefils Plans

(il The cost of the defined banelit plan and other posl-employment banalits and the present valus of such chligation are determined using
actuarnial valuetions. An actuanal valustion volves making various assumptions thet may differ from actual developmenits in the future. These
include the delarmination of the discount rabe, Tulure salary increases. morality rates and fulure pension increases. Dua 1o the complaxities
inwolved in the valuation and its long-term natwre, a defined benefit obligation s highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions. All
assumplions are reviewead al sach reporting date.

i) The Parenl Company pays graluity to the amployess whoaver has completed five years of service with the Company at the tima of
resignationauperannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every campleted year of senvice as per the provisions of the Payment af
Giratuity Act, 1972,

{lii}) The gratuity liability amount is contributed to the approved gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratully peymant 1o the employees. The gratuity
fuend has bean approved by the goverming Intomae-Tax authoritias.

{iw) The liability in respect of gratuity &nd other post-employment benedits |s caleulated using the Projected Unit Cradidt Method and spread over the
peariod during which the beanefil is expacied Lo be darived Iram amployeas’ sericas.

{w) Re-measurements of defined benefit plans i respect of post-employment are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income,

Em ER=1=] lon I

Compensation to employess who have opted for retirement under the woluntary retirement schems of the Growp is payable in the year of sxercise of
opfion by the employes, The Group recognises the employes separation cosl when the scheme i anneunced and the Group is dermonsirably commiibed
to it

ian

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transfemsd o the buyer, recovery of the
cansderation s probabie, the assecialed cost can be estimated reliably, there 5 no confinuing effective contral or managerial invalvemant with 1he goods,
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from rendesng of services i recognised when the performance oblgation to render the services are completed 25 per contractually ageesd
terms.

Revenus from sale of goods & rendering of servicas s measured at the fair value of the consideralion received or receivable after taking inlo account
contraciually defined terms of payment and excluding trads discounts, valume rebates and taxes of duties collected on behalf of the Government such as
Goods and Services Tax [GST]. However, mere for the represantation purposas, in the Slatement of Profit and Loss, value of sales, al once, is shown
Inelusive of Goods & Services Tax and subseguently, such Goods & Services Tax are reduced,

Cdhar Incoma

fet}

b

[larest ncome

For all Debd Instruments measured aither at Amortized Cost or a1 Fair Value through Other Comprenensive Incame, interest income |& reconded using the
Etfective Interest Rata [EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated fulure cash payments or receipls over the expectad e of the financial
Instrement or & shorter period, where approprate. to the gross carmying amount of the financlal asset or to the amodized cost of a financial Rability.

Dividend Income

Divadend income is recognised only when the right to receivg the same is establishad, it is probable thal the economic benefils associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group, and the amount of dividend can be measuwred reliably.

Goods and Services Tax [G5T]

Tha Goods & Sarvices Tax balances, as appearing in the Balance Sheel of the Group, are subject to the reconciliation at the time of furnishing the annual GST
ratums af the company, under the Goods and Services Tax Enactments, for the financial year 2023-24.
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1B.5.16

1B.5.17

Insurance Claims

{a} Insurance claims are accounted far on the basis of claims admitted’ expected to be admitted to the sxtent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the
clalms,
b} The Parant Company is expecting the seltlement of insurance claims lodged by i, within next twehre months and therefore, the Parent Company has

classified such Insurance Claims Receivables under the head 'Other Current Assets’ in the Consolidated Balance Sheet,

Financlal Instruments

{a} Financial Assats

il

fii}

(i)

(i)

Inidtianl recegnition and messurgment

All fimancial assets and Rabllities are Initially recognized at fair value, Transaclion costs that ane directly attributable to the acquigiion or isaue of
financial assets and financial liabilties, which are not at fair valee through profit or loss, are adjusied to the fair value on initial recognition.
Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting,

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets canied al amorfised cost,

A financial asset Is measured al amortised cost if 1 s held within a business model whose abjective is to hold the asset in order 1o collect
contractual cash fiows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount autstanding.

Financial assats al fair valus through other comprehansive camea (FYTOC)

A financial assel is measured al FYTOC Il it ks held within & business model whose objective is achiewed by bolh collecting contraciual cash
fiows and eelling financial assats and the conlractual terms of the financial assel give riee on specified dates to cash flows that are solaly
paymants of principal and interes! an the principal amount autstanding,

Financial assets at fair valus through proft or koss (FYTPL)

A linancial asset not classified as eifher amorlised cost or FVOCL, is classilied as FYVTPL

Other Equity Invastrmenta

All other equity investmenie ara measurad at fair valus, with value changes recognised im Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, except
Tar those aquily investments far which the l‘iruup has elecled o prosent the vabee changas in ‘Olher Camprehensive Inoome’,

Impairment af nicisl

In accordance with ind AS 100, the Group uses ‘Expected Cradit Loss' (ECL) madsl, for evaluating impairment of financial aesets other than
Iy rrrdassured al Tair value heough pralil and loss (FYTPL),

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amaunt equal to:

* Tha 12-monihs expecled credil losses (expected cradit losses that result from those default events on the financial instrumant thal are
possiole within 12 months after the reporting date); o

= Full lifatime expected credit losses (expeciad credil losses that result from all possible default evants ower tha life of the financial instrument)
For trade recaivables Group applies 'simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognissd from initial recognition of

the receivables, The Group uses histerical default rates ta determing mpairment loss on the portfolio of frade recevables. Al every reparting
date thesa historical default rates are reviewad and changes in the forward keoking estimates are analysad.

Far atfer assels, the Graup uses 12 month ECL 1o provide Tor impairment kss where there s ne signilicant inerease in credit rigk, i there is
significant increase in credit rick full ietime ECL |s used.

{le} Einancial Liabilifies

i

fii

Initial recoanition measy

All financial liabilites are recognized at fair value and in case of beane, net of directly atiributable cost. Fees of recurning nature are diractly
recognised in the Consolidated Statemaent of Profit and Loss as finance cost,

Subsequent measurement

Financial Babilities are carriad at amortized cost using the effective infarest method. For trade and other payables maluring within ang year from
the balance sheet date, the camying emounts approximate fair walue due to the short maturty of these instruments.
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1B.5.18

1B.5.19

() Darivative Fnancial instruments and Hegge Azcounting

Dervative financlal nstruments are initlially recogrised at taie value on the date on which a desvative contract is enfered milo and are also
subsequently measurad at fair value. Dervalives are camied as financial assets when the fair valus is positive and as financial kabilites when
the fair value is negative, Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derlvalives are taken directly 1o Consolidated Statemeni
of Profit and Loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges which is recognisad in Other Comgprehensive Incoma and later 1o
Consolidated Stalement of Profit and Loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment il a hedged torecast
transaction subssguently results in the recognition of a non-financial assate or non-financial liability.

Hadgas that mast the critaria for hedge accounting are accountad for as follows:
Cash flow hedge

The Group duﬁgnates derivalive conlracts or non derivalive financial assels / liabililies as bedging nstruments fo mitigate the sk of
movement in interest rales and foreign exchange rates for foreign exchange exposure on highly probable future cash flows atiributable to a
recognised assel or liakdity or forgeast cash ransaclions, When a derivative is designaled as a cash llow hedging instrement. the alleclive
podtion of changes in the fair value of the dervative is recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve baing part of other comprahensive incoms.
Any nelleclive portken of changes in the Tair value of the dedvative is recognized immediately in the Consalidated Stalement of Profil and Loss,
if the hedging relationshap no bonger meete the crteria for hedge accounting, then hedge accounling is discontinued prospectively. if the
hasdging instrumanl expires or is sold, lerminated or exercised, the cumulative gan or loss on the hedging mstrument recognized in cash fow
hedging reserve tll the period the hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging reseree until the underying transaction eccurs. The
curmlaiive gan or less préviously recognized in the cash flow hedging resense i5 franslemed 1o the Consolidated Stalernant of Prolit and Loss
upan the eocumence of the underlying transaction. i the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to ocour, then the amownt accumulated in
cash How hadging reserva is reclassilied in the Consolidated Stalermant of Pralil and Loss,

Fair Valus Hedge

Tha Group designales derivative contracts or non darivatiee financial assels / Babilities as hedging instruments 1o mitigats the risk of changs in
tair value of hedged item due to movemeant in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commedity prces.

Changes i the fair value of hedging instruments and hedged dems that are designated and qualify es fair valus hadges are recordad in the
Consalidated Stalement of Profit and Logs, If the hedging relationship no longer meels the orilena for hadge accounting, the adjiustmen to the
carryirg amount of a hedged item for wiach the effective interest method is used i3 amarlised o Consolidated Statement of Profit and Losa
over the pericd of malurity.,

i) Daracognition of fnancial instrumeants

The Group terscognizes a linancial assel when the conlractual rights 1o ther cash flews frem the financial assel expire ar il fransfers the
financial agset and the transfer qualifies for derscognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability {or a parl of a financial liabdlily} is derecognized
fram the Group's Consalidated Balance Sheel when the obBgation specied in the contracl i§ discharged or cancelled or expires,

Drperating Cycle

(&) The Group presents its assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance shest based on currentnon-current classfication which is based upon the
Company's aperating evele, The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

(o) An assel is treated as curant when i is:

i Expacied to be realized or inlended 1o be sold or consumead in normal aperating Sycle;

(it} Hald primarily for the purpose of trading;

(i} Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

vl Cash or cash aquivalent unless rasiicted from baing exchanged or used io setble a liabiity for al leas! tealve months after the reporting period
(<) A liahility is treated as currend when :

iy I is expected o be setthad in nommal operaling cycla;

(i} it is hald primarily for tha purpase of trading;

{Hii) It is due to be =setiled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
W) There is ne uncanditisnal right lo deler the sefitement of B kability lor af least elve months alter the reporting period

=11 Dieferred tax assets and Habilitios are classifiod a5 non-current assets and liabilities,

Eamninga Fer Shara

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit ar loss for the period altributable to equity shareholders by weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average nurber of equity shares autstanding during the periad are adjusted for events of shares isswed during
the year inzluding bonus issus.

Far the purpase of caleulating diluted eamings per shars, the net profit or loss for the year sttributable to equity shareholdess and the welghted average number of
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the efiecls of all dilutive potential aquity shares,
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18.5.20

18.6.21

Rividend Digirikadicon
Diwidends pald (including Income-Tax thereon) ks recognised i the perlad in wiich the interim dividends are approved by the Board of Directors, or in respect of the
fimal dividend whan approved by the shareholders

Statement of Cash Flows
(a) Cash and Cash equivalants

For the purpose of prasantation in the consolidated slaternant of cash flows. cash and cash eguivalents includes cash on hand, othar shorl-tarm, haghly
lgquid Investrments with onginal metunties of three months or less that are readily converible fo nown amounts of cash and which ere subject 1o an
insignificant sk of changes in valua,

by The Consolidated Staterment of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘indirect Method® a& et out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind A5} 7 on
‘Blatement of Cash Flows'.

HOTE -1C - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Consolidated financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS reguires management to maks judgments, estimates and assumplions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilitles and disclosures as at date of the financlal staternents and the reported amounts of the revenues
and expensss for the years presented. The estimales and associaled assumplions are based on historical exparience and other factors thal are considered 1o be relevant. Aciual
results may dilfer fram these estmates under diferant assumptions and conditions, The estimates and underlyimg assumpltions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revisad if the revision affects only that pericd or in the period of the revision and future periods if tha
renision affests bath current and future pariods,

icA

ic.2
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1C.4

1C.5

Depreciation ! amorisalion and usehd ives of property plant ard equigment ! intangible assets

Property, Plant and Equipment / Intangible assets are depreciated / arnortised over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account estimated residual value.
Management reviews the estimated usefu lives and residual values of the assels annually in order to determine the armount of depreciation / amortisation to ba
recorded durimg any reparting perod. The useful bves and residual walues are based on the Group's histoncal experience with similar assets and take inlo accownt
anticipalad technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation for fulure periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Hegovera of Tr

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverabilty of overdus trade receivables and determining whaether a provision against those receivables is requirsd.
Factors considered include e cred raling of e coundarpary, the amaunt and liming of anlicipated folure payments and any possible aclions thal can be laken o
mitigate the risk of non-payment.

Prowissons

Provisions and labllities are recognized in the pendod when it becomes probable that there will be a fulure cutflow of funds resulting from past operations or events
and the amount of cash culflow can be reliably estimated, The Bming of recognition and quanification of the Bability requires the application of judgment o existing
facts and circumnetancas, which can be subject to chamge. The carrying amounis of provisions and liabilities are reviewsd regularly and revised o take account of
changing facts and cirsumstances,

Impairment of non-financial essets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether thera is an indication that an asset may ba impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estmatas the
assel's recoverable amount. An assel’s recoverable amount i the higher of an asset's ar Cash Generating Units (CGLS) fair value bess costs of disposal and its
value in use. It is dstermined for an individual asset. unless the asset does nol generate cash inflows that are langely indspendent of those from other asssts or a
groups of assels, Where the canying amount of an assel or CGU exceeds s recoverable amount, the asse! is considered Impaired and is wiitlen down 19 its
recovarable amount.

In agsessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present valus using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of tha time value of maney and the risks specihic to the asset. In detarmining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. if
no such transactaons can b identified, an approgriate valuation madal ks used,

Impairmant of financial assets
The impairrmant provisions for financial asseds are based on assumptions about risk of default and axpecied cash loss rates. The Group uses judgmand in making

these assumplions and sebecting the inpuls 1o the npairment caloulation, based on Group's pest history, existing marke! condittons as well as larward looking
aslimates at the and of sach reporting pariod.
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HOTE -10 - OTHER NOMN-CURRENT ASSETS
[Unsecured, consldened qood)

16™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

[Amaount in Lakhs]

Particulars As at Asal
gl March. 2024 | 378 March, 2023
Advancas other than Capital Advances
Security Deposils 365.80 331.43
Taxes Paid Under Protest 99,24 8357
Advances 1o Suppliers - -
TOTAL [ 465.14 425.06
1
HOTE -11 - INVENTORIES
[Walued @b lower of cost and mel realizable vabee|]
. [Amount in Lakhs]
Fariculars As at As @t
st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 |
Faw Materigls 2,976,652 2,901,858
Work-In-Progress 205.59 130.13
Finizhed Goods 3,051.26 3,240.98
Stock-In-Trade 634,65 558,38
Siores and Spares 30,40 120.68
Packing Matarials &67.23 7335
TOTAL 702565 706537
[T L
i) Amount of inventories recognized as an expanse have been disclosed in Notes 31,32 and 33
{mp Entire imvantarias of the parent company have been hypothecated as securify with banks againsi working capital kzans and anfire inwentories of one of the subsidiary

company namely 'Shree Venkatesh Industies Privale Limiled” have been hypothecated as security with banks sgainst working capital term lean, refer Nole 19 for

details.

NOTE -12 - CURRENT TRADE RECEWABLES

[Amount in Lakhs]

Particulars As at As at
st March, 2024 | 318t Margh, 2023
Sacured, conaidered good - -
Ungecured, consicered good 6,549,569 561446
Trade Receivablas which have significant increase i Gredit Risk 143.37
Less: Allowanse lor Doubthl Debis 1143.37]
Trade Recaivablas - Cradit Impaired
TOTAL 6.5459.59 561446
Moles; -
fiy Me trede or ather receivables are due from directers or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Further. trade recehvables due
fram enterprisas over which Key managerial persons are able to exercise significant influence amaunls 1o T Nil (Previous year T NIL} as at 3151 March, 2024,
1] Tha Allawancs lor Doubtful Cebis has besn made on the basis of expectad cradd loss & per the judgment of the managemsant.
iy Entire Trade Recsivables of the parent company have bean hypathecated with Banks &galnst working capital loans and enfire frade recelvables of one of the

subsidiany company namely " Shrae Vankatesh Indusiries Privale Limited have baen hypothecated with banks against working capilal term loan, refer Mole 19 for

detals.,
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

NOTE -13- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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[Amaunt in Lakhs]

Particulars I As at As al
218t March. 2024 | 3131 March, 2023 |
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 7345 46.99
Cash on Hand [ 17.67 1517
TOTAL [ 21.02 6216
HOTE -14 - BANK BALAMCES OTHER THAM CASH AMD CASH EQUINALEMNTS
[Amaunt in Lakhs]
[Pariculars As al As al
31t March, 2024 | 31st March, 2053 |
Fixwad Deposils - Malurity more than 3 months and less than 12 months | 1,041.25 804.949
TOTAL [ 1,041.25 B04.36
Mabes:
1] Fixed Oeposits ara held as margin money against the bank guarantes and ketter of credit facilities sanctioned by the Banks.
HOTE -15 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
[Amaunt in Lakhs]
Pariculars Az at As at
15! March, 2024 | 3158 March, 2023 |
A Capital Advances BE.63 T.41
() 0863 741
B. Advances other than tal Advances
Taxas Paid Under Protast 45720 45720
Advance o related parties
= Advance fo Supplisers 7619 -
Crtivers
= Advance o Suppliers 248.44 17646
- Advance to Employass 44 38 48,81
- Advance tor Expengas 3669 47,65
(8) E BE282 | 73122
= Others
Assels Held lor Sale - Freehold Land 184,47 fg5.22
Balances with Statutory Authosties 364.63 48.52
Frapaid Expenses TrET Bd. 26
Insurance Claams Feceivable 509 21505
Incentives Aecaivable from Governmant 430.02 4300
Oitiner Laans and Advances 1.00 -
Giratuity Plan Assels - 296
Embazzlamant Money Recovarable from Employas 34.00 -
(c) ' 1.806.51 1.457.02
TOTAL {A+B+D) 2 TEB.OG 2,186.65
1

Molis:

{ih Advance fo suppllers includes aggregale amount of Rs, 76,19 Lakhs (Previous Year # Nilj due from firms or private companies in which any of the direclors of the
Company is either a parinar or a dirsckor or 2 member, as al 3181 March, 2024,

[[]] Thea anbre Insurance Clam s receivable by the Company against the losses of Properly, Flant and Equipment and Inventories occurred in earlier years, The
Company has recaived the parfial Insurance Claim and the remaining claim is expacted o be seliled in the financial year 2023-24. The Management consider the

game as gocd for recovery and therefore, no proviskon for mgaiment of the valus of such claim has been consldered necassary,

(i} The incantives receivables from Government by the Company is the VAT amount receivable under TRIFAC Subsidiary Scheme. The Company is expecting that
such incentive will be recetved in thie financial year 2023-24, The Management consider the same a5 good Tor recovery and therefore, no provisian Tos impalsment of

the value of such claim has been considsred necessary.
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A Autharised and Paid-up Share Capital
[Amount in Lakhs]
Particulars As at 3181 March, 2024 Az at 31st March, 2023
No. of Amount Mo. of Amaount
Shares, Shares
AUTHORISED
Equily Shares of € 10/ each 3,60,00,000 A,600.00 | 3,80,00,000 3,800.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AMD FULLY FAID-UP
Equily Shares of ¥ 105 each 281 85 000 281850 2 41,95 000 291960
TOTAL 2.61,85,000 | 291850 | 2,91,95,000 2,913.50

B. Reconciliation of the numiber of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repoding pariod
[Amount in Lakhs]
Parliculars As ab 3151 March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Mo. of Amount Ma. of Amourit
Shares Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of tha yaar 291,95 000 2,918,580 291,595,000 2,9419.50
Shares issued during tha year - - - .
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outsianding al the end of the wear 2.91,95,000 318,50 i 2,21,95,000 2,418,650
c. Datails of shares held by shareholders holding rmore than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company
Hame of Sharehaldar As at 3151 March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Mo. of % of Mo. of % of
Shares held Haldifg Shares held Hodeing
|
Shri Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 54,48 974 18.664%| 54,48 0974 18.664%
Smit, Aashmi e Agrawal 47,00,082 16.09%%,| 47,000,082 16.088%
Shees Padmavati Irmigations LLP 26,12,000 B.947%| 25,12,000 B.047%
|
D. Credails of shares hald by Pramoters as defimned in the Companies Act. 2013 as at 31st March, 2024 and as at 31st March, 2023
Marme of the Promoler As &l 315t Masch, 2024 A at 315t March, 2023 o Changs duing the
No. of %% of Mao. of % of yaar
Shares held Total Shares Shares held Total Shares
Shei Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 54,458,974 18.664% G4, 48,974 | 18.664%
Smt. Rashmi Devi Agrawal 47 00, 092 16.099% 47 O, 0a2 | 16.088%: -
Shees Padmavati Irrigafions LLP 26,12,000 | 2.947% 26,12,000 | 8.847%
Smit. Rasheni Devi Agrawal & Shri Sanjay Kumar 1 | A90% q | o
Agrawsal oh behalt of Shree Venkatesh Industries s | i v [ ik
Shei Maohan Lal Sohan Lal Shah 6,089 | QLO21% 6,089 | 0021%
Shni Ananda Urmals 1,200 .00 1,200 | 00044
Shei Rajesh Babanlal Aqgrawal 1,200 0,004%: 1,200 | 0.004%
Shei Vijay Prasad Pappu 1,200 | 0.004% 1,200 0.004% .
Shei Mehmood Ahmed Khan 1,200 | 0.004% 1,200 | 0.004%
| | |
L Total 1,29,14.955 | 44.237%, 1.29,14,955 | 44.237%
E Datalls of shares held by Promoters ag delined in the Companies Act, 2013 a8 at 31s! March, 2023 and 22 at 315t March, 2022
[Mame of the Promoter “Ag at 315t March, 2022 Az at 318t March, 2021 | % Change dunng tha
Ne. of %o MNa. of % ol Y
Sharas held Total Sharas Shares hald Total Sharas
Shi Sanjay Kumar Agriwal 5448974 | 18,8684% 54,48974 | 18.664% -
Smt. Rashmi Devi Agrawval 47,00,092 16.099% 47,000,092 | 16.088% =
Shres Padmeavatl Irigations LLP 26,12,000 59475 26,12,000 [ B.847% -
Smt. Rashmi Devi Agrawal & Shri Sanjay Kumar "
Agrawal on behalf of Shree Venkatech Indusirias 145,000 | 0450 1,435,000 0.480%
Shai Mohan Lal Sohan Lal Shah 6,080 | 0.021% 6,080 | 0.021%: -
Shwi Ananda Urmale 1,200 | 0.004% 1,200 | 0.004% -
Shei Rajesh Babanlal Agrawal 1,200 | L0094 1,200 | 0.004% -
Shn Vigay Prased Pappu 1,200 { 000455 1,200 | 00047 -
Shwi Mehrmood Ahmed Khan 1,200 i 0.004% 1,200 | 0.004% -
| Total_ -' 12914055 | 44.237%]  1.20,14,955 | 44.237% :
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The Company has issued only one class of equity shares baving face value of T 105 per share, Each shareholder & eligitde for one vole per share held, In the evenl of
liquidation, the equaly sharsholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amownts, in proportion 1o their shareholding.

G.

Allatmendt of Bonus Shares/Buy Back of shares

There are no shares alolted as Willy paid up Dy way of bonus shases o alloted as Tully paid up pursuant to cantract wilhoul payment being received in cash, or bowghl back

during the period of five years immediately preceding the repariing date. There are no securitiss which are convertible into equity shares.

HOTE -17 - OTHER EQUITY

[Armaunt in Lakhs]

Pariculars Az at As al
. st March, 2024 | 31stMarch, 2023
Securitias Premium 6.891.76 6.991.76
FRetained Eamings {1,449.54) {1,899.35}
Flevaluation Reserve 6,403 68 6,411,458
Exchange differance on translation of Fimancial Staterments of foreign oparations 4.734.70 417817
Ecqpuity Component of Compound Financial bnatrurents #5.89 83589
TOTAL 16,766.47 15, 768.92

MNOTE -17.1 - Mature and Purpose of Reserves

{a)

iby

Securilies Pramium

Thee arnount recelved i excess of face value of the equity shares |s recognized n Securities Premiem. The amount of secunilies pramium can be utilized only in

accordanca with the provisions of the Companias Act, 2013 for specified purposas.

Thea details of movement in Secunties Pramium during the year |s as below:

[Arrtunt in Lakhs]

Particulars. I Ag at As at
L Est March, 2024 31s! March, 2033 |
Opening Balance 6.991.76 6,991.76
Add:  Premium on issue of Equity Shares . I
6,991.76 6,991.76
Less:  LHilized during the vear - -
Closing Balance | 6,991.76 6,991.76

Ratained Eamings

Redained Eamings are the profits thal the Company has earned 1ill date, less any transfers 1o ganeral resarve, dividends or other disiibufions paid 1o shareholdars.

The details of movement in Ratainad Eamings during the year is as below:

[Amount in Lakhs]
Particulars: A al A al
31t March, 2024 | 31stMarch, 2023
Opening Balance {1,829.35) 5.241.97
Add : Amount transferred from Revaluation Surples to Retamed Earnings 7.9 -
{1.891.56) 5,241.97
Lees : Unamortised Cost Portion on Intarest Free Loans to Subsidiany Written-off - -
{1,891.56) 5,241.97
Less : Unamorised Interest Expenses on Loans from Related Parties Writlen-off - -
{1,891.58) £,241.87
Add:  ProfitiLose) for the year 463.55 {7 176.04)
[1.428.01) {1.834.07)
Add:  Other Comprahensive Incomea for the Year {21.53) 3472
Closing Balance {1,44%.54) {1,8249.35)
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el Ravaluation Ragsrve
A revaluation reserve is a non-cash reserve created to reflect the tree vakee of the asset when the market value of a carain category of asset is more or less than
the value of such asset al which it Is recerded in the books of accounl, The company has created revaluation reserve by making revaluation of the assets carmled out
during the financial year 2016-17. From the FAevaluation Reserve. during the year under review , an amount of Rs.7.79 Lakhs has been reversed due 1o sffecting
sabe of cerfain revalued assels,
The datails of mevement in Ravaluation Resarve during the wear is as below:
[Amaount in Lakhs]
Particulars As at As al
S1st March, 2024 | 3istMarch, 2023 |
Openirg Balance 6,411.45 641145
Less : Amount fransfemed o Redained Eamings {7.79) .
Claging Balance 6,403,658 641145
(d) Exchange difference on translation of Financial Statermants of foreign operations
[Amaount in Lakhs]
Particulars As at s al
31t March. 20224 | 3%si March, 2023 |
DOpening Balance as per last inancial statemanl 417817 266112
Add: Exchange Difterance on translation of Forsign Operation [Earlier yesar] BE3.09 -
4,842,206 2668112
Add:  Other Comprihensive Income {107 .56) 1,618.05
Closing Balance 4. 734.70 417817
(&) Equity Companent of Gompound Financial Instruments
Equity compongnt of compound financial statement reprasents the @Elference batween the proceeds of the borrowings made by the Company from ils promaters,
during the previous finamcial years, at low interest rate, and the fair value of the Bability component.
The dataila of movement in Equity Companent of Compound Fimancial Instruments during the year is as balow:
[Arnaunt in Lakhs]
Farticulars Ag at As at
213t March, 2024 | 3151 March, 2023 |
Opaning Balancs 25,849 8559
Closing Balance 85,89 85,83
18-
[Amount in Lakhs]
Farticulars As at A at
21st March, 2024 | 31stMarch, 2023 |
Equily Share Capital 1.00
Securifies Premium -
Ratained Eamings {2.49)
TOTAL (8.49)
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[Amount in Lakhs]

Particulars As a1 3151 March, 2024 Mg at 315t March, 2023
Non Currant [ Curran Non Current Currant
Term Loans
A Secured
Fram Banks 224887 3TH.96 | 1.345.75 37606
From Man-Banking Financlal Companies - - - -
4] 224887 | 37656 | 1,345.75 376.96
B. Unsacured
Loans and advances T41.46 -
(B} Ti1.46 -
TOTAL {A+E) 298033 3TE.96 1,345,756 a76.06
Mates:

il The Current portion of the Bormmowings represent the principal amount of loan. which is repayakle in next twelve months and has been classified under MNote 23 "Short

Team Borrowings' .

{ii} Rafar Mota 48 for information about liquidity risk.

Mote - 194 - Mature of security, terms of repayment and detalls of guarantee given for Long Term Secured Borrowings

Sna. Mature of Securnty

‘arms of Reapayment

1 Term Loan of ¥ 700 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 700 Lakhs) from Punjab
Mational Bank is secured on fiest and suclusive charge by way of
Equitable Marigage on Machinenies and Hypothecation of all movaile
Machineries! Implemnents’ Figed Assets and Guarantees ol Mr
Sanjay Wumar Agrawal, Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal, Shres Padmavati
Irrigation LLP, Shree Balaji Industries and Shres Venkatesh Industries
along with pari passu charge by way of Equitabla Mortgage of
Properties owned by Diregtors Mr, Sanjay Kurmar Agrawal, s,
Rashmi Agrawal and M's Shree Balaji Industries as collateral
security,

Repayable in 84 equal monthly installments of ¥ 8.33 Lakhs with initial moratorium penod of
& months stasting from April, 2018, Last installment due in March, 2026, Ralte of inferest
9.96% p.a. as at year end. (Previous Year 10.55% p.a.}

{Tolal Quistanding as on 37-03-2024 is T 100.00 Lakhs (Previous year T 200.00 Lakhs) our
of which ¥ T00.00 Lakhs (Pravious year T 9899 Lakhs) s fakan fo current malunifies of fong
tarm debis]

2 Term Loan of ¥ 1,800 Lakhs (Previous year 7 1,800 Lakhs} Irnm!
Funjak: Malional Bank is secured by first and exclusive charge by
way of Equitable Mortgage of proposed buibding situated &l Kharsa
fo, 109 al Gram Mohammedpura, Burhanpur (MP.) and By way of
Hypothecation on plant & machineries & all movable machineriss!|
implaments! lived assels o be created oul of proposed lerm loan of
ihe bani. [Presently, consortium has first pani-passu charge by way of
EM on Khasra no, 108 al Gram Mohammedpura, Burhangar (M.P.}. It
is further secured by second charge on enfine current asssts of the
company bolth present and fulure (First charge exisls with WG
jurmi

Repayaible in 78 monthly principal installments of T 23.08 Lakhs each starling from Agpril,
2022, Last inslalbmend due in Seplember, 2028, Rale of Inlerest as al the year end ks 9.70%
p-a. (Previous Year 10.55% p.a)

[Tota! Cwistanding as on 31-03-2024 s § 1,246.15 Lakhs (Previous year 1.523.07Lakhs) our
of which T 278,96 Lakhs (Provious pear T 27696 Lakhs] is taken o current mativilies of jong
term debis.]

L llenders
3 Vehicle Loan of ¥ 126.00 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ Nil} from Punjab
Mational Bank |s secured by Hypothecation of Vehicle,

Repayable in 48 egual monthly installments starding from June, 2023, Last installmant dus in
May, 2027, Rate of Interest is 9.87% p.a. as at the year end, (Previous Year Mil)

[Total Cetstarmding T 103,07 Lakhs (Previous pear T NI owd of which T 29.58 Lakhs {Prewviows
year T M} taken to current malunties of long tarm debiz]

4 Term Loan of Re. 32 Crores from HOFC Bank Lid. s primary secured|
by Slocks. Book Debts, Fived Deposits and Plant & Machineres &
collateral secured by propedy siteated ab Plot Mo. 114, Smart
Industrial Park, Pithampur, and luiher personal guaraniee of
Directors and their relatves.

[Actual disbursement of Term Loan of Rs.1310.67 Lakhs during the
vear]

|[‘I'ula| Cutatanding Rs.1300.07 Lakhs (Frevious year Fa. NI ) out of which Re.04.41 Lakhs

Repayable in 84 monthly installments of Rs.50.52 Lakhs esach commencing from
August'2024, Last installment due in July'2031, Fate of bierest 8.40% p.a. as al Year end,
[Previous Year Nil]

(Pravious yaar As.. Nil ] is taken fo current maturitias of long tarm dabts]
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- 30 - 14
R S I .. JAmount in Lakhs]
Particulars AE a1 315t March, 2024 [ As at 31at March, 2023
Mon Currant | Currenl | Mo Current Current
Lease Liabilties for Land 1,067 66 17698 | 1,087.00 128.09
TOTAL 1,067.66 | 176,98 | 1,087.00 128,08

Mt

11} Thea Currend portion of the Lease Lisbiities represend the Lease Rental which is payable in next tvalve monthes and has been classfied under Note 24 'Current Legse

Liabilities",

i} For details on the imphcations of application of Ind AS 116 on the finencisl stalements, Fefer Notes 1 & 42,

NOTE -1 - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES {NET)

Pariiculars Ae at As At
Sl March, 2024 | 3741 March, 2023 |
Daferred Tax Lisbilities on accownt of taxable temporary differences:
Al tha baginning of the year 152015 1,624.88
Add: Additions due to acquisition of Subsidiany {004} -
1.530.11 1,624.88
Lesss | Charged Credit) o Staterment of Profl and Loss {10.34) {34.73)
TOTAL 1,574.72 1,530.15

_[Amount in Lakhs]
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HMaote - 21.2 - Component of Deferred Tax Liabilities for the finaneial year ended 31 st Mareh, 3023
[Amount in Lakhs]
Particulars As &t Chargsf{Cradit) to As at
18l April, 2022 Statement of Profi st March, 2023
and Loss
A Detarred Tax Liabilties in relation to
Proparty, Planl and Equigmsn 2B4.45 | {1014 274,32
Asvalusd Land 1,401.52 | {10.48) 1,391.06
Fligght-od-Line Asget 31615 | (48,49 JEE BB
i) 200113 | (E2.08) 199204
B. Dederrad Tax Assels in relation (s ;
Prowisicn for Impairrment of Trade Recelvable 333 , 4,75 36,08
Gratuily Payabla 14.67 | {14.67) .
Lease Lisbilities 3025 | {24.44) a0s.81
Carry Forwiard Losses - .
(8) 37625 | {34.36]| 341.89
TOTAL [A-B) 1624.88 | (34.73) 1,590.15
MOTE - 22 - OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
. [Arrunt in Lakhs|
Pasticulars Ag at As at
st March, 2024 | 3151 March, 2023 |
A Advancas against Sale of Proparty 7.50 550
(A 7.50 550
B. Oithers,
Long Term Deposils from Dealers and Supplhiers 56497 56198
Long Term Deposits from Tenants 5.36 0.36
Gralully Payable 8167 -
) 622,00 SE234
TOTAL [A+B) G28.50 56784
L
[Armount in Lakhs]
Parficulars s at Ak al
S1et March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 |
A, Freem Banks
Cash Credit Facillies BAR.14 T4.71
[Loans Hapayable on Dermand, Securaal]
Current Maturties of Long Term Debt | 500,95 376,98
£ [ 1.389.08 451.67
B. From Cthers
Cusrrent Maturitias of Long Term Delbi [
[E]] a
TOTAL (B [ 1,389.09 451.67
Motes:

fip

Thee Parent Company has borrowed Cash Credit Loans from State Bank of India, Punjab Mational Bank, ICKCI Bank and Central Bank of India led by State Bank of
India wharain, SBI Cash Cradil Loan of ¥ 450,88 Lakhs (Previous Year T B.53 Lakhs), Punjab Mational Bank Cash Gradit Loan of T 104.71 Lakhs (Pravious Year ¥
B4.57 Lakhg),BCICT Bank Cash Credil Loan of ¥ 332.56 Lakhs (Previous Year ¥ Ml Lakhs) and Centrel Bank of India Cash Credit Loan of # NEl {Previous Year #
1.61 Lakhs) are securad by first Pari pasu charge (amongst the consorlivm members) on whole of companies presend & fulure slocks of Raw Material, Finishad
Goods, Stock In Process, Stores & Spares and other Rew Materlal and the company's present and fulure book debts cutstanding monles, recelvable claima, bills,
Contracts, engagemaeants, securilies, iwestments, righls and assels of the company. The working capsal facdilies, as abave, are furthar secured by way of equitable
margage of mmavable Properies of the cormpany and promoterss, related enfities and personal guarantees of Mr. Sanfay Kumar Agrawal, Mrs, Rashmi Agrawal,

Shrea Padmavati Irigations LLP, Shree Balaji Industries and Shree Venkatash Industies.
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[Arnount in Lakhs]

Particulars A al As al
| 3stMarch, 2024 | 3158 March, 2023
Current Maturities of Lease Liabilities [ 176.98 128.09
TOTAL 176,98 128.09
35 . Pa
e JAmount in Lakhs]
Fariculars As at As at
151 March, 2024 | 3958 March, 2023 |
Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises & amall enterprises 685,89 417.75
Total cuistanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & small entarprises. 4.207.43 4,365,548
TRTAL 480432 4.7R3,33
Motes; x
] Trade payables are due to firms or private companias in which any of the directors of the Company is a partner or a director or 3 mamber amounts to  Nil {Previous
year T 85,46 Lakhs) as al 31st March, 2024,
NOTE - 251 - Information to be disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The information as required to be disclosed wunder Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008 has been determined fo the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company, The amount of pringipal and inferest oulstanding duning the year is given below ;

[Amount in Lakhs]

Pasicularg Ag at Az al
A1t March. 2024 | 31st March, 2023 |
(@) Principal amaunt remaining ungaid to any supplier as al the end of acsounting GBE.ED 41778
waar
(o) Interast due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the and of the
ataounting year , -
141 The amaunt of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day - -
iy The amound ol interest due and payable for the year - -
(&) The amourd of interest accruad and ramaining unpaid at the and of the
Btcourting year - -
if T armour] of hurther interest due and payable even in the sweeceading year,
untd such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid - -
HOTE - 25.2- Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as at 315t March, 2024
[Amount in Lakhs]
&.No Particulars Dukstanding For Iollowing periods from due date of paymenl i
Less than 1 Year 1to 2 years | 2wayears | Morathan 3 yoars
1 MSME GB6.89 - - . GaE.83
2 Oiter than MSME 4 04291 B5.70 61.08 | ar.74 4,207.43
k| Disputed duas - MSME - - - - -
4 Disputed dues - Other than MSME - - -
TOTAL 4,729.80 . 65.70 61.08 ! 3774 4 BOd 32
NOTE - 25.3-Tr Payables Ageln ule as al 31st March, 2023
i [Amount in Lakhs
5.Mo Particulars. Qutstanding For lollewing periods from due date of payrment Total
Less than 1 Year 11 2 years | Zte3years | Maorethan 3 years
1 MSME 417.75 | - = | - 417.75
2 Citivier thain MSME 425714 | 9,43 11.80 | 27 4,385,58
3 Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
4 Disputed dues - Other than MSME - - -
TOTAL 4.674.89 I 59.43 11.80 | 2721 4. TB3.33
HOTE - 26 - OTHER FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES
[Armaunt in Lakhs]
Pardiculars As at A al
218t March, 2024 | 3188 March, 2023 |
Interast accrued but not due on bomowings -
TOTAL " -
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NOTE - 27 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

[Armaunt in Lakhs]

Particulars I As at Az at
13t March, 2024 | 315t Maroh, 2023 |
A Revenus Received in Advance
Advance from Cuslomaens 446 26 61831
1A [ 448,26 618.31
B. Others
Stadutory LiabiMies 364.78 BE2.A5
Gratuity Payable - -
Oitinesr Liabilites [Refer Note balow)] 1.022 98 GET.6D
(8 [ 1.367.74 1.030.14
TOTAL (4B | 1.834.00 1.648.45
Mot -
] Criieer llalilitees include amount due to directors ar other officers of the Company elther severally or |olntly with any other persan or to firms or private companies in
which any of the directors of the Company is a partner or a diraclor or a mamber amounting to T 114.73 Lakhs (Pravious year T 20.84 Lakhs).

[Amount in Lakhs]

Padticulars Ag at As al
S1st March, 2024 | 31siMarch, 2023 |
For Employae Banelits 194.77 173.67
For Others 150.07 68.32
TOTAL 344,84 241,99

[Amount in Lakhs]
Patlcilars N Year ended ear ended
st March, 2024 | 31sf March, 2023 |

A Sale of Products
Manulacheed Goods 20,7187 59,9403
Traded Goods 20zE 3,387.16
Y [ 52,738.38 63,327.47
B. Sale of Services
Fraight and Logistics Income 683,58 516.70
i) B854 816,70
TOTAL {A+E) 53,421 .96 63,844.17
HOTE - 281 - Revenue From Coniracts with Customers dis i i 0 i as at

3=t March, 2024

[Armount in Lakhs]

FPariculars [ India [ Outside India Total

Plastic Pipes, Fittings, Allied Producls and Trading Accessones 52.013.82 I - 52,013.82

‘Water Tanks and Allied Products | T24.T6 | - T24.76
TOTAL 52,738.38 | . 52,736.38

NOTE - 29, l
15t March, 2023
[Armaunt in Lakhs]

Pariculars [ India | Outside India Taotal

Plastic Pipes, Fitings, Allied Products and Trading Acosssones 62, BE7.45 | . 62,8687

Waltar Tanks and Allisd Producis 440,01 - 440
TOTAL £3,327.46 | : 53,327.46
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NOTE -30 - OTHER | E
[Amount in Lakhs]
Particulars | Year ended Yaar anded
sl March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 |
A Interest Income [FA) 92 64 53.87
B. Citingr Mon=-Operaling Incoms
Gain an Sale ol Freehald Land 5,35
Fraight on Salas .04 -
Mizcellaneous Recaipts 30,35 Fa.05
(8] | 35.74 2005
TOTAL {AE) 128.28 B3.02
Motes; )
{ Interest Income inchedes impact of financial instruments
NOTE -31 - COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
[Arnount in Lakhs)
Padioulars Year ended Yoar ended
| st March, 2024 | 3150 March, 2023
Raw Malarials Consumed 3847949 45, 834.40
Packing Materials Consumed azza2 37005
TOTAL 36,801 .61 46,204.45
-32- PU K E
[Amiount in Lakhs]
Pasdiculars Year ended Year ended
SistMarch. 2024 | 31stblarch, 2023
Pipes & Fiflings 2,091.49 1,.200.52
Othars Ta6.28 1.018.43
TOTAL 288777 231895
[Amount in Lakhs]
Fariculars Year ended ‘ear ended
S1st March, 2024 | 3istMarch, 2023 |
] Iy rhas the b 1
Finished Goods 3,280.88 3,884,658
Work-ln-Frogross 130,13 94,67
Stock-In-Trade 55838 445,68
i) 3,969.49 4,424.84
B. Inwantaries at tha end of the year
Finished Goods 3.051.27 3,280.98
Work-In-Progress 205,59 13013
Stock-In-Trade 634,65 558,38
(B] 3,891.51 3 965,48
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES (A-B) Fr.o8 45535
HOTE - 34 - EMPLOYEE BEMEFITS EXPENSES
[Amount in Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended ear ended
s March, 2024 | 318t March, 2023 |
Direclors’ Remuneration 492,75 407,43
Salary, Wages, Bonus & Gratuity 1.851.34 1.735.78
Contribution towarde Provident Fund 53.49 54.85
Cantribution owards ESIC 20,28 .5
Employaa Wellare and Oilhar Banalits 5502 T0.26
TOTAL 247386 2 2E0.E3
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[Arnount in Lakhs]

Pardiculars Yaar ended Ve anded
_3lstMarch. 2024 | 315t March, 2023
Inlarest Expansas 2515 Ae8.80
Letter of Credit Charges 372,83 25276
Loan Processing and Incidental Expenses 57.53 51.12
Bank Guarantes Commission 446 617
Intereat on Lease Liabilities 113.82 113.72
TOTAL B33.83 1.262.56
NOTE - 36 - OTHER EXPENSES
[Armaunt in Lakhs]
Parficulars Year anded Wedr ended
At March, 2024 | 31sf March, 2023 |
A
Pawer & Fuel 1, 734657 1868767
Slores & Spares Consumed 12663 148.53
Repairs to Plant & Machineries 17.04 105.32
Diesr Manutaciuring Expenses 477,74 47714
Packing Material Consumad | .44 E
1A 2,456.42 2,598,686
B. Adminisirative Expenses
Lease Reni Expansas 1.10 -
Rant Expen!ea T0.39 81.82
Stationery & Printing 14.38 20,28
Postage and Courier Expangas. 1.42 1.82
Electricity Expensas 1.80 1.19
Vehicle Runming and Mainienance 34,54 23.96
Travaling & Conveyance Expenses 200.55 127.80
Tedephone, Mobile and Intemat Expenzes 1217 12,63
Directors Sitting Fees 410 3,78
Auditors' Remuneration
- Stattony Auditors 16,60 11.00
= Dthers 1.4 1.35
Insurance 4417 44,95
Repairs and Maintenancos
= Faciory Building 33337 10504
- Office Building 4352 13.59
- Dhhers 1.40 1.55
Legal & Professional Expanses 43,55 4712
Software Programme & Licence Fass 2067 14.17
Lipenise Renewal Fees 352 591
Guasl Accommodation Charges 565 7.7
Rates & Taxes .41 140.83
Charity & Donabion - 21.58
Contribudion towards Corporate Sacial Responsibility 2546 2716
Fraliminary Expansas Written-off Q.63 -
Prior Period Expenses{income) . .
Loszs on Sale of Assels 304 0233
Loss on Foreign Surrency Transactions - 37.69
Oflice Expenses 50,95 nar
Testing Expensas a1 -
Mizcellaneous Expenges 0,46
(8] | 41.60 TE417
(o Selling, Distribution & Other Expenses
Adveartisement, Publicity & Sales Promotion 203,25 157.08
Cogyright Usage Charges . 103,11
Commission on Sales 146.75 7382
Fraight, Cartage QOubtward & Cther Selling Expeanses 2,600,79 3,821.85
Discount & Other Expensaes 385.07 34547
Bad Debis TG 72 5,913.36
Allowance for Doubtiul Debis made a41z.08 1,393,115
[[8] | 4,454 66 11,813.74
TOTAL (A+B4T) 7.852.68 1517657
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36 -
[Ammount in Lakhs]
Particatars Year anded Year anded
ATsl Masch, 2024
{a) (Auditars' Remunaration
- Statutory Audit Fees 12,50 5.00
- Teax Audit Feas 2.50 2.00
- 35T Audit Fees 1.50 1.00
16.50 11.00
&t |Cerification and Conzulation Fess n 1.78
TOTAL 16.50 12.75
NOTE - 37 - EXCEPTIONAL [TEMS
~ [Ammount in Lakhs]
Farticulars ‘Year anded Yaar anded |
S5t Maech, 2024 |
Panalty undar SEB| Regulations - 25.00
Prowision for Impairment in Yalue of Loans to Subsidary - B2 .46
Proxision for Diminution in Walee of kwastments in subsidary 64698 55448
TOTAL 548 98 1,200.84

Mol :

based upon the audited financial statement of the subsidary company as of 315t March, 2024,

{h The Parent Company was, indlially, imgosed with a penalty of Ra. 10.00 Crores by an Order passaed on 2Bth June, 2022 by the Adjudicating Oitcer of the SEBI
under section 15HA of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, Howaver, upan Appeal, the sarme has been restricted 1o a swm of Bs. 26,00 Lakhs |
by the Ordar dated 30-09-2022 passad by the Secunties Appallate Tribunal, Mumbai. Accordingly, duning the F.Y. 2022-23 | the parent company has made a
payment of A=, 26.00 Lakhs lowards such penalty, which has been debited by the comgany to the statemsnt of predit ar loss under Exceptional fems',

(il The provisbon fer dirminution in value of invesiment in shares of wholly owned foreign subsidary of the Parent Company namely ‘Taptl Plpes & Products Lid., FZE
UAE", has bean made considering the financial pasition and net worlh of the subsidary company for the nancial year ended 3151 March, 2024, which in ils umn, is

MNOTE - 36 - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

[Amaurit in Lakhs]

Particulars Yiar ended Year gnded
st March, 2024 |
A hermng that will not be reclassified into predit or loas -
(i Change in Rovaluation Surplus - -
(i} Remeaswraments of defined bonefit plans {28.78) .72
{iii1 Equity Instrument of tha detinad benslit plans - -
() Fair Valua changes relating 1o own credit risk of financial liabilties dasignated - -
al fair valua through profit or loss - -
v Share of other cormprehensive Income in Associate and Jaint Venbures, o the = =
axtant not 1o be classtiad inte prolil o Inss - =
[wil Others - -
T4 {28.7E) 3472 |
B. Tarms that will be roclassified o profit or loss ©
(i} Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign oparation {10758} 1,518.05
(i Debt instrumeants through othar comprehensive income - -
{1y The effective portion of gaing and loss en hedging Instruments inoa cash flow hedge - -
() Shara of othar comprehensive Incoms in Asscciate and Joint WVentures, to the - -
axtent not ko be classified inko profil or bss - -
[v] Others. - .
(B 10756} 1,518.06
TOTAL (A+B) 1136.34) 1.582.77
NOTE - 38 - EARMNING PER SHARE
[Aemounl in Lakhs]
Particadars Yaar arndaed Yaar ended
3
et Profit atter Tax as per Statament of Profit and Loss atbritulable fo Equity Shareholdars 458,44 (7 176.04)
Waighted Average number of Equily Shares used a5 denominator lor caloulating Basic EPS 2.81,95,000 2,91,85,000
Weighled Average Polential Eqetly Shares = 2
Total Weightad Average numbear of Equity Shares used as denominator for calkculating Diluted EPS 2,91 95,000 2.91.%5,000
Basic Earning Per Share 1.57 [24.58)
Dilslad Earming Fear Shane 1.57 {24.58)
Faca Vakse Per Equity Share 10 10
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HOTE - 40 - THE RECOMCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSES AMD THE ACCOUNTING PROFIT

- [Armaunt in Lakhs)
Particulars | ‘esr ended Wear ended
S5 March, 2024 | 37sf March, 2023 |

Frofit bafore Tax 1,013.89 {E,694.43}
Effect of Ind AS Adjustments {156.,85) {60.75]
Adjusted Profit before Tax B5E.04 [8,755.18)
Apgplicable Tax Rate 25.168% 25.168%
Computed Tax Expanse . 215.64 {1, 70015}
Tax Effact of:

Income not taxabla . .
Expansas Disallowed 6489 7740
Diflerant fax rate on Capdal Gains " =
Other Differences 11512 63203
Uncertain tax posibons 148,11 1,490,772
Currend Tax Provision | 542,00 500,00
Effizctive Tax Rale 53.46% (7 A4T%)

HOTE - 41 - CONTINGENT LIABLITIES & COMMITMENTS

[Armount in Lakhs]
Pariculars Year ended Yaoar ended
S1stMarch, 2024 | 31stMarch, 2023 |

Contingent Liability not provided in reapeact of

{1y Disputed Income Tax Demand 1.324.69 1,324 .69
1] Disputed Exclse Duty, VAT, C3T & Entry Tax Demands 674.M A00.24
{aly Guarantae Given by tha company's Banker in the normal course of businass 348,25 35389
{iw) Letter of Credit for purchase of goods 874186 196277

(G4 Oitiner Disputes
[Rafer Note Balow]

Commilmants

Capital Confracts remaining le be gxecutod 245,45 250,25

Mot
i It is not practicable for the Parent Company to estimats the timings of cash outilows, if any, in respect of the abowe pending resclution of the respective procsedings.

1] Thee Parent Company does nol expesct any reimbursements in respect of the sbove contingent labilites
(i} Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determined only on receipt of judgmenta’ decisions pending &l warious foruma! authorities.

liv) Thz Parent Campany's pending ifigations comprise of claims against the Company partaining to proceedings pending with Excisa, Income Tax, Sales! VAT tax and
other authorities, The Company has reviewed all Bs pending Bigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provislons are required and
disclosad as contingant liabdities wheara applicable, in its linancial statements. The Parent Company does nol expact the autcome of thesa proceedings to have a
materally sdverae effact an its financial statements

NOTE - 42 - DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 116 "LEASES”

APPLIGATION OF IND AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Aftalrs ("MCA") theough Companles (Indlan Accounting Standards] Amendment Fules, 2042 and Companles (Indian Accounting Standards) Second
Amandmeant Rulas, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases, which replaces tha existing lsasa standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and other interpratations. Ind AS 116 sats out the principles
for the recogndfion, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors, B introduces 8 single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for
lessans.

The Parent Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting percd beginning 1st April, 2021 and applied the standard fo its kesses. Accordingly, the Parent
Campany has measured its lease ability a5 al 150 Apeil, 2021 1 lhe present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the interest rabe of 8.95% poa. implicil in
the leass at the date of transition to Ind AS.

The Right-of-Use Asset has been recognised at an amount equal 1o the lease Kability. Accordingly, a Bight-ol-Use asset of ¥ 1371.53 Lakhs has been recognlzed in F.Y, 2021-
22, The cumulative affect on transition in retained sarnings net off taxes is T Mil.

One of the Sulbsidary Company of the Parem Company namely Shree Yenkatesh Industries Pyl Lidl has adopted Ind A3 116, effective annual reporting period beginning 15t
Apil, 2022 and appliad the standard 1o fs leases. Accordingly, the Company has measured iis lease lability as at 1=t April, 2022 at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the interes! rate of 10.00% p.a mplcil in the lease al the date of fransition to Ind AS,

Tha Right-of-Lise Asset has been racognised at an amount aqual o the lease Eability. Accordingly, a Right-of-Use asset of ¥ 59.14 Lakhs has been recognized in F.Y 203223,
The cumulative eftect on fransition i refained eamings net off taxes is ¥ NIl
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Anather Subsidiary Campany of the Parent Company namely Shrae Venkatash Polymare Pul. Lid. has adopted knd AS 116, effective annual regoring pariod baginning 7ih
Movember, 2023 and applied the standard to 15 leases, Accordingly, the Company has measured ils lease liabilily as a1 Tih November, 2023 al lhe present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the interest rate of 10.00% p.a. imglicit in the lbase at the date of transition 1o Ind AS.

Tha Right-of-Usa Assat has bean recognised at an amount aqual fo the kase liability. Accordingly, a Righl-of-Use assat of 100,11 Lakhe has bean recognized in F.¥. 2023-

24, The curmdative effect on transition in retained aamings nef ol taxes & $ ML

On applcation of Ind AS 116, the nature of axpenses has changed from leass rend in previous perieds to depraciation coest for the Right-gi-Use assat, and finance cost for

intaras! sccrued on bease liabilities.

The Parend Company as well as the Subsidiaries Companies does nol have an oplion 1o purchase such leasehold land at the end of the lease period, There are no restriclons
such as thase concerning dividends, additional detts and further [Basing imposed by the lsase agreements.

Ind AS 116 has resulted in an increase in net cash inflows from operating activities and an Increase in cash outflows from financing activities on account of kxase paymanis.
The principal and inlerest portion of the lease payments have boen dsclosed under cash fow from linancing aclivities which for the year endad March 3150, 2024, aggreaating

1o ¥ 248.41 Lakhs {Previous Year ¥ 210.80 Lakhs}.

For movemeant in Right-of-Use Asest Refer Mote 3 and movement In Lease Liabéty during the year is as foliows !

[Asmount in Lakhs)

Particukars

Balance at the baginning

Additions

Finance cost accrued during the yaar
Deletions

Fayment of lease liabilties

Balance al the and
NOTE - 43 - DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 19 "EMPLOYEE BENEFITS"

iy Defined Contribution Plan

Wit anded Year ended |
1,215.08 1,312,18
159,25 -
112.73 11372
42a9:41pl |'21E|-.E‘I:|
1,244.66 | 1,215.09 |

Contribution to Definad Contribution Plans, recognised as expensa for the year is &3 under:

|Amount in Lakhs)|

Paticubars

Yoar ended g efded |
31

Employer's Contribution 1o Prowvidant Fund

53.49 54.85
Employer's Contribution 1o ESIC Fund 20.26 21.51
{ii} Defined Benofit Plan
Reconcilation of opening and cleaing balances of Defined Banefit Obkgation
[Aemaunt in Lakha]
Particudars Gaatuity [Funded)
Yaar anded Year anded
315t March, 2024 31at March, 2023
Deiinad Benefit Obfigation at baginning of the year 18258 187.82
Gurrent Senvice Gost 26.63 21.82
Imterast Cosl 12,96 13.00
Pasl Service Cost (Vested benefils) - -
Banafits paid (6.33) {2.65)
Actuarial (Gain)/Lass 2757 [38.41)
Defined Benefit Obdgation at year and 243.42 182.58
Raconciiiation of Opening and Clesing balances of fair valug of Plan Assets
e e [Amount in Lakhs]
Particadars Gratulty (Funded
Waar anded epr anded
st Masch, 2024 F1st March, 2023
Fair value of Flan Assets at baginning of year 185.55 128.53
Expected Fetum on Flan Assats 12.98 11.37
Actuarial GalntLoss) {121} {380
Employer Contribution 075 B0.99
Banafits Paid 16.32) {2.65)
Fair valua of Plan Assets at year and 18175 1856.55
Recanclation of lair Vakie of Assels and Obkgations
[Fumaunt in Lakhs]
Particadars Gratuity [Fundad) |
Yaar ended ‘Year anded |
31 -
Fair value of Plan Asseds 19,75 | 185,66
Presant Vahse of Banafil ObEgation 24842 | 182.58
Amounl recagnised in Balance Shaat {SurplusiDeficat)) 15167} 297
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Expeansas racognised during the year
[Araunt in Lakhs]

Pardiculars Gratuity {Fundad)

Year anded Year endad
st March, 2024 | 37sf March, 2023 |

In Income Statemeni

= Current Sarvice Cost 26,63 21.82
- Interesl Cost 12896 13.80
- Past Service Cost - 5
= Retum an Plan Assets {12.94) {11.37}
Net Cast [ 26,61 24.45
In Oher Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 27.57 {34.41)
Fiaturn on Plan Assets 1.21 3.69
Mt {IncomelExponses tor the period eeagnised in DG | 2878 {34.72)
Actuarial Assumptions Grabuty {Fund
‘Year anded YWear ended

Vs March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 |

Mortality Table (ALM)

Discount Rate (Per Annum) TA0% 740%
Hate of Ezcalation in Salary (Per annum} T7.00% 7008
HNotes:

1

5

The Pargnt Company has defired benefit plans for grabaty to eligibde smployeas, contributions for witch are made to Lile Insurance Coporation of Inda, who invests the Tunds
as per IRDA guidsfines. The datails of these defined benefil plans recogmizad in the financial statemeants are as under:

Gonatal Description of fhe Plan

The Parent Company operates a defined benelit plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering eligible employess, which provides a lump sum payment 1o vested employees al relirement,
death. incapacitation or termination of employmant, of an amount basad on the raspactive employses salary and the tenura of emplaymani.

The defined benafit plans typically sxpose the company to vanious risk such as :

()

(b

e

()

The astimates of rate of =scalation in salary considared in actuanal valuation, take into account inflations, seniaty, promotion and other ralevant factors including
supply and demand n the employrment markefl, The above information i cedified by the achuary,

The axpacted contributicn for Definad Benedit Flan for the next financial year will be in Ene with F.Y. 2023-24.

The Parent Company makes provident fund (PF} condributions to defined contribution benelit plans for eligible employeses. Under the scheme the cornpany is
required 1o confribute & specilied percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits, The contrbutions specified under the law are pald o the government
authorities.

Armount towards Defined Contribution Plan have been recognized under Contnibution to Provident and Other funds in Mote 34.

Drefinad Benedit Plan;

Irvessirment risk;

Thee present value of the defined benefit plan llabilty s calculated using & discound rate which ks determined by reference to market ylelds at the end of the reposing
period on government bonds. K the raturn on plan assel is below this rata, it will create plan deficit.

Interest ri
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increass the plan kability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the plan assets.
Longawily risk;

The present value of the defined benefit plan liabilidy &5 calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and alfer their
amployment. An increase in the Fe expectancy of the plan paricipants will incraase the plan's Eability.

Salary rsk:

The preaent valus of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the aalary of the
plan participants will increase the plan's liability,
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[Armaunt in Lakhs]
Padiculars Year ended
31 {
1 Diminuition in Value of Investment in Subsidiary

LSS AT LY

rastment in Equity Shares of Mfs, Ta pes & Products Lid
32,235 Equity Shares of Face Value of 1000 UAE Dirhams]

Fair Market Value of the Investment as on 31-03-2023 607 .65

Less : Fair Markel Valee of the Invesiment as on 31-03-2024 80,87
Diminuition in Value of Investrment in Subsidiary 546.98 |

Provisian far Dimimdion in Value of Investmenls i Subsidary 544,98
TOTAL 545,98 |

Mobe -
Dwring the Financial Year 2023-24, considaning the financial position and net worth of itz wholly owned Foreign Subsidiary Company namely Tapli Pipps & Products Lid., FZE
UAE', far tha financial wear ended 315t March, 2024 as par its consolidated audited linansial statement and congidering the Tair market value, the parent company had made
provision of ¥ 546.98 Lakhs (Previcus year Re.554.48 Lakhs) as on 31st March, 2024 on account of diminution in the value of investment in such subsidiary company, as
appeared in il books of aceount . The provision of ¥ 546,98 Lakhs (Previous year Bs.554.48 Lakhs) is included in the Note Mo, 37 of ‘Exceplional Items’ of the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss of the company for the financial Year 2023-24. |

NOTE - 45 - DETAILS OF LOAN GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE AND GUARANTEE GIVEN

The Details of Loans given and Invastments mads by the Company as at 315t March, 2024 is as undser ;
[Amount in Lakhs]

Sno. _|Particulars [Name of the Enlity | Relation | Burpose i

1 Investments Mada Taptl Plpes & Products Lid. FZE ‘Wholly owned Business Purpose -
IRafer Note 9] subsidiary

Texrmo Pipes Foundation | Section 8 Cnmpanyi CE5A Activity 0.06
im which Kay
Mangagerial
| Parsonnal ara abla |
toexercise |
significant
infbuancs,

Shrge Venkalash Polymers Private Limited Whally owred Business Purpose
sulpgidiary

Shriee Venkatesh Industies Private Lamited Parially Owned | Business Purpose
Subsidiary Co

2 Loan Given [Linsscurad) Shree Venkalash Industries Private Limitad Partially Owned | Bueiness Furpose
Subsidiary Co

TOTAL i 0.05

[Armount in Lakhs]
Sno.  |Particulars [Mama of the Enity | Aslation | Purpose Amount

1 Invesirments Made Tapdi Pipes & Products Lid, FZE Whally cwned Business Purpose -
sulpsidiary

Texrmo Pipes Foundation | Section & Company| GSR Activity 0.05
| which Key |
| Managerial
| Personnel are able |
fo guarcise
sagnificant
infheEnce,

2 Loan Given [Unsecured] Tapti Pipas & Products Lid. FZE ‘Whaolly owned Business Purposa
subsidiary

TOTAL 0.05
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NOTE - 46 - MATTERS EMAMATING FROM THE INVESTIGATION CONDUCTED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA [SEBI]

IN CONMNECTION WITH GLOBAL DEPOSITORY RECE GDE 8 PAREMT AL YEAR

i

The Parent Company was, indtially, imposed with a penalty of Rs, 10.00 Crores by an Order passed on 2810 June, 2022 by the Adjudicating Officer of the SEBI under
section 15HA of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, Howsver, upon Appeal, the same has been restricted to a sum of Rs. 25.00 Lakhs by the
Order dated 30-09-2022 passed by the Securites Appeliate Tribynal, Mumbal, Accardingly, during the F.¥, 2022-23, the parent company has made a payment of
As. 25.00 Lakhe towards swch penalty, which has been debited by the Parent Company to the statement of profit or koss under Wets Mo.37F of-Exceptional lems'

Thea Sacunities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide s Final Order dated February 28th, 2023 passed under sactions 111}, 11(4) and 11B of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1392 in the matler of GDRAS issued by the parant company during the financial year 2011-12 has issuad certain directions. The gist of
the directions |ssued ans enumeraled as under:

a) Tha Parenl Company has been resiraingd from accessing the securities markel and further, prohibited from buying, selling or otherwise dealing m securibies
inchuding units of mubesl funds. directly or indiractly, or being assocleted with the securities market in any mannar, whatsoawer, for 8 period of 3 years from the date
of the Ordar,

b) The Parent Company would condinue to pursue measuras 1o bring back the outsianding amount of USD 348 million, the GOR procesds into its bank account in
India wilhins & pericd of one v from the date of the Order, The Dirsclors of the company have alio been direcled to ensune the compliance of Such disection.

) Thie Key Managerial Personsg named as b, Sangay Kumar Agrawal and Mr, Vijay Prasad Pappu shall be restrained from accessing the Indian securities market,
and turther prohibited from buying, ssfling or otherwise dealing in securites including units of mutual funds, directly or imdirectly, or being associated with the
secunties markel in any mannes, lor a perod of 3 years,

Steps taken by the Managemant of the Parent Company in compliance of the directions issued by the SEB|

Tree Company has fded an Appeal betare the Honbie Securities Appedlate Tribunal, Mumbal against the sald Order dated 28022023 passad by the Whale Time
Mamber of SEBL Atter various hearings and orders, the matter is pending before the said awthonty. However, the amount of USD 3.49 million as mentioned by
SEB), was already received by Tapli Pipes & Products Limited FZE, the wholly owned subsidiary ol Texmo in Sepfember, 2012 and had additionally lumished a
Cedificate from a Chartered Accountant stating the same betore the tribunal.

BY COMPANY SECRETARY
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(B) Subsidiary Company-Shree Venkatesh Industries Pvtl. Lid.
(i) Related Party Transactions
[Amount in Lakhs]
Sno.  |Related Party Transaction Summary Key Managerial Persons
Year ended Year ended
3ist March, 2024 31st March, 2023
1|Unsecured Loan Taken
- Smit. Aparna Agrawal
Opening Balance 235.00 221.00
Taken during the year 9.41 14,00
Repaid during the year 2.95 -
Closing Balance 241.46 235.00
- Smt. Rashmi Agrawal
Opening Balance TE5.55 TEY.00
Taken during the year 173.00 28.55
Repaid during the year 938.55 50.00
Closing Balance n 765.55
(i) Balances as at 31st March, 2024
[Amount in Lakhs]
Sno.  |Outstanding Balances Key Managerial Parsons
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
1|Unsecured Loan Taken
amt. Aparna Agrawal 241.46 235.00
Smt. Rashmi Agrawal = 765.55
Total 241 .46 1,000.55
Motes :
i Balance outstanding at the end of the year! previous years are stated without considering impact of fair valuation carried out
as per Indian Accounting Standards.
(C) Subsidiary Company-Shree Venkatesh Polymers Pvt. Ltd.
(i) Related Party Transactions
[Amount in )
Sno.  |Related Parly Transaction Summary Key Managerial Persons

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Year endad
31st March, 2023

—

Rent Paid
Shri Sanjay Agrawal

Total

9.65

9.65
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In accardance with the provisions on Seclien 135 of the Coempanies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of tha Parenl Company has constiluted a C5A Cormmities, The

agelails of C5R Activities are as fellows

[Amaunt in Lakhs)

S, Particutars ear gnded Year mncded
d1s4 March, 2024 3151 March, 20238

1 Braught forward of amount spent beyond the atalutery requirement 342 2.5%

2 Gross amount regurad 1o be spant by the company during the year as per
Comganies Act, 2013 26,61 26,76

a Armount spent by the company durng (he year on e fallowing:
[8) Donation for setling up hosbel [y | -
() Promoting Healh Care including Praventse Health Care and Sanitlzation 0.20 aH
[} Cowid-18 reliad ralatad activities - -
[} Donations and Fnancial Assistance for Education 0.65 1.3
(8] Food Dismbution Drive 1o Fight Hungar 1208 a2z
[f) Wioman Empowearment E 1.06
{g) Rural’ Commianity Develapment 10.52 0.53
(f) Cabers 1.63 -

Tatal (3} 2546 | 27s8 |

4 Clesing amount yet o ba spant

L] Carry lorward of amount spant beyand the statufory requiremant 227 242

-] Showtlall at the end of the year

T Total of Previous ‘Year Shorfalls

B Rrasons for Shortfalls Mot Applicable Mot Appicable

Mabe:

il During the linancial year 3023-24, the company has paid CSR amoewnt 16 one of ils ralaled parties amowing o & swm of T 25.00 Lakhs

[Previous year T 27.00 Lakhs].
TE = -
1 Discksure on Financial Insirumanis

[a) Al the financial nstrumants are inflially recognized and subseguantly re-maasured al Tair valus a5 described balow:

W Thae Fair walee of Forward Forgign Exchange conlracts is defermined using lorward exchange rates al the balénog sheet date,

(i} Al foreign curancy denominated assats and babilties ara translated using exchange rate a1 reporting date, Fair Valee measuremant hiarﬁwr:n%m i

akhs
Pasiculars As at 315t March, 2024 Az at 215t March, 2023
Camying Value Far Valug Camyng Vale Fair Value
LR Fimancial Assels
I | A Amonized Cost
{it|Inwestmants in Jonily Controfiad Entity - - - -
(il | Wan Curent Trade Receivables 8803 GE.03 EB12.B6 61286
{iiit|CHher Non Gurrent Financical Assats - - . .
(v} Current Trade Recerables 6,549.59 £,540.59 SE14.46 561446
v} | Cash & Cash Equivabants including
Oiher Bank Balances 113227 113827 T4 867,14
{vi}|Leans - - - -
1] A1 EVTEL
{it| Investments E
U] 1 F 1
(1| Imvastments in Wholy Owned Subskdary - - - -
{iit|Cher Invesimants (.08 0.04 .05 0.05
Pasticulars As at 318t March, 2024 Asatmath.lurch, 2023
Carrying Value Falr Walue Camying Yale Fair ¥ alue
B. Financial Liabilities
(i} | Bosrawings 4,373.42 4 378,42 1.797.42 1,797.42
{iit| Lease Linbilties 1,244,668 1,244 66 1.215.08 1.215.0%
{lii}| Trede Payablas 4,894 .32 4,884.32 4.T83.33 #,783.33
{iv} [{Cher Fnancial Liabilfies = _ o }
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Forgs 1] Risk:

Tha Parent Gompany wndarakes transactions danominatad in foreign currancy {mainty US Dollar) which e subject to the risk of exchanga rate fluctuations. Financial asssats
and llabllities denominated in fereign currency, including the Parent Campany’s nel investments in foreign operations [with a lunctional currency other than Indian Aupes), are
abso subjeck to reinstatemant risks,

The carrying amaunt of foraign currency denominatad financial assets and liabiltias incheding darivative contracts, are as follows:

Parficulars A5 at As at
315t March, 2024 315t March, 2023

usD ush
Fimancial Assets 12,52.051 12,552,081
Financial Liabiltias - -
e 12,52.051 12,528,081
Sansitivity analyals of 19 change in exchange rate at the end of reporting period net of hedges
{z) Foreign Currency Sensitivity

For every percentage point changs in the underying exchange rate of the outstanding forelgn curency denominated assets and Babilities, including dervative contracts,
hadding all othar variables constant, the profil balore tlax for the year ended 3151 March, 2024 would change by 12620.67 USD [Previows Year - 12620.51 USD], Howevar, the
managemant of the Parent Company does not axpects is foreign currency denominalad financial assats o matura within a pencd of five years from the end of the year under
review.

{d} Interest Rate Risk

Interast rate risk is the riak that the future cash flow with respect 1o Interest payments on borrowing will fluctuate becewse of change in marked Interest rates, The company's
axposura la e risk of changes in marke inferas! rates relabes pamarily 16 the Company's keng-term debt obligation with floating interest rates,

{g] Intaras1 Rate Sansitivity

Intarast rate risk s messured by using the cash flow senaltivity for changes in varnable interest rates. Any mowvament in the reference rates could hawve an impact on the
Company's cash Nows as wel a3 cosls,

The Parent Company is sulbpect to variable interest rates on some of Hs interest bearing abilities. The Parent Company.s inlerest rale axpasure is mainly related to deiot
oibfigations. The Parent Company also uses a mix of interest rate sensitive financlal instruments to manage the lquidity and fund requiremants for its day to day operations
ik shorl lerm koans,

Az at March 31, 2024, financial liability of ¥ 888.13 lakhs was subject to variable interest rates. Increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates af the balance shest
date would result in decreasedncrease in profitloss) betore tex of # 1.30 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024,

The madal aasumas thal isleres) rate changes are instanlansaus paralal shifls in the yiald curce, Allhough some aesels and Rabilities may have similar mateiios o periods
o re-pricing, these may not react correspondingly to changes in market interest rates. Also, the interest rates on some fypes of assets and Babifities may fluciuate with
changes in market imerast rates, whike interest rates on other ypas of assats may change with a leg.

The risk eatimates provided assume & parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate acrose all yield curves. This calculation also assumes that the changs occure at the
bakance shesl dake and has been caloulMaed based on risk exposures oubstanding as a1 that dile, The period end balances are nol necessarly represantative of the average
detit gutstanding duning the pariod.

{Mote: The impact is indicated an the profitlzes) before tax basis).

{1 Commuodity Price Risk

CGommodity price risk anses due fo fluctuation in prices of raw material. The company has a sk managemeant frame work aimed &t prudently managing the rsk ansing from
the volaliBly in rae material prices and freight eests, The company's commodily msk s managed centrally thraugh wal-esiablished trading operations. and conlrol processes, In
accordance with the risk managemeant palicy, the Company carafully calibrates the liming and the quantity of purchase,

{g] Credit Rigk

Gredil risk is the risk that a cuslomer or counterparly 1o a financial instrurmaent Tails bo perform or pay the amoeents due causing tlinancial kess to the company. Credit risk arises
mainly from the owstanding receivables from customers. The company has a prudent and conservative process for manageng = cradit risk arising in the course of its
business activities. The credit ratingsfmarket stending of the customers are evaluated on & regular basis.

) Liguidity Ai

Liguidity risk arises from the Company's inabilty 1o mest its cash flow commitments on time. Prudent Bouedity risk management implies maintaining sulficient stock of cash
and marketable secunties . The Company mantaine adequate cash and cazh equivalents along with the need basad cradit Bmits 10 meet the liquidity neads,

{i} Hedge Accouring

The Parenl Company has established sk management palicies 1o hedge the valatility arising from exchange rale uciuations in respect of firm oommilments and highly
profrable forecast transactions, through foraign exchangs foreard and oplions confracts, Tha proportion of forecasti transactions that are 1o be hedgaed is decided based on the
slze of the forecast tranaection and market conditions. Ag the counterparty for such trensactions are highly rated banks, the nsk of their non-performance is considered to be
gigrificant,

The Parent Company uses dervatives to hedge fs exposure 1o changes in movement in forelgn currency, Where such dervalives are ned designated under hedge
accounting, changes in the fair valse of such hedges are recognised in the Statemant of Profit and Loss.

The Parent Company may alss designaie certain hedges, ususly for large transactions, as a cash flow hedge under hadge accounting, with the objective of shislding the
axposure from variabiity in cash fows. The currency, smount and temre of such hedges are generaly matched to the underlying transacton(s). Changes in the fair value of
the elfective portion of cash low hedges are recognised as cash flow hadging resenve in Other Comprehensive Income. While the probabity of such hadges becaming
meffectiva is very low, the ineffective portion, f any, is immadiately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The managerment of the Paren Campany does not expects its foreign curranoy denominated financial assats to malere within a period of five years from the end of the year
undar review and tharefore, it has not entered into any hedging contracts for the samse.
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NOTE - 50 - ADDITIONAL BEGULATORY INFORMATION

{ip Dwring the financial year 2023-24, no procesding has b=an inibkated or pending ageinst the company for holding any benami property under the Banami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 19848 {45 of 1988} and nies made thareundes.

{iii} The Parent Company has filed quarterdy returns or statements with the banks in lieu of sanclionsd working capital tagilitas, which are in agreement with the boaks
ol account othar than thase as sl aut balaw:

A, Diffaranee in Inventaras

[¥ in Lakis]
Guartar Ended Value 65 par Books | Walua as per Quartarly Differance Reasan for Vanance
Statpments
30th June, 723 TITE.50 7.180.30 595,19 Primarily, due to non inclusion of cerain
30th Septamber, 2023 T.EES91 684417 845,74 iberns ol irventary while furnishing fhe
st Depcember, 2023 TS5 & 896,02 54,13 statement 1o the Bank. with the resul 1hal
st Mareh, 2024 B 64722 £ 530,76 57.46 | Imventory Staterments submitied 10 the banks
rorfained a lessar valua than the actual
imventory hesd
B. Dl reE in Trade A W [T in Lakhs]
Cuarer Ended Walug &% per Books Wl as per Quartarly Differance Rengan tor Varanoe
Stalements
J0th June, 2023 B.817.82 8.937.15 [119.33) The ditlarence is primardly dus 1o non-
A0th Saptambar, 2023 6,644 5% 6,768.07 [124.17) | sonsideraton of cradit nobe while datarmining
315t December, 2023 6.991.25 TO67.02 75.73) | amount of Trade Recsivables as fumished
st March, 2024 654547 7,165 58 [#20.08) biafore the Banks.

i} The compary |s rot declared & willul defaulter by any bank or finencial institution or any other lendar.

{w}  The company has nat entared imlo any material ransaction with the companias struck-offt under g0 248 of the Gomparees Act. 2013 or section 560 of the
Companias Act. 1958 during the yaar,

{w} The Company does not have any charges or satistaction which is yed to be registared with RGOS beyond the statutory pariod.

{wi} The company has compliad with tha number of layers prescribed undar clausa (87) of section 2 of tha Act read with Companias (Rastriction on numiber of Layers)
Rules, 2017

{wii}  The company has noet applied for any Schama of Arrangements in lerms of Sections 230 1o 237 of the Compaenias Act, 2013,

{wim) Mo fnds have besn advanced or keaned or invested (either from bomrmaowed lunds ar share pramium or any sther sowroes ar kind of funds) by the Company 12 or in
any ather parsons) or antity(les), including larsign antibles “Infermediaries”) with e underslandng whather recarded in writing or otherwize, that the Intarmediary
shall land ar imvaest in party kanlified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimata Beneficianas). The Gompany has not recenad any fund from eny parly(s) (Furding
Parrgg '-mIE the undersianding lhatlllha Company shall whether, diracily or indiractly lend of imvest in ather persors or enlities idaenlified by or on behalf of the
CeamPant “Ulimats Benehisiaries™ or Provide an? Juararae’ seewit’ oo the like o0 bahall of the Ulimale Beneliciaries.

{ix} The Compary has n such transaction which is not recorged in the books of aceounts that has been surrendered or disclesed as income during the year in the tax
assassments under the Incoma-aa Acl, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any sdhaer relevant provisions of the Income-tax Acl, 1961),

{d}  The compary has nol rased o swesled in Crypte Currency or Yirlual Curreney during the Financial Year 2023-32,

[} Disclosure relating o varnous ratios
[Amount in Lakhs]

Sno.  |Particulars ‘Year ended ‘fear anded 2% of GChangas Remarks
31t March, 2024 S1st March, 2023 aomparad be {mandatary il
preceding year

{a) Currenl Ratio {in timas
[Current Assats [ Current Liabdities]

Currant Assels 17,475,657 1674262
Currenl Liakilifiss 8,750 .68 7414, B8 Mot Applicabla
Curranl Ralio 2.00 212 [6.0235)

{hh Dbt Ecuity Ratio (in fimes)
[Tataf Dabts f Total Equity |

Talal Debs £,370.42 1,797.42 , )
{han Currars Borrowing ssCurmant Boerowings| B:: L] Il‘lﬂfm?:ﬂm
Tatal Eduiy 19,877.48 1B,6BE.42 i "'tgfﬂ ;
Dbt Equity Ratia 0.2z 010 151_ag5,| IMOreasa in total aguily

WEit

Service Coverage Ratio 5
[Earnings bafora Interast & Tax' Debd Servica]

Ach

Earnings before Interest & Tax 2,384.70 (4,200, 53)
[Frali Do Tax = Finarcs Cixls]
Debt Sarvice 1,480.20 2,063.01 Daia to Increase In
[Finarcs Cogls + Schoduked principsd rapay of MoneCurmanl Eormowings Profit and decrease in
|Current iabsrties of Long Term Dobts of previous year| + princpal repayment ol linamnce costs
Lt Liabires]

Dbl Service Ralio 1.840 (2.056) {1B0.64%)
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[Aumicunl in Lakhs]
Sno. | Particulars Yaar andad Yaar andaed % of Changes Femarks
A= March, 2024 1= March, 2023 comgarad te [mandatory i
precoding year | Varaflionog8%h) |

{dk i ig {in
[Pratit atter Tax | Average Tolal Equity]
Dhuies Loy imcreass in

Prafit afer Tax 463.55 (7. AT6.04) predit aftar 16 and
Awerage Tatal Eguity 13,182.95 21,500,068 decreasa of avarage
[{Cpening Tolal Equity«Closng Taotal Equiby]f2] Intal equily
|Return on Equity Ratio | 2T (33, 38%) (ROT24%)|

e} Inwentory Turmower Fatio (in tmes)
[Sate of Products / Average Invantary]

Sala of Products 52,738 B3,327

Awarage bnwartary V046 67338 i
[{Cening Iveriory+Cising Iveriony 2] Not Applicable
Irveidory Turiiovers Ralio T.40 3.4 [20.45%)

dig He Turmoyes

ETurnr.! ﬂ.vn-u Trada RE‘-'-H'D‘SJ

Dse 1o decraase in

Turnovel (Aevenus rom Operalions) G63,421.86 B3.B44. 17 F
: | u il
&varage Trade Reciavables 608203 5,043,560 r::::;? BT::E:“
[[Coening Trade Asceivables + Closing Trade Recaivables)i2) 4
| [Trade Recevable Tumover Ralio B7E 1284 posaw eI
(gt [Trade Payable Turnevar Aatie (in timas)
[Turnowar’ dverage Trade Payables]
Turmover (Aevenus rom Operalions} 63,421,086 E3.B44.17
Avarage Trade Payables 4 B3B.BS 4 BT B4 Mot Applicable
[1Gpening Trade Payables + Closing Trada Payahles)/2]
Trada Payable Turmever Ratio 11.04 13.62 {18.84%)
(i Net Capital Turnover Ratio {in fimas)
[Turnawer § Warking Gapital]
Tumovar (Ravaniea from Operations) 53,421.56 B3 B4 1T
‘Warking Capital B716.99 11,151.68 Not Applicable
[Cunmsnt Asseds (-] Currenl Lisbilities]
Med Cagital Turnawer Ratio E13 5,72 TS
i1 Met Profit Ratlo (in percentage)
[Prafit after Tax ! Tumavar]
Pralil afler Tax 463,65 [T, 1780 Dides by incredse in
Tumaver (Revenue rom Operations} 63,421.86 B3.B441T predit aftar 16 and
Met Profit Fatio D.87% {11.24%%) (107.72%)| decrease n lumaver

il i
[Eamings Belore inberast 8 Taxes Canital Empleyed]

Dlug to incraasa In

Earnings Bedone Im!are-at & Taxes 2,384, 70 [, 20053 eariing belors i aral
[Prafit batora Tax + Financa Costs| & Iaxaa and canlial
Capital Employad 24,056.90 20,485.84 i o
[Tatal Equity + Tolal Boerowings] oy
|Pretumn an Capital Employed | 9,958%, 120.51%) (148,540
ikl Return on Investment Ralio {in parcemage)
[Mat Gain an Invesimant! Invasimand]
Wil Giain an [mesimen . .
|rrves el Q.08 005 .
Retum of Bvesiment Ratio i - Wt Applioabie
For Anil Kamal Garg & Company For and on the behall of Board
Charesad Accountants
1Al Firm Aegistration Ma, ; BO41B5E
Davendra Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Fappu
_F‘ann:r Managing Direslar Whaole Time Dirgctsr sum CFC
Memmibership No. : 078057 DIM : 00318249 DiK 2 02086748
HICATUDEN © 240TRO0STBHKGOUWESAT
Mahit Agrawal Ajay Shrivastava
Chiaf Executive Officer Caomgany Secratary

Indara, May 29th, 224 Burhanpur, May 29th, 2024
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TEXMO

F‘IF‘Eb AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

SOLID & LEAK PROOF

India's largest company
manufacturing a wide range of
Pipes, Fittings & Water Tanks...!

98, Bahadarpur Road, BURHANPUR - 450 331 (M.P.)
Tel. : (91) F325-255122, 252353, 251210, 2536833 Fax : (91) 7325-2532713

SCAN THE OR TO WATCH
OUR CORFORATE VIDED

MUMEA < [Hfice No: 412, 4ih Floor ' Wing, Express Zone, Westerm Exprass Highway, Malad [E), MUMEA! (M.H.) 400087
|NDORE - M-8, Corporaie House, B-Block, 169, RNT, Marg, INDORE (M.P.§ 455001

JABALPUR - 3622, Roopnidhl Manmohan Nagar, Damech Rosd, JABRALPUR (M.P.) 432002

RAIPUR - Shap Ma. H-T 8,9 Bhanpur Machinery Market Qpp, Indo Chains, Bhanguri, RAIPUR (C.G.) 494224

JALMA - Bhap Ko, 458 &8, AP M.C, Market Commity, New Mandha, Dist. JALNA (M.H,) 437203

HYDERABAD - Plat Mo, 36 & 37, 5N, Reddy Complex. Tadbund. Secundrabad, Dist. HYDERABAD (T.5.} 500000

JAIFUR - F-663 Road Mo, F2, Vel Area, JAIPUR (R.J} 302013

BUDHGADN - Gale No. 3005 Mahavir Sales Gorperation, Sangli Tesgaon Road, BUDHGADN (M.H.)

F ™ 8 jtexmoplpesandproductsitd 1@ texmopipeftexmoplpe.com @ hitpa:fitexmopipe.com @ﬁ 1300 270 0190
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